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These Corporate Reports, for Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and Controlled Entities and  

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and Controlled Entities, are presented as part of the Annual Report 2005/06.

For further discussion on our financial performance please refer to pages 32-35 of the Annual Report 2005/06.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and of 

the consolidated entity, being the Company and its controlled entities (the “Economic Entity”), for the year ended 30 June 2006 

and the auditor’s report thereon.

Directors

The names and details of the directors of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited (the “Parent Entity” or ”Company”) in office during 

the financial year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Name, 

qualifications and 

independence 

status

Age Experience, special responsibilities and other directorships

Keith Hilless  

BE FIEAust  

FAIM MAICD 

(Chairman)

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

68 Keith Hilless joined the Company as Chairman in 2002. He brings to his role experience gained 

from a career in the electricity supply industry spanning almost 50 years. Prior to taking up 

the role as Chairman, Mr Hilless held the position of Managing Director with international 

energy corporation NRG Asia Pacific Ltd for five years. He served as the Queensland Electricity 

Commissioner with oversight of electricity generation, transmission, distribution and regulation 

in Queensland from 1991 to 1994.

Throughout his career Mr Hilless also held a number of engineering and executive roles with the 

Queensland Transmission and Supply Corporation and Ergon Energy’s predecessor organisations, 

SWQEB and NORQEB. He was also the Chairman of the Australian Institute of Management - 

Queensland and Northern Territory up to May 2006. He is currently a member of the Council of 

Queensland University of Technology, a director of the Australian Institute of Management and 

took up the role of the National President of the Australian Institute of Management from May 

2006. Mr Hilless is a member of all Ergon Energy Board Committees.

Barry Taylor  

MAICD  

(Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

50 Barry Taylor joined the Company as director in 1999. He is a practising lawyer and notary public with 

MacDonnells Law, with offices in Brisbane, Townsville and Cairns. He has extensive experience in 

corporate, commercial and property law, including planning and environmental law. 

Mr Taylor has over 25 years corporate, business and legal experience, together with a range 

of commercial interests in the property development, quarrying and entertainment industries.  

Mr Taylor’s directorships include Townsville Enterprise Limited. He is also a member of the Urban 

Development Institute of Australia. Mr Taylor is a member of the Audit and Legal Compliance 

Committee and Business Development Committee and was appointed Chairman of the Safety 

and People Committee in July 2005.

Andrew 

Robertson  

BCom ACA FAICD 

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

55 Andrew Robertson joined the Company as director in 1999. As director of ABN AMRO Morgans 

Limited he brings to the Board expertise in the areas of finance and investment. He holds a 

Bachelor of Commerce degree, is an affiliate of the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd and a fellow 

of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

He is an alternate director with the Electricity Supply Industry Superannuation (Qld) Ltd and 

a director of several of ABN AMRO Morgans Limited subsidiary companies. Mr Robertson is 

the Chairman of Ergon Energy’s Financial Risk Management Committee and a member of the 

Business Development Committee.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report (continued) 
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Name, 

qualifications and 

independence 

status

Age Experience, special responsibilities and other directorships

Wayne Myers 

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

52 Wayne Myers joined the Company as director in 2001. He is Managing Director of Sirocco 

Technologies Group Limited, a technology integration, services and investment company.  

Mr Myers has worked in the Information Technology and Telecommunications industry for over 

30 years. Mr Myers is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

He is Chairman of the Queensland Government’s Major Sports Facilities Authority and also holds 

directorships with UNiTAB Limited and John Paul College, Brisbane. Mr Myers chairs Ergon Energy’s 

Business Development Committee and is a member of the Safety and People Committee.

Helen Stanton  

BE 

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

Appointed 1 

July 2005

34 Ingham-based engineer Helen Stanton is an independent business improvement consultant, 

specialising in strategy development, business process analysis, change management facilitation, 

Six Sigma projects and problem solving coaching. Ms Stanton was previously employed as a Senior 

Operations Engineer and Six Sigma Leader at BHP Billiton, where her responsibilities ranged 

from managing major engineering projects to co-ordinating business improvement projects and 

strategy development. Ms Stanton is a member of the Australian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, 

and Women in Technology. Ms Stanton is a member of the Safety and People Committee.

Terri Hamilton 

LLB DipFP GAICD

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

Appointed  

1 July 2005

44 Ms Hamilton is currently a consultant in the financial services industry. In the last 22 years, she 

has held senior management positions within the financial services sector and has extensive 

experience in regulatory, compliance, risk management and governance issues. 

Ms Hamilton is a Trustee on the Board of Trustees of QSuper a member of ASIC’s QLD Regional 

Liaison Committee and was recently appointed to the Board of Teachers’ Union Health as an 

independent director. Ms Hamilton is a member of the Financial Risk Management Committee.

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Name and qualifications Experience and special responsibilities

David Pegg  

BCom LLB(Hons) MSc 

Company Secretary 

and General Counsel

David Pegg joined the Company as Corporate Counsel in 2000, becoming Company Secretary 

of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd in 2003. He now combines the role of General Counsel and Company 

Secretary. Prior to holding this position he held the role of Solicitor and Senior Associate at Blake 

Dawson Waldron for 10 years.

Company Secretary
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report (continued)
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Economic Entity 
during the financial year comprised:

 distribution of electricity within the 
State of Queensland;

 electricity wholesale and retail 

trading in Queensland, Victoria, 

Australian Capital Territory,  

New South Wales, and South 
  Australia;
 co-generation activities; and 
 provision of electricity related 

contracting and other services.
There have been no significant changes 
in the nature of these activities during 
the year.

Dividends 
Dividends amounting to $87,482,292  
(2005: $82,111,434) have been paid or 
provided for during the financial year.

Operating and Financial Review
The Consolidated Income Statement shows 
a consolidated profit from ordinary activities 
after income tax equivalent expense of the 
Economic Entity for the year of $144,151,965 
(2005: $98,841,527).

The financial results have been reported 
in accordance with Australian Equivalents 
to International Financial Reporting 
Standards and comparative results for 
the prior year have been restated.

Significant Changes in the State  
of Affairs
Significant changes to the state of affairs of 
the Economic Entity that occurred during 
the year, and which are reported in the 
consolidated financial statements are:

On 24 April 2006, Ergon Energy Pty Ltd 
merged with Australian Energy Limited 
trading as Powerdirect by purchasing 
100% of the shares. The $103 million 
purchase of shares expanded our access 
to small and medium-sized customers in 
southern markets and gave us a systems 
capability to effectively service the rapid 
growth in customer numbers that it was 

anticipated the full retail competition in 
Queensland would bring. Powerdirect 
specialises in selling energy to small and 
medium-sized business in Victoria, New 
South Wales, and South Australia. 

Significant Events after Balance Date
The Queensland Government announced 
a decision in April 2006 to sell, before 
the end of 2006, Ergon Energy Retail’s 
competitive operations. 

Ergon Energy’s non-competitive (or non-
contestable) customers will remain within 
the Ergon Energy group and a separate 
retail customer service operation will 
continue to service these customers in 
regional Queensland. There will be no 
change to the functions performed by 
the distribution business. 

The sale will involve Ergon Energy’s 
existing contestable retail business, made 
up of mainly commercial and industrial 
customers together with the recently 
acquired Powerdirect business. In addition, 
approximately 400,000 Sun Retail (formerly 
Energex Retail) customers will be included  
in this sale.

In response to this government initiative, 
Ergon Energy is currently preparing the 
contestable retail business for sale and 
establishing the ongoing operations to 
support the remaining non-contestable 
customer business. 

Likely Developments and  
Future Results
The Economic Entity is committed to 
improving the status of the electricity 
distribution network. An asset quality 
improvement program has commenced.

The recently announced proposed sale 
by the Queensland Government of the 
contestable retail customers is anticipated 
to occur before the end of 2006. 

The directors have excluded from this 
report any further information as to the 
likely developments in the operations of 
the Economic Entity and the expected 

results of those operations in future 
financial years, as the directors believe 
that it would result in unreasonable 
prejudice to one or more entities in the 
Economic Entity.

Environmental Regulation 
and Performance
The Economic Entity’s environmental 
obligations are regulated under State 
and Federal laws.

All environmental performance obligations 
are reported to the Audit and Legal 
Compliance Committee and are, from time 
to time, subject to government agency, 
internal and external professional agency 
audits, as well as ongoing review to ensure 
compliance. The Economic Entity has a 
policy of meeting all its environmental 
obligations. The certification to International 
Standard ISO 14001 of the Economic Entity 
has been recommended for upgrade to the 
revised AS/ISO14001:2004 standard.

There have been three environmental 
breaches notified to government agencies 
during the financial year. There has been  
two major non-conformances/incidents 
(defined in internal policy guidelines as Class 
1 or 2) reported in the financial year.

Fo r  f u r t h e r  e n v i ro n m e n ta l 
performance information, refer to  
the Sustainability Report which is  
available separately and on the website  
– www.ergon.com.au.

Indemnification and Insurance 
of Directors and Officers
During the year, a policy was held to 
insure all directors and officers of the 
Economic Entity against liabilities incurred 
in their capacity as director or officer. 
The provisions of this policy prohibit the 
disclosure of the nature of the liabilities 
and the amount of the premium paid. The 
Corporations Act 2001 does not require 
disclosure of this information in these 
circumstances.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report (continued)
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Directors’ Shareholding
No directors held any beneficial interest in the shares of the Company. All issued shares are held by the shareholding Ministers 
on behalf of the Queensland Government.

Directors’ Meetings
The Board Committees are group committees of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited, Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and other entities 
in the wholly owned group. The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2006 and the number of meetings attended by each director of the Company was as follows:

Non-Audit Services
The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year by the auditor (or by another person or firm on 
the auditor’s behalf) is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001.

Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor are outlined in 
Note 32 of the Financial Statements.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
The Auditor’s Independence Declaration is set out on page 68 and forms part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2006.

Rounding
In accordance with Australian Securities and Investment Commission Class Order 98/0100, unless otherwise indicated, amounts 
contained in this report and the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

 

Mr K Hilless 

Chairman

Dated at Brisbane, this 13th day of September 2006.

Director Board Meetings Audit and Legal 

Compliance 

Committee 

Meetings

Business 

Development 

Committee 

Meetings

Safety and People 

Committee 

Meetings

Financial Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Meetings

A B A B A B A B A B

K Hilless 13 13 5 5 2 2 4 4 5 5

B Taylor 8 13 3 5 2 2 4 4 - -

H Stanton 13 13 - - - - 4 4 - -

A Robertson 9 13 - - 1 2 - - 5 5

T Hamilton 13 13 - - - - - - 5 5

W Myers 10 13 - - 1 2 4 4 - -

A – Number of meetings attended

B – Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Income Statements 
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue   3 2,206,655 2,083,033 1,043,059 854,630

Other income  3 40,111 1,829 1,457 1,829

Network charges / electricity purchases  (1,200,600) (1,254,092) (153,288) (147,037)

Employee expenses  (189,996) (137,825) (167,999) (111,867)

Materials and services  (170,989) (128,097) (163,447) (135,615)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 4 (240,073) (206,234) (234,972) (202,543)

Finance costs 4 (132,180) (101,229) (130,928) (100,842)

Other expenses  (99,937) (115,497) (39,751) (34,968)

Share of net profits of associates accounted  

for using the equity method 27 8 2 - -

Profit before income tax equivalent expense  212,999 141,890 154,131 123,587 

Income tax equivalent expense 5 (68,847) (43,049) (45,712) (27,170)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense  144,152 98,841 108,419 96,417

The Income Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Balance Sheets
As at 30 June 2006

   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 222,927 260,032 66,936 88,513
Trade and other receivables 7 340,880 316,673 183,461 186,298
Inventories  8 60,295 48,284 60,295 48,264
Financial assets 9 331,701 - - -
Other assets  10 1,990 61,449 906 -

Total current assets  957,793 686,438 311,598 323,075

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade and other receivables 7 1,508 72,056 117,181 38,957
Investments accounted for using the equity method 27 11 3 - -
Financial assets 9 - 100 138,675 138,675 
Property, plant and equipment 11 5,146,191 4,539,496 5,121,471 4,522,131
Intangible assets 12 127,441 39,583 21,713 33,391
Deferred tax equivalent assets 13(a) 346,337 285,467 247,926 235,870
Employee benefits 16 72,380 - 72,380 -
Other assets  10 - 2,265 - -

Total non-current assets  5,693,868 4,938,970 5,719,346 4,969,024

TOTAL ASSETS  6,651,661 5,625,408 6,030,944 5,292,099

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 14 313,074 300,680 204,478 194,191
Interest bearing liabilities 15 1,596 1,296 439 658 
Employee benefits 16 37,646 43,859 34,038 42,691
Provisions  17 40,457 78,985 39,595 50,635
Financial liabilities 18 301,469 - - -
Other liabilities 19 43,684 42,588 41,881 28,624

Total current liabilities  737,926 467,408 320,431 316,799

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 14 281 54,681 31,860 29,781 
Interest bearing liabilities 15 2,154,726 1,770,681 2,130,372 1,743,627 
Employee benefits 16 85,243 89,434 83,620 87,748
Provisions  17 31,759 7,029 31,759 595
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 13(b) 1,051,675 850,929 909,283 766,292 
Financial liabilities 18 4 - 4 -
Other liabilities 19 2,700 9,787 - -

Total non-current liabilities  3,326,388 2,782,541 3,186,898 2,628,043

TOTAL LIABILITIES  4,064,314 3,249,949 3,507,329 2,944,842

NET ASSETS  2,587,347 2,375,459 2,523,615 2,347,257

EQUITY 
Contributed equity 20 1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405 
Reserves  21(a) 1,145,209 1,051,809 1,145,209 1,051,809
Retained profits 21(b) 199,733 81,245 136,001 53,043

TOTAL EQUITY  2,587,347 2,375,459 2,523,615 2,347,257

The Balance Sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Statements of Recognised Income and Expense 
For the year ended 30 June 2006

   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment, net of tax 21(a) 93,404 723,479 93,404 723,479

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  

recognised directly in equity, net of tax 21(b) 62,659 (48,551) 62,659 (48,551)

Cash flow hedges: 

Gains/(losses) taken to equity 21(a) (4) - (4) -

Net income recognised directly in equity  156,059 674,928 156,059 674,928 

Profit for the financial year  144,152 98,841 108,419 96,417

Total recognised income and expense for the financial year  300,211 773,769 264,478 771,345

The Statements of Recognised Income and Expense are to be read in conjuction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Cash Flow Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2006

   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers  2,311,997 1,756,254 968,714 724,955

Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,728,246) (1,308,302) (509,384) (316,683)

Interest received  13,119 8,842 4,287 1,729

Interest paid   (126,574) (98,601) (125,323) (98,214)

Dividends received  9 9 34,039 16,919

Net cash from operating activities 29 470,305 358,202 372,333 328,706

Cash flows from investing activities 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  4,091 3,783 4,091 3,783

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (687,900) (519,470) (679,783) (505,540)

Payments for intangible assets  (16,883) (1,836) (12,867) (1,791)

Payments for investments made  - (1) - (5,796)

Proceeds from sale of investment  100 - - -

Payment for acquisition of Australian Energy Limited  (97,620) - - -

Proceeds from sale of business  904 407 - -

Net cash from investing activities  (797,308) (517,117) (688,559) (509,344)

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings  398,509 280,761 401,760 280,495

Repayment of borrowings  (26,500) - (25,000) -

Dividends paid  (82,111) (87,413) (82,111) (87,413)

Net cash from financing activities  289,898 193,348 294,649 193,082

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (37,105) 34,433 (21,577) 12,444

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  260,032 225,599 88,513 76,069

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 6 222,927 260,032 66,936 88,513

The Cash Flow Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited (the 

“Company”) is a company domiciled in 

Australia. The consolidated financial 

report of the Company for the year end  

30 June 2006 comprises the Company 

and its controlled entities (collectively 

referred to as the ‘’Economic Entity”) and 

the Economic Entity’s interest in associates 

and jointly controlled entities. 

The financial statements were  

authorised for issue by the directors on 

13 September 2006. 

(a) Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements are a general 

purpose financial report that have been 

prepared in accordance with Australian 

Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues 

Group (UIG) Interpretations, requirements 

of the Corporations Act 2001, provisions of 

the Government Owned Corporations Act 

1993 and other relevant legislation issued 

pursuant to that Act. 

Compliance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards

Australian Accounting Standards include 

Australian equivalents to International 

Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). 

Compliance with the AIFRS ensures that 

the consolidated financial statements and 

notes of the Economic Entity comply with 

International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS). The Company financial statements 

and notes also comply with IFRS except 

for the disclosure requirements in IAS 

32 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and 

Presentation’ as the Australian equivalent 

Accounting Standard, AASB 132 ‘Financial 

Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ 

does not require such disclosure to be 

presented by the Company where separate 

financial statements are presented together 

with the consolidated financial statements 

of the consolidated entity. 

First time adoption of AIFRS 

The financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with AASB 1 ‘First-

time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to 

International Financial Reporting Standards’. 

The financial report relating to 30 June 

2005 was prepared in accordance with 

Australian Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (AGAAP). The accounting 

principles applicable to AGAAP differ in 

certain areas to those relating to AIFRS. 

In preparing the financial statements of 

the Economic Entity for the 30 June 2006 

financial year, management has amended 

certain accounting and valuation methods 

previously applied to AGAAP financial 

statements to comply with AIFRS. With 

the exception of financial instruments, the 

comparative figures were restated to reflect 

these adjustments to the accounting and 

valuation methods. The Economic Entity 

has taken the exemption available under 

AASB 1 to only apply AASB 132 and AASB 

139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement’ from 1 July 2005.

(b) Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are presented 

in Australian dollars.

Historical cost convention 

The financial statements are prepared 

on the historical cost basis, except for 

the valuation of certain financial assets 

and liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss and certain classes of property, 

plant and equipment. 

Critical accounting estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with AIFRS requires the use 

of certain critical accounting estimates. It 

also requires management to exercise its 

judgment in the process of applying the 

Economic Entity’s accounting policies. 

The areas involving a higher degree of 

judgment or complexity, or areas where 

assumptions and estimates are significant 

to the consolidated financial statements 

are disclosed in the relevant notes to the 

financial statements.

Consistent accounting policies

The accounting policies have been applied 

consistently to the Economic Entity when 

preparing the information contained within 

the financial statements and in preparing 

the opening AIFRS Balance Sheet at 1 July 

2004, the transition date to AIFRS for the 

Economic Entity. 

Early adoption of standards

The Economic Entity has elected to apply the 

following standard to the annual reporting 

period beginning 1 July 2005:

 AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits’ 

(issued in June 2005)

This includes applying the standard to 

the comparatives in accordance with 

AASB 1 ‘First Time Adoption of Australian 

Equivalents to International Financial 

Reporting Standards’.

(c) Basis of Consolidation 

(i)	 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the 

Economic Entity has the power to govern the 

financial and operating policies. This power 

generally accompanies a shareholding of 

more than one half of the voting rights. The 

existence and effect of potential voting rights 

that are currently exercisable or convertible 

are considered when assessing whether 

the Economic Entity controls another entity. 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the 

date on which control is transferred to the 

Economic Entity. They are de-consolidated 

from the date that control ceases.

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

The purchase method of accounting is used 

to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries 

by the Economic Entity. The cost of an 

acquisition is measured as the fair value 

of the assets given, liabilities incurred or 

assumed and equity instruments issued 

at the date of exchange, plus costs 

directly attributable to the acquisition. 

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 

and contingent liabilities assumed in a 

business combination are measured initially 

at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

The excess of the cost of acquisition over 

the fair value of the Economic Entity’s 

share of identifiable net assets acquired 

is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of the 

acquisition is less than the fair value of 

the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, 

the difference is recognised immediately 

in the Income Statement.

(ii)	 Associates

Associates are all entities over which 

the Economic Entity has significant 

influence but not control. The Economic 

Entity has an interest in one associate, 

Service Essentials Pty Ltd. Investments 

in associates are accounted for by the 

equity method of accounting and are 

initially recognised at cost. The Economic 

Entity’s investment in associates includes 

goodwill, net of accumulated impairment 

losses, identified on acquisition. 

The Economic Entity’s share of its 
associates’ post-acquisition profits or 
losses is recognised in the Income 
Statement, and its share of post  
acquisition movements in reserves is 
recognised in reserves. The cumulative 
post-acquisition movements are adjusted 
against the carrying amount of the 

investment. When the Economic Entity’s 

share of losses in an associate equals 

or exceeds its interest in the associate, 

the Economic Entity does not recognise 

any further losses unless it has incurred 

obligations or made payments on behalf 

of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between 

the Economic Entity and its associates 

are eliminated to the extent of the 

Economic Entity’s interest in the associates. 

Unrealised losses are also eliminated 

unless the transaction provides evidence 

of the impairment of the asset transferred. 

Accounting policies of associates have 

been changed where necessary to ensure 

consistency with the policies adopted by 

the Economic Entity.

(iii)	 Jointly	controlled	entities

The Economic Entity has interests in two 

jointly controlled entities, SPARQ Solutions 

Pty Ltd and Quest Asset Holdings Pty Ltd. 

The equity method of accounting is applied 

by the Economic Entity, as described in 

the Economic Entity’s policy on accounting 

for associates.

(iv)	 Transactions	eliminated	

on	consolidation

Inter-company transactions, balances 

and unrealised gains on transactions 

between Economic Entity companies are 

eliminated in preparing the consolidated 

financial statements. Unrealised losses are 

eliminated in the same way as unrealised 

gains unless the transaction provides 

evidence of the impairment of an asset 

transferred.

(d) Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions 

Foreign currency transactions are translated 

into the functional currency using the 

exchange rates prevailing at the date of 

the transactions. Foreign exchange gains 

and losses resulting from the settlement of 

such transactions, and from the translation 

at year-end exchange rates of monetary 

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies, are recognised in the Income 

Statement, except when deferred in equity 

as qualifying cash flow hedges. 

(e) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable 
and is net of returns, trade allowances 
and duties and taxes paid. Revenue is 
recognised for the major business activities 
as follows:

(i)	 Regulated	network	business
The Company is subject to a revenue cap 
that can be earned on its regulated assets. 
The regulated return is recognised in 
accordance with the revenue cap. 

Regulated network prices are determined 
and initially invoiced based on estimates. 
Actual revenue allowed by the Regulator 
may vary from that estimated, resulting 
in a direction by the Regulator to the 
Company to increase / (reduce) prices 
in the succeeding periods to recover / 
(refund) amounts under or over charged. 
Amounts recovered or refunded are 
recognised in the Income Statement in 
future periods. 

1) Non-refundable capital contributions
 Non-refundable contributions of cash 

or non-current assets are recognised 
as revenue when the network has been 
extended or modified consistent with 
the terms of the contribution. 

 The amount of the revenue and the 
asset recognised for non-refundable 
contributions of non-current assets 
is the fair value of the contributed 
assets at the date on which the 

Economic Entity gains control of  

the contribution.

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2) Contribution acknowledgment 

payments

 Under direction from the shareholding 

Ministers, the first tranche of contestable 

customers in the retail electricity 

market receive repayment of the 

capital payments they had previously 

made. These repayments are in the 

form of reduced network charges for 

specified time periods. Transmission 

charges and grid service revenue are 

both grossed up by the amount of 

rebates to customers so that the full 

amount of the costs and revenues  

are reported.

Regulated network revenue and electricity 

sales revenue are disclosed as sales 

revenue.

(ii)	 Electricity	retail	business

1) Electricity sales revenue to 

contestable customers

 Where contracts are held for trading 

purposes, revenue is recognised when 

the entity within the Economic Entity 

becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the contestable customer 

sales contracts.

 All other sales contracts with 

contestable customers recognise 

revenue upon delivery of the services 

to the customers.

2) Electricity sales revenue 

to customers other than 

contestable customers

 Revenue recognised is the aggregate 

of invoices raised, together with the 

movement in estimated metered but 

not invoiced energy consumption.

3) Estimated revenue from  

unbilled services 

 Unread meters represents the estimated 

value of unbilled electricity provided 

to retail customers and is included in 

electricity sales revenue.

4) Community service obligations

 As part of the Queensland electricity 

market reforms introduced in the 

late 1990’s, the Government made 

a commitment that state-wide 

uniform retail tariffs would apply 

to franchise customers and that no 

franchise customer would be adversely 

affected by ongoing electricity market 

reforms. From the 2001/2002 year, the 

Queensland Government determined 

that a fixed gross margin, adjusted 

for allowed energy costs, would 

apply to sales of electricity to 

franchise customers. Payments  

received primarily represent  

the shortfall in the margin  

received by the controlled entity, Ergon 

Energy Pty Ltd. 

(iii)	 Dividend	revenue	

Dividend revenue is recognised in the 

Income Statement on the date the entity’s 

right to receive payment is established. 

(iv)	 Other	non-regulated	revenue

Non-regulated revenue comprises revenue 

(net of discounts and allowances) mainly 

from the provision of electricity-related 

services. Revenue for the provision of 

services is recognised when the service 

is provided. Revenue for the sale of goods 

is recognised on delivery of the goods  

to the customer. 

Interest income is recognised in the 

Income Statement as it accrues, using  

the effective interest rate method.

(f)  Expenses

(i)	 Cost	of	sales

Cost of sales is the accumulation of costs 

associated with network charges, electricity 

purchases and any other costs associated 

with the sale of electricity.

(ii)	 Operating	lease	payments

Payments made under operating leases 

are recognised in the Income Statement 

on a straight-line basis over the term of 

the lease. Lease incentives received are 

recognised in the Income Statement as an 

integral part of the total lease expense.

(iii)	 Finance	lease	payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned 

between the finance charge and the 

reduction of the outstanding liability. The 

finance charge is allocated to each period 

during the lease term so as to produce a 

constant periodic rate of interest on the 

remaining balance of the liability. Interest 

expense component of finance lease 

payments is recognised in the Income 

Statement using the effective interest  

rate method.

(iv)	 Finance	and	related	costs	

Borrowings are initially recognised 

at fair value, net of transaction costs 

incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are 

subsequently measured on an amortised 

cost basis with any difference between cost 

and redemption value being recognised 

in the Income Statement over the period 

of the borrowings on an effective interest 

basis. 

Finance costs are recognised as expenses in 

the period in which they are incurred. 

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)



13ERGON ENERGY CORPORATE REPORTS 2005/06

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

(g) Income tax

(i)	 Tax	equivalents

The entities within the Economic Entity 

make tax equivalent payments on their 

taxable income to the Queensland 

Government. These taxation payments 

are made pursuant to Section 155(4) of 

the Government Owned Corporations Act 

1993. These payments are administered 

by the Australian Taxation Office under the 

National Tax Equivalent Regime (NTER). 

The NTER broadly utilises the provisions 

of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 

(ITAA 1936), the Income Tax Assessment 

Act 1997 (ITAA 1997) and associated 

legislation, as well as Rulings and other 

pronouncements by the ATO, in order to 

determine the tax payable by the entities 

(refer note 5).

The entities are not required to maintain 

a franking account.

(ii)	 Current	tax	payable	

Current tax is the expected tax payable on 

the taxable income for the year using tax 

rates enacted at the end of the financial 

year and any adjustment to tax payable 

in respect of previous years.

Current tax payable is recognised as 

current tax expense except to the extent 

that it relates to items recognised directly 

in equity, in which case that portion is 

recognised directly in equity.

(iii) Deferred tax equivalent 

assets and liabilities

Deferred tax equivalent assets and 

liabilities are deductible or assessable 

temporary differences and unused tax 

losses recognised using tax rates enacted 

at the reporting date. Temporary differences 

are differences between the carrying 

amount of an asset and liability for 

financial reporting purposes and their tax 

bases. Tax bases are determined based 

on the expected manner of realisation 

or settlement of the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax equivalent assets are 

recognised only to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable amounts 

will be available against which the asset 

can be utilised.

Movements in deferred tax equivalent 

assets and liabilities balances are 

recognised as deferred tax equivalent 

expenses, except to the extent they  

relate to:

 Items recognised directly in equity,  

in which case that portion is 

recognised in equity;

 Acquisitions of entities or 

operations, in which case that 

portion is recognised in goodwill; 

and 

 Temporary differences that are not 

recognised.

(iv)	 Income	tax	equivalent	expense

Income tax equivalent expense for the 

reporting period consists of current tax 

expense and deferred tax expense.

(v)	 Tax	consolidation	

The Company and its wholly-owned 

Australian resident entities have formed 

a tax-consolidated group with effect from 

1 July 2002 and are therefore taxed as a 

single entity from that date. The head 

entity within the tax consolidated group is 

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited.

Current tax expense/income, deferred 

tax liabilities and deferred tax assets 

arising from temporary differences of 

the members of the tax-consolidated 

group are recognised in the separate 

financial statements of the members of 

the tax-consolidated group using the group 

allocation method by reference to the 

carrying amounts in the separate financial 

statements of each entity and the tax values 

applying under tax consolidation.

Current tax liabilities and assets and 

deferred tax assets arising from unused tax 

losses and tax credits of the members of 

the tax-consolidated group are recognised 

by the Company (as head entity in the 

tax-consolidated group).

Any current tax liabilities (or assets), and 

deferred tax assets arising from unused 

tax losses are assumed by the head 

entity from the subsidiaries in the tax-

consolidated group in conjunction with 

any tax funding arrangement amounts, are 

recognised by the Company (refer below). 

Any difference between these amounts is 

recognised by the Company as an equity 

contribution to or distribution from the 

subsidiary. Distributions firstly reduce 

the carrying amount of the investment 

in the subsidiary and are then recognised 

as revenue.

The Company recognises deferred tax 

assets arising from unused tax losses of 

the tax-consolidated group to the extent 

that it is probable that future taxable 

profits of the tax-consolidated group will 

be available against which the asset can 

be utilised.

Any subsequent period adjustments to 

deferred tax assets arising from unused 

tax losses assumed from subsidiaries are 

recognised by the head entity only.

(vi)	 Nature	of	funding	arrangements	

and	tax	sharing	agreements

The members of the tax-consolidated 

group have entered into a tax funding 
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arrangement which sets out the funding 

obligations of members of the tax-

consolidated group in respect of tax 

amounts. The tax funding arrangements 

require payments to/from the head entity 

equal to the current tax liability/(asset) 

assumed by the head entity and any tax-

loss deferred tax asset assumed by the 

head entity, resulting in the head entity 

recognising an inter-entity receivable/ 

(payable) in the separate financial 

statements of the members of the tax-

consolidated groups equal in amount to 

the tax liability/(asset) assumed. The inter-

entity receivable/(payable) is at call.

The head entity recognises the assumed 

current tax amounts as current tax 

liabilities/(assets), adding to its own 

current tax amounts, since they are also 

due to or from the same taxation authority. 

The current tax liabilities/(assets) are 

equivalent to the tax balances generated 

by external transactions entered into by 

the tax-consolidated group.

Contributions to fund the current tax 

liabilities are payable as per the tax 

funding arrangement and reflect the 

timing of the head entity’s obligation to 

make payments for tax liabilities to the 

relevant tax authorities.

The members of the tax-consolidated 

group have also entered into a tax sharing 

agreement. The tax sharing agreement 

provides for the determination of the 

allocation of income tax liabilities between 

the entities should the head entity default 

on its tax payment obligations. No amounts 

have been recognised in the financial 

statements in respect of this agreement 

as payment of any amounts under the 

tax sharing agreement is considered 

remote.

(h) Cash

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

cash balances and investments in money 

market instruments. Bank overdrafts that 

are repayable on demand are included  

as a component of cash and cash 

equivalents for the purpose of the  

Cash Flow Statements. 

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at 

amortised cost less provision for doubtful 

receivables. 

A provision for doubtful receivables is 

established when there is objective evidence 

that the Economic Entity will not be able to 

collect all amounts due according to the 

original terms of receivables, and hence 

the receivables are impaired. The amount 

of the provision is the difference between 

the asset’s carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows, 

discounted at the effective interest rate.  

The amount of the provision is recognised 

in the Income Statement.

Prepaid	commissions

A subsidiary of the Economic Entity 

pays variable commissions to internal 

and external salespersons which are 

capitalised and expensed over the life of 

the contract (3 years). 45% of the prepaid 

commissions are amortised in year one, 

35% in year two and 20% in year three.  

All other costs of sales are expensed as 

they are incurred.

(j) Inventories

Inventories shown as current assets of the 

Company are not for resale, but are used 

in the maintenance and construction of 

electricity supply system assets and are 

valued at weighted average cost.

Inventories are stated at the lower of 

cost and net realisable value. Cost is 

determined using the weighted average 

cost method. Net realisable value is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary 

course of business, less applicable variable 

selling expenses.

(k) Property, Plant and Equipment

All regulated assets are carried at fair value. 

Items included in this category are regulated 

electricity supply system and other regulated 

plant and equipment. Regulated assets 

were valued by directors at 30 June 2005 

using a method consistent with Depreciated 

Optimised Replacement Value. 

The Economic Entity’s policy is to carry 

out a detailed valuation based on advice 

from independent experts with sufficient 

regularity, as determined by the directors, 

to ensure the carrying value of assets does 

not differ materially to their fair value, and 

to apply escalation factors to the asset 

values in the intervening years.

The value adopted by the directors was 

that contained within the Queensland 

Competition Authority (QCA) Final 

Determination. The QCA valuation outcome 

included increased standard lives of assets 

to reflect current experience and opinions 

within the Australian electricity supply 

industry. The standard lives adopted by QCA 

represent a general increase over the lives 

previously used to calculate depreciation 

for regulated assets. During the year the 

directors resolved to change the effective 

lives of regulated assets to those included 

in the QCA Final Determination.

Regulated non-supply system assets have 

previously been accounted for under the 

cost method. During the comparative year, 

the directors changed the accounting 
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policy to record regulated non-supply 

system assets at fair value. Therefore, 

at transition to AIFRS, the assets were 

carried at cost. 

Non-regulated supply system assets and 

power stations are recorded at fair value 

but were not valued as part of the QCA 

Final Determination. The last independent 

value of these assets was undertaken as 

at 31 December 1999 as part of a valuation 

of supply system and power station assets 

undertaken by a consortium comprising 

Gutteridge, Haskins and Davey Pty Ltd and 

Arthur Anderson using the Depreciated 

Optimised Replacement Cost methodology. 

Supply system assets and power stations 

were valued by directors at 30 June 2001 

using a method consistent with Depreciated 

Optimised Replacement Value. Under this 

approach, escalation factors are applied 

to asset values where appropriate. 

All other items of property, plant and 

equipment are stated at historical cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses. The cost of property, 

plant and equipment constructed by 

the Economic Entity includes the cost 

of materials, direct labour and other 

associated costs and, where appropriate, 

borrowing costs. If payment for an item of 

property, plant and equipment is deferred 

beyond normal credit terms, the difference 

between the cash price equivalent at the 

date of recognition and the total payment 

is recognised as interest over the period  

of credit.

Revaluation increments are credited directly 

to the asset revaluation reserve, except that, 

to the extent that an increment reverses 

a revaluation decrement in respect of 

that class of asset previously recognised 

as an expense in net profit or loss, the 

increment is recognised immediately as 

revenue in net profit or loss. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised 

immediately as expenses in net profit or 

loss, except that, to the extent that a credit 

balance exists in the asset revaluation 

reserve in respect of the same class of 

assets, they are debited directly to the 

asset revaluation reserve.

Potential capital gains tax is not taken into 

account when determining revaluation 

amounts unless there is an intention to 

sell the assets concerned.

(i)	 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the straight- 

line basis by reference to the useful 

life of each item of property, plant and 

equipment, other than freehold land and 

easements. An assessment of useful 

lives is performed annually. Major spares 

purchased specifically for particular plant 

are capitalised and depreciated on the same 

basis as the plant to which they relate.

Major depreciation periods are: 

(ii)	 Acquisition	of	assets

The purchase method of accounting is 

used for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is 

measured as the fair value of the assets 

given up or liabilities undertaken at the 

date of the acquisition plus incidental costs 

directly attributable to the acquisition.

(iii)	 Disposal	of	items	of	property,		

plant	and	equipment

The gains and losses on disposal of an 

item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined by comparing the proceeds of 

disposal with the carrying amount of the 

item. The net gain or loss on disposal is 

included in the Income Statement. 

(iv)	 Maintenance	and	repairs	

The Economic Entity’s distribution network 

is required to be inspected on a regular 

basis. This is managed as part of 

an ongoing cyclical inspection and 

maintenance program. The cost of this 

maintenance is charged as an expense 

as incurred. Other routine operating 

maintenance, repair and minor renewal 

costs are also charged as expenses  

as incurred.

(l) Intangible Assets

(i)	 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the 

cost of an acquisition over the fair value 

of the Economic Entity’s share of the 

net identifiable assets of the acquired 

subsidiary / associate at the date of 

acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of 

subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. 

Goodwill on acquisition of associates is 

included in investments in associates. 

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment 

and carried at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses. 

Measurement 

basis

Depreciation 

period

Supply 

system

Fair value 7 to 60 years

Power 

stations

Fair value 5 to 60 years

Buildings Fair value 40 years

Other 

property, 

plant and 

equipment

Fair value/ 

cost (1) 

3 to 10 years

(1) Other property plant and equipment of the Company 
is at fair value with the subsidiaries measured at cost.

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating 

units for the purpose of impairment 

testing.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an 

entity include the carrying amount of 

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill 

is recognised in the Income Statement as 

an expense when incurred. 

(ii)	 Research	and	development	

Expenditure on research activities, 

undertaken with the prospect of gaining 

new technical knowledge or understanding 

is recognised in the Income Statement 

when incurred. 

Expenditure on development activities, 

whereby research findings are applied 

to a plan or design for the production of 

a new or substantially improved product 

and process is capitalised if the product 

or process is technically or commercially 

feasible and the consolidated entity 

has sufficient resources to complete 

development. 

(iii)	 Licences

Licences are carried at historical cost. 

Licences that have a finite useful life 

are carried at cost less accumulated 

amortisation on a consumed basis. Licences 

that have an infinite useful life are carried 

at cost less accumulated impairment 

losses and are subject to impairment 

review on an annual basis.

(iv)	 Software

Software is carried at historical cost.

(v)	 Other	internally	generated		

intangible	assets

Internally generated intangible assets 

are carried at historical cost. All costs 

directly attributable to the creation of the 

asset from the point when it first meets 

the recognition criteria are capitalised 

into the value of the asset. 

(vi)	 Amortisation	

The cost of an intangible asset is amortised 

on a straight-line basis over the estimated 

useful life of the asset unless such assets are 

indefinite. Major amortisation periods are:  

 

 

 

 

(m) Investment Property

Investment property comprises residential 

premises that are held for rental yields at 

balance date, are not occupied by employees 

of the Economic Entity and are not retained 

by the Economic Entity for future use as 

employee accommodation.

Investment property is measured at 

cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

Where the Economic Entity has undertaken 

to dispose of residential premises at 

balance date, the items of investment 

property are classified and accounted for 

as held for sale assets.

Rental revenue from the leasing of investment 

properties is recognised on a straight-line 

basis in the Income Statement.

(n) Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life 

are not subject to amortisation and are 

tested annually for impairment.

All assets which are amortised are reviewed 

for impairment whenever events or changes 

in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. For the 

purposes of assessing impairment, assets 

are grouped at the lowest levels for which 

there are separately identifiable cash flows 

(cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is recognised for the 

amount by which the carrying amount of 

the asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds 

its recoverable amount. The recoverable 

amount is the higher of an asset’s (or cash-

generating unit’s) fair value less costs to 

sell and value in use. An impairment loss 

in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 

The expected net cash flows included 

in determining the value in use of an 

asset (or cash-generating unit) are 

discounted to their present values using 

a market-determined, risk-adjusted  

pre-tax discount rate.

(o) Non-current assets held for  

sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as assets 

held for sale if their carrying amounts 

will be recovered principally through a 

sale transaction rather than through 

continuing use. 

Non-current assets held for sale are stated 

at the lower of carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell. An impairment 

loss is recognised for the write-down of an 

asset to fair value less costs to sell.

An operation is classified as a discontinued 

operation when it meets the criteria to be 

classified as held for sale.

Measurement 

basis

Amortisation 

period

Software Cost 3 to 10 years

Licences Cost 3 years to 

indefinite life 

Customer 

contracts 

and 

relationships

Cost 3 to 10 years

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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(p) Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised 

when the Economic Entity has a legal or 

constructive obligation to pay cash. Trade and 

other creditors are recognised at cost. 

(q) Employee benefits

(i)	 Wages	and	salaries,	annual		

leave	and	sick	leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including 

non-monetary benefits, annual leave and 

accumulating sick leave expected to be 

settled within 12 months of the reporting 

date are recognised in respect of employees’ 

services up to the reporting date and are 

measured at the amounts expected to be 

paid when the liabilities are settled. 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including 

non-monetary benefits, annual leave 

and accumulating sick leave expected 

to be settled more than 12 months after 

the reporting date are measured at the 

present value of expected future payments 

to be made in respect of services provided 

by employees up to the reporting date. 

Expected future payments are discounted 

using market yields at the reporting 

date on government bonds with terms 

to maturity and currency that match, 

as closely as possible, to the estimated 

future cash outflows.

Liabilities for non-accumulating sick  

leave are recognised when the leave is 

taken and measured at the rates paid  

or payable.

(ii)	 Long	service	leave

The liability for long service leave expected to 

be settled within 12 months of the reporting 

date is recognised in respect of employees’ 

services up to the reporting date and is 

measured at the amount expected to be 

paid when the liability is settled.

The liability for long service leave expected 

to be settled more than 12 months from 

the reporting date is recognised in respect 

of employee services up to the reporting 

date and is measured as the present value 

of expected future payments to be made in 

respect of services provided by employees 

up to the reporting date. Consideration is 

given to expected future wage and salary 

levels, experience of employee departures 

and periods of service. Expected future 

payments are discounted using market 

yields at the reporting date on government 

bonds with terms to maturity and currency 

that match, as closely as possible, the 

estimated future cash outflows. 

(iii)	 On-costs	and	superannuation		

contributions	on	leave	balances

On-costs, including payroll tax and workers’ 

compensation insurance, are recognised 

and included in liabilities and costs when 

the employee benefits to which they relate 

are recognised as liabilities. 

On-costs are measured at their nominal 

amounts unless the effect of the time 

value of money is material. If the effect of 

the time value of money is material, the 

amount of the liability made is determined 

by discounting the best estimate of the 

amount required to settle the obligation 

to present value using a pre-tax discount 

rate that reflects the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the liability.

On-costs are not employee benefits and, 

therefore, are excluded from employee 

benefits expense. Provisions for on-costs 

are disclosed in the financial statements 

as other provisions.

Superannuation contributions accrued as a 

result of the liability for employee benefits 

are measured as the present value of 

expected future payments to be made in 

respect of services provided by employees 

up to the reporting date. Superannuation 

contributions are disclosed as employee 

benefit expense and as employee benefit 

liabilities. 

(iv)	 Superannuation

Entities within the Economic Entity 

contribute to both defined contribution and 

defined benefit superannuation plans. 

A defined benefit plan is a superannuation 

plan that defines the amount of the 

benefit that an employee will receive on 

retirement, usually dependent on one or 

more factors such as age, years of service 

and final salary. 

The asset or liability recognised in the 

Balance Sheet in respect of defined 

benefit superannuation plans is the 

difference between the present value 

of the defined benefit obligation at the 

reporting date and the fair value of the 

plan assets, together with adjustments 

for past service costs. The defined 

benefit obligation is calculated annually 

by independent actuaries using the 

Projected Unit Credit method. The 

present value of the defined benefit 

obligation is determined by discounting 

the estimated future cash outflows using 

interest rates on government bonds 

that are denominated in the currency 

in which the benefits will be paid, being 

Australian dollars, and that have terms 

to maturity that approximate the terms 

of the related superannuation liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising  

from experience adjustments and changes 

in actuarial assumptions are recognised 

in equity under the direct to equity 

approach.

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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A defined contribution plan is a 

superannuation plan under which entities in 

the Economic Entity pay fixed contributions. 

Entities in the Economic Entity have 

no legal or constructive obligations to 

pay further contributions if the fund 

does not hold sufficient assets to pay 

all employees the benefits relating to 

employee service in the current and prior 

periods. The contributions are recognised 

as an employee benefit expense when 

they are due. Prepaid contributions are 

recognised as an asset to the extent that 

a cash refund or a reduction in future 

payments is available.

(r) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a 

present legal or constructive obligation as 

a result of past events, it is more than likely 

that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate can 

be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where the effect of the time value of 

money would be material, the amount of 

a provision is determined by discounting 

the best estimate of the amount required 

to settle the obligation to present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the liability. No provisions are 

raised for future operating losses.

(i)	 Provision	for	restructuring	costs

A provision for restructuring is recognised 

only when:

 There is a detailed formal plan in 

place; and

 A valid expectation has been 

raised in those affected by the 

plan that the restructuring will 

be carried out by starting to 

implement the plan or announcing 

its main features to those affected. 

A provision for restructuring is not 

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 

of an entity unless the provision for 

restructuring was an existing liability of 

the acquiree at the acquisition date.

(ii)	 Onerous	contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is 

recognised when the expected benefits 

to be derived from a contract are lower 

than the unavoidable costs of meeting its 

obligations under the contract. 

(s) Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

(t) Lease commitments

(i)	 Operating	leases

Leases in which substantially all of the 

risks and rewards of ownership are retained 

by the lessor are classified as operating 

leases. Payments under operating leases 

are charged to the Income Statement on 

a straight-line basis over the period of 

the lease unless an alternative basis is 

more representative of the time pattern 

of benefits to be obtained from the leased 

property.

(ii)	 Finance	leases

Leases in which substantially all of the 

risks and rewards of ownership are 

transferred to the lessee are classified as 

finance leases. A finance lease asset and 

a finance lease liability are recorded on 

the Balance Sheet. The lease asset and 

the lease liability are established at the 

fair value of the asset or, if lower, at the 

present value of minimum lease payments. 

Lease payments are allocated between 

the finance charge and the reduction of 

the outstanding liability over the life of 

the lease. 

(iii)	 Lease	incentives

Where an entity in the Economic Entity 

is a lessee under an operating lease, the 

aggregate benefit of any incentive provided 

by the lessor for a new or renewed lease is 

recognised as a reduction of rental expense 

over the lease term on a straight-line basis 

unless another systematic basis is more 

representative of the time pattern of benefit 

from the use of the leased asset.

(u) Contingent assets and liabilities 

Contingent assets are not recognised in 

the financial statements. Other than as 

required on acquisition of a business, 

contingent liabilities are not recognised 

in the financial statements, however, 

they are included in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

(v) Segment reporting

A segment is a group of assets and 

operations engaged either in providing 

products or services (business segment), 

or providing products and services within 

a particular economic environment 

(geographical segment) which is subject 

to risks and returns that are different to 

those of other segments.

(w) Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction 

contract can be estimated reliably, contract 

revenue and expense are recognised in the 

Income Statement in proportion to the stage 

of completion of the contract. The stage 

of completion is measured by reference to 

the work performed. An expected loss on a  

contract is recognised immediately in  

the Income Statement. 

(x) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at 

their fair value when there is reasonable 

assurance that the grant will be received 

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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and the Economic Entity will comply with 

all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are 

deferred and recognised in the Income 

Statement over the period necessary to 

match the grants with the costs that they 

are intended to compensate. 

Government grants relating to the purchase 

of property, plant and equipment are 

included in non-current liabilities as 

deferred income and are credited to the 

Income Statement on a straight-line basis 

over the expected lives of the related 

assets.

(y) Accounting for financial 

instruments

(i)	 Hedge	accounting	

The economic entity used derivative 

instruments to hedge foreign exchange 

and interest rate exposures arising from 

its activities. In accordance with treasury 

policy, hedge accounting is applied where 

a designated hedge relationship exists. 

Where the derivative financial instrument is 

designated as a hedge of the variability in 

cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, 

or a highly probable forecast transaction, 

the effective part of any gain or loss on a 

derivative financial instrument is recognised 

direct in equity as a reserve. 

When the forecast transaction subsequently 

results in the recognition of a non-financial 

asset or liability, or the forecast transaction 

of a non-financial asset or liability, the 

associated cumulative gain or loss is 

removed from equity and included in 

the initial cost of the associated asset 

or liability. 

If a hedge of a forecasted transaction 

subsequently results in the recognition 

of a financial asset or liability, such as 

a debt instrument, the associated gains 

or losses that were recognised directly 

in equity are reclassified into the Income 

Statement in the same period during which 

the asset acquired or assumed affects the 

Income Statement.

For cash flow hedges other than those 

noted above, associated cumulative gains 

or losses are removed from equity and 

recognised in the Income Statement in 

the same period during which the hedged 

forecast transaction affects the Income 

Statement. The ineffective part of any gain 

or loss is recognised immediately in the 

Income Statement. 

Where the hedging instrument expires or 

is sold, terminated or exercised, or the 

Economic Entity revokes designation of 

the hedge relationship, but the hedged 

forecast transaction is still expected to 

occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that 

point remains in equity and is recognised 

in accordance with the above policy when 

the transaction occurs. If the hedge 

transaction is no longer expected to occur, 

the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is 

transferred from equity immediately to 

the Income Statement. 

(ii)	 Fair	value	accounting	through		

the	Income	Statement	

Derivatives measured at fair value are 

recognised at fair value at the date that 

a derivative contract is entered into and 

is subsequently measured at fair value at 

each reporting date. The Economic Entity 

does not apply netting of financial assets 

and liabilities on settlement. A positive 

revaluation amount is reported as an 

asset and a negative revaluation amount 

is reported as a liability. The resulting 

gain or loss is recognised in the Income 

Statement immediately. Derivative contracts 

acquired principally for the purpose of 

selling in the short term are measured at 

fair value through the Income Statement. 

The following transactions are classified 

as derivative financial instruments and 

measured at fair value through the Income 

Statement. 

1) Contestable sales and 

purchase contracts 

 Contestable sales contracts are 

contracts with contestable customers 

for the sale, but not the supply, of 

electricity.

 Contestable sales contracts are 

recorded at their net fair value. The 

contracts have been valued using 

a combination of data sources 

including current Ergon Energy trades, 

the Australian Financial Markets 

Association, the 5MW brokers market 

and other market intelligence. Ergon 

Energy trades frequently in these 

instruments and has sufficient market 

information to reliably measure the 

value of these contracts in accordance 

with the requirements of AIFRS. 

Volume of sales is an estimation of 

future demand determined using 

historical averages.

2) Derivative financial instruments held 

or issued for hedging contestable, 

franchise sales contracts or trading

 Derivative financial instruments held 

or issued for hedging contestable and 

franchise sales contracts or trading 

purposes are recorded at their net 

fair value. 

 The contracts have been valued using 

a valuation technique incorporating a 

half hourly forward price curve derived 

from a combination of data sources 

including current Ergon Energy trades,  

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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 the Australian Financial Markets 

Association, the 5MW brokers market 

and other market intelligence. Ergon 

Energy Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of the 

Company, and its controlled entities 

trade frequently in these instruments 

and has sufficient market information 

to reliably measure the value of these 

contracts in accordance with the 

requirements of Australian Accounting 

Standards.

3) Diesel transactions

 Diesel related derivative financial 

instruments held for trading purposes 

are recorded at their net fair value. 

4) Power Purchase Agreements

 Power Purchase Agreements are 

recorded at fair value and adjusted 

for any changes in market conditions 

for up to, but not exceeding, the 

independently available forward price 

curve (currently five years). Power 

Purchase Agreements are agreements 

for the sale and purchase of the energy 

exported from a generator, and of 

Renewable Energy Certificates and 

Green Certificates associated with 

the generation of energy.

 The Power Purchase Agreements 

are valued using a combination of 

data sources including current Ergon 

Energy trades, the Australian Financial 

Markets Association and other 

market intelligence. Ergon Energy 

has sufficient market information to 

reliably measure the value of these 

agreements in accordance with the 

requirements of Australian Accounting 

Standards.

5) Long term Energy Procurement 

Agreement (LEP)

 The LEP Agreement represents a 

derivative financial instrument that 

is measured at fair value through the 

Income Statements.

 Fair value is determined by using a 

combination of data sources including 

the LEP Deed, current Ergon Energy 

trades, the Australian Financial 

Markets Association and other market 

intelligence. 

6) Energy Certificates

 Renewable Energy Certificates, Gas 

Electricity Certificates and New South 

Wales (NSW) Greenhouse Abatement 

Certificates on hand and to be received 

in the future for trading are measured 

at fair value at the end of the financial 

year, adjusted for known market 

forces. 

 These energy certificates are valued 

using a combination of data sources 

including current Ergon Energy 

trades, the Australian Financial 

Markets Association and other 

market intelligence. Ergon Energy 

has sufficient market information to 

reliably measure the value of these 

agreements in accordance with the 

requirements of Australian Accounting 

Standards.

7) Embedded derivatives 

 Derivatives embedded in non-financial 

host contracts are measured at 

fair value with movements in fair 

value recognised in the Income 

Statement. Where the embedded 

derivative cannot be measured 

separately from the host contract,  

the entire contract is measured at 

fair value. 

(z) Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are 

recognised net of the amount of Goods 

and Services Tax (GST), except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 

from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In 

these circumstances, the GST is recognised 

as part of the cost of acquisition of the 

asset or the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the 

amount of GST included. The net amount 

of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 

the ATO is included as a current asset or 

liability in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow 

Statements on a gross basis. The GST 

components of cash flows arising from 

investing and financing activities which are 

recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 

classified as operating cash flows.

(aa) Dividends payable

A liability for dividends payable is 

recognised in the reporting period in 

which the dividends are declared for the 

entire undistributed amount. 

(ab) New accounting standards and  

 UIG Interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and 

UIG interpretations have been published 

that are not mandatory for 30 June 

2006 reporting periods. The Economic 

Entity’s assessment of the impact of 

these standards and interpretations is set  

out below.

(i)	 UIG 4	‘Determining	whether	an	

Arrangement	contains	a	Lease’	

and AASB 2005-5	‘Amendments	to	

Australian	Accounting	Standards	

[AASB 1 & AASB 139]’

UIG 4 is applicable to reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2006. 

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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The Economic Entity has not elected to 

adopt UIG 4 early. It will apply UIG 4 in its 

2007 financial statements. The Economic 

Entity will apply UIG 4 on the basis of 

facts and circumstances that exist as 

of 1 July 2006. Implementation of UIG 4 

(and associated amendments to AASB 1) 

is not expected to change the accounting 

for any of the Economic Entity’s current 

arrangements.

(ii)	 UIG 5	‘Rights	to	Interests	

Arising	from	Decommissioning,	

Restoration	and	Environmental	

Rehabilitation	Funds’	and 

AASB 2005-5	‘Amendments	

to	Australian	Accounting	

Standards	[AASB 1 & 139]’

The Economic Entity does not have any 

interests in decommissioning, restoration 

or environmental rehabilitation funds. 

As a result, this interpretation (and 

associated amendments to AASB 139) will 

not affect the Economic Entity’s financial 

statements.

(iii)	 UIG 6 ‘Liabilities	Arising	from	

Participating	in	a	Specified	

Market	–	Waste	Electrical	

and	Electronic	Equipment’

UIG 6 is applicable to annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after 1 December 

2006. The Economic Entity has not sold 

electronic or electrical equipment on the 

European market and has not incurred any 

associated liabilities. This interpretation 

will not affect the Economic Entity’s 

financial statements.

(iv)	 UIG 7	‘Applying	the	Restatement	

Approach	under	AASB	

129	Financial	Reporting	in	

Hyperinflationary	Economies’

The Economic Entity conducts its 

business in Australia, a country whose 

economic environment does not display 

the characteristics of hyperinflation and 

accordingly it has not applied AASB 129. 

As a result, this interpretation will not 

affect the Economic Entity’s financial 

statements.

(v)	 UIG 8	‘Scope	of	AASB	2’

The Economic Entity is a Government 

Owned Corporation and as such does 

not trade its shares. As a result, this 

interpretation will not affect the Economic 

Entity’s financial statements.

(vi)	 UIG 9	‘Reassessment	of		

Embedded	Derivatives’

UIG 9 is applicable to annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after 1 June 

2006. The interpretation prohibits the 

reassessment of embedded derivatives 

after the Economic Entity first becomes 

party to the contract, unless there is 

a change in the terms of the contract 

that significantly change the cash flows 

involved. Implementation of UIG 9 is not 

expected to change the accounting for 

any of the Economic Entity’s current 

arrangements.

(vii)	AASB 7	‘Financial	Instruments:	

Disclosures’	and	AASB 2005-10 

‘Amendments	to	Australian	

Accounting	Standards	[AASB 132, 

AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, 

AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, 

AASB 4, AASB 1023 &  

AASB 1038]’

AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 are applicable 

to annual reporting periods beginning on 

or after 1 January 2007. The Economic 

Entity has not adopted the standards 

early. Application of the standards will 

not affect any of the amounts in the 

financial statements but may impact 

the type of information disclosed in 

relation to the Economic Entity’s financial 

instruments.

(viii)		AASB 2005-1	‘Amendments	to	

Australian	Accounting	Standards’

The Economic Entity does not have material 

foreign currency risk relating to intragroup 

forecast transactions. As a result, this 

standard will not affect the Economic 

Entity’s financial statements.

(ix)	 AASB 2005-4	‘Amendments	to	

Australian	Accounting	Standards	

[AASB 139, AASB 132, AASB 1,  

AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]’

AASB 2005-4 is applicable to annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2006. The amendments to 

AASB 139 remove some of the flexibility 

surrounding designating financial assets 

and liabilities at fair value through the profit 

and loss. The Economic Entity currently 

does not have any material financial assets 

or liabilities which are impacted by these 

amendments. 

(x)	 AASB 2005-6	‘Amendments	

to	Australian	Accounting	

Standards	[AASB 3]’

The Economic Entity does not have any 

interests in business combinations involving 

entities or businesses under common 

control. As a result, this standard will 

not affect the Economic Entity’s financial 

statements.

(xi)	 AASB 2005-9	‘Amendments	

to	Australian	Accounting	

Standards	[AASB 4, AASB 1023, 

AASB 139 & AASB 132]’

AASB 2005-9 is applicable to annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2006. 

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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The amendments relate to the accounting 

for financial guarantee contracts. The 

Economic Entity has decided not to early 

adopt the standard and will instead apply 

the revised standards in the 30 June 2007 

financial statements. Given the Economic 

Entity’s low level of financial guarantee 

contracts, implementation of the standard 

is not expected to change the accounting 

for any of the Economic Entity’s current 

arrangements.

(xii)	AASB 2006-1	‘Amendments	

to	Australian	Accounting	

Standards [AASB 121]’

The Economic Entity does not have any 

interests in a foreign operation. As a result, 

this standard will not affect the Economic 

Entity’s financial statements.

(ac) Accounting estimates  

and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually 

evaluated and are based on historical 

experience and other factors, including 

expectations of future events that may 

have a financial impact on the entity and 

that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances.

The Economic Entity makes estimates and 

assumptions concerning the future. The 

resulting accounting estimates will, by 

definition, seldom equal the related actual 

results. The estimates and assumptions 

that have a significant risk of causing 

a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the 

next financial year are discussed below.

Defined benefit superannuation 

fund obligations

Various actuarial assumptions are utilised 

in the determination of the Economic 

Entity’s defined benefit superannuation 

fund obligations. These assumptions are 

discussed in note 16.

NOTE 1: Significant accounting policies (continued)

Electricity financial instruments 

measured at fair value

The Economic Entity enters into electricity 

financial instruments that are not traded 

in active markets. The fair value of these 

financial instruments, which includes 

contestable contracts, swaps, caps, 

and Renewable Energy Certificates, is 

determined using market based valuation 

methods. The Economic Entity has 

estimated fair value using these methods. 

It has taken into account the conditions 

existing at balance date and has used its 

judgment in the following areas:

 future price and volume 

estimation using in-house and  

off-the-shelf valuation models;

 credit margin estimation; and

 discounting for time value of 

money.
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Business segments

The Economic Entity is organised on a 

national basis into the following main 

business segments, based on the entities 

product and service type:

Distribution

Responsible for the electricity supply network 

and the distribution of electricity.

Retail

Electricity trading, electricity purchasing 

and supplying electricity to customers.

Other

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd operates in the retail gas 

market, Ergon Energy Utility Services Pty Ltd 

operates co-generation facilities and Ergon 

Energy Telecommunications Pty Ltd (trading 

as Nexium Telecommunications) operates 

in the telecommunications industry. 

Inter-segment pricing is determined on 

an arm’s length basis.

Geographical segments

The Economic Entity operates primarily in 

the State of Queensland and has additional 

operations in New South Wales, Victoria, 

South Australia and the Australian Capital 

Territory as part of its electricity retailing 

operations.

NOTE 2: Segment reporting

       Inter- 
       segment 
2006 - Consolidated Distribution Retail Other  elimination Total
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Sales to external customers 106,014 2,028,539 3,925 (11,030) 2,127,448
Intersegment sales 878,727 8,818 1,800 (880,032) 9,313

Total sales revenue 984,741 2,037,357 5,725 (891,062) 2,136,761
Other revenue 30,866 43,085 4,899 (4,432) 74,418

Total segment revenue 1,015,607 2,080,442 10,624 (895,494) 2,211,179

Segment result 254,545 52,041 3,794 (2,385) 307,995
Share of net profit or loss of equity  
accounted investments 8 - - - 8

Unallocated revenue less unallocated expenses     (95,004)

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax  
equivalent expense     212,999
Income tax equivalent expense     68,847

Profit after income tax equivalent expense     144,152

Assets 
Segment assets 4,966,665 1,029,773 22,301 (378,639) 5,640,100
Investments accounted for using the equity method 11 - - - 11

Unallocated assets     1,011,550

Total assets     6,651,661

Liabilities 

Segment liabilities 67,649 648,438 13,439 (216,186) 513,340

Unallocated liabilities     3,550,974

Total liabilities     4,064,314

Acquisitions of non-current assets 572,768 3,991 1,604 - 578,363
Depreciation and amortisation expense 234,802 3,279 591 - 238,672
Impairment of trade receivables 249 1,231 (79) - 1,401

Other non cash segment expenses 64,665 768 7 - 65,440
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       Inter- 
       segment 
2005 - Consolidated Distribution Retail Other  elimination Total
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Sales to external customers 96,887 1,953,623 1,221 - 2,051,731

Intersegment sales 701,366 49,188 1,514 (752,068) -

Total sales revenue 798,253 2,002,811 2,735 (752,068) 2,051,731
Other revenue/income 19,733 - 1,860 - 21,593

Total segment revenue/income 817,986 2,002,811 4,595 (752,068) 2,073,324

Segment result 209,796 53,906 1,103 (9,382) 255,423
Share of net profit or loss of equity  
accounted investments 2 - - - 2

Unallocated revenue less unallocated expenses     (113,535)

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax  

equivalent expense     141,890
Income tax equivalent expense     43,049

Profit after income tax equivalent expense     98,841

Assets 
Segment assets 4,416,283 613,808 18,506 (305,939) 4,742,658
Investments accounted for using the equity method 3 - - - 3

Unallocated assets     882,747

Total assets     5,625,408

Liabilities 
Segment liabilities 61,569 386,903 11,882 (124,343) 336,011

Unallocated liabilities     2,913,938

Total liabilities     3,249,949

Acquisitions of non-current assets 868,989 10,092 11,227 - 890,308
Depreciation and amortisation expense 194,279 1,930 279 - 196,488
Impairment of intangible assets - - 8,067 - 8,067
Impairment of trade receivables 218 1,483 (22) - 1,679
Other non cash segment expenses 32,693 (2,426) 6,594 - 36,861

NOTE 2: Segment reporting (continued)
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 3: Revenue

Revenue 

Sales revenue   1,747,055 1,808,838 923,051 746,281

Other revenue 

 Community service obligations  326,717 176,872 - -

 Commissions received  1,590 1,559 - -

 Non-refundable capital contributions  29,408 17,937 29,408 17,937

 Interest received  13,119 8,842 4,287 1,729

 Dividend income  9 9 2,822 34,012

 Other operating revenue  88,757 68,976 83,491 54,671

Total revenue   2,206,655 2,083,033 1,043,059 854,630

Other income 

 Fair value gains on financial instruments at fair value  38,650 - - -

 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  1,461 1,797 1,457 1,797

 Net foreign exchange gains  - 32 - 32

Total other income  40,111 1,829 1,457 1,829
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 4: Expenses

Profit before income tax equivalent expense includes  

the following specific expenses

Cost of sales   1,208,154 1,261,000 - -

Finance Costs: 

 Interest paid or payable  132,180 101,229 130,698 99,903

 Interest paid or payable – related parties  - - 230 939

Total finance costs  132,180 101,229 130,928 100,842

Depreciation 

 Supply system assets  149,290 148,637 149,290 148,637

 Power station assets  9,127 8,129 8,640 7,870

 Other buildings  7,209 2,932 7,209 2,932

 Other property, plant and equipment  45,493 24,460 45,119 24,188

Total depreciation  211,119 184,158 210,258 183,627 

Amortisation  

 Intangible assets  27,553 12,330 24,545 10,652

Total amortisation  27,553 12,330 24,545 10,652

Impairment 

 Trade receivables  1,401 1,679 169 197

 Intangible assets  - 8,067 - 8,067

Total impairment  1,401 9,746 169 8,264

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairments  240,073 206,234 234,972 202,543

Loss on disposal of non-current assets  816 504 815 504

Increase in provisions  36,615 67,295 35,762 34,893

Rental expense on operating leases: 

 Minimum lease payments  5,346 3,838 4,892 3,082

Total rental expense on operating leases  5,346 3,838 4,892 3,082

Defined contribution superannuation expense  13,919 11,191 12,682 10,165
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   Note Consolidated The Company
    2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 5: Taxation

(a) Income tax equivalent expense     
Current tax expense   -   -  - - 
Deferred tax expense   68,847 43,049  45,712 27,170

Income tax equivalent expense   68,847 43,049  45,712  27,170 

Deferred income tax expense included in income  
tax expense comprises: 
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets  13(a)  (61,934) (55,743) (33,324) (43,864)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities  13(b)  130,781 98,792  79,036 71,034

Income tax expense attributable to profit from  
continuing operations   68,847 43,049  45,712 27,170 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent  
 expense/(benefit) to prima facie tax payable 
Net profit from ordinary activities before income  
tax equivalent expense  212,999 141,890  154,131 123,587 
Prima facie income tax equivalent expense on  
operating profit at 30% (2005 – 30%)  63,900 42,567 46,239 37,076
Decrease in income tax equivalent expense  
Dividends receivable   - -  (847) (10,204)
Increase in income tax equivalent expense  
Non-deductible expenses   4,674 210  320 98
Other     273 272  - 200 

     68,847 43,049 45,712 27,170
Under/(over) provision in prior years  -  -  -  - 

Income tax equivalent expense   68,847 43,049 45,712 27,170

(c) Deferred tax recognised directly in equity  
Revaluation property, plant and equipment   40,030 315,265 40,030 315,265
Recognition of defined benefit - surplus/(deficit)   26,854 (3,748) 26,854 (3,748)
Other    638 - 637 -

     67,522 311,517 67,521 311,517

Net acquisition through business combinations  3,507 - - -

NOTE 6: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand  23,377 12,601 5,209 1,695
Short term deposits  199,550 247,431 61,727 86,818

Total cash and cash equivalents  222,927 260,032 66,936 88,513

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement  222,927 260,032 66,936 88,513

     222,927 260,032 66,936 88,513
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 7: Trade and other receivables

Current 

Trade receivables  271,438 237,427 23,461 33,406

Provision for doubtful receivables  (5,332) (4,749) (224) (362)

     266,106 232,678 23,237 33,044

Community service obligations  38,097 26,522 - -

Receivables due from controlled entities  - - 128,296 137,611

Receivables due from jointly controlled entities   23,569 11,126 23,569 11,126

Other receivables and prepayments  13,108 46,347 8,359 4,517

Total current trade and other receivables  340,880 316,673 183,461 186,298

Non-current 

Electricity sales receivable - contestable customer  - 4,615 - -

Power purchase agreements receivable  - 66,845 - -

Loans to controlled entities  - - 60,533 3,000

Loans to associated entities  708 596 708 596

Receivable from controlled entities – tax related  - - 55,140 35,361

Other receivables and prepayments  800 - 800 -

Total non-current trade and other receivables  1,508 72,056 117,181 38,957

The fair value of all receivable amounts is consistent with the carrying value.

Non-cancellable operating lease receivable commitments

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end 

of the financial year but not recognised as receivables: 

 - not later than one year  263 290 263 290

 - later than one year and not later than five years  691 674 691 674

 - later than five years  - - - -

     954 964 954 964

NOTE 8: Inventories

Current 

Maintenance and construction stock, at net realisable value  60,295 48,264 60,295 48,264

Inventory held for resale, at cost  - 20 - -

Total inventories  60,295 48,284 60,295 48,264
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 9: Financial assets

Current 

At fair value 

Market trading assets  30,646 - - -

Energy certificates  32,307 - - -

Long-term energy procurement  2,931 - - -

Diesel related derivatives  2,921 - - -

Electricity sales receivable-contestable customer  45,144 - - -

Power purchase agreement receivable  217,752 - - -

Total current financial assets  331,701 - - -

Non-current 

Investments in shares 

 - jointly controlled entities, at cost  - - 1 1

 - other, at cost  - 100 - -

Investments in controlled entities – at recoverable amount  - - 148,223 148,223

Less: impairment provision  - - (9,549) (9,549)

     - - 138,674 138,674

Total non-current financial assets  - 100 138,675 138,675

The carrying values of investments in controlled entities have been assessed by the directors as at 30 June 2006, to ensure that the values 

are not in excess of their expected recoverable amount.

NOTE 10: Other assets

Current 

GST Receivable  1,969 - 885 -

Market trading assets and environmental certificates  - 61,449 - -

Other    21 - 21 -

Total current other assets  1,990 61,449 906 -

Non-current 

Market trading assets and environmental certificates  - 2,265 - -

Total non-current other assets  - 2,265 - -
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 11: Property, plant and equipment

Supply system 

At directors’ valuation  8,587,639 7,945,913 8,587,639 7,945,913

Less accumulated depreciation  (4,279,094) (4,062,045) (4,279,094) (4,062,045)

     4,308,545 3,883,868 4,308,545 3,883,868

Power stations 

At directors’ valuation  199,987 162,729 184,981 148,502

Less accumulated depreciation  (60,636) (48,228) (59,890) (47,969)

     139,351 114,501 125,091 100,533

Land 

At directors’ valuation  65,417 51,284 65,417 51,284

Buildings 

At directors’ valuation  142,181 148,386 142,181 148,386

Less accumulated depreciation  (78,741) (76,482) (78,741) (76,482)

     63,440 71,904 63,440 71,904

Other property, plant and equipment 

At directors’ valuation  371,485 311,730 367,476 308,766

Less accumulated depreciation  (189,101) (154,779) (186,260) (152,483)

     182,384 156,951 181,216 156,283

Work in progress 

At cost    387,054 260,988 377,762 258,259

Total property, plant and equipment  5,146,191 4,539,496 5,121,471 4,522,131

If property, plant and equipment were stated on a historical cost basis, the carrying amount at 30 June 2006 would have been 

$2,633,430,114 for Supply system assets, $118,496,704 for Power stations, $48,268,744 for Land, $49,487,481 for Buildings and $139,851,397 

for Other property, plant and equipment.

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:

Supply system 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  3,883,868 2,759,906 3,883,868 2,759,906

Transfer of assets between categories  (4,013) (2,021) (4,013) (2,021)

Additions   455,958 316,721 455,958 316,721

Disposals   (18,767) (760) (18,767) (760)

Revaluation increments less decrements  140,789 958,659 140,789 958,659

Depreciation expense  (149,290) (148,637) (149,290) (148,637)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  4,308,545 3,883,868 4,308,545 3,883,868
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 11: Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Power stations 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  114,501 92,454 100,533 89,454
Transfer of assets between categories  2,005 2,021 2,005 2,021
Additions   27,655 21,878 26,876 10,651
Disposals   (552) (28) (552) (28)
Revaluation increments less decrements  4,869 6,305 4,869 6,305
Depreciation expense  (9,127) (8,129) (8,640) (7,870)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  139,351 114,501 125,091 100,533

Land 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  51,284 35,887 51,284 35,887
Transfer of assets between categories  2,283 - 2,283 -
Additions   10,271 499 10,271 499
Disposals   (317) - (317) -
Revaluation increments less decrements  1,896 14,898 1,896 14,898

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  65,417 51,284 65,417 51,284

Buildings 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  71,904 58,185 71,904 58,185
Transfer of assets between categories  (4,249) - (4,249) -
Additions   2,098 6,293 2,098 6,293
Disposals   (956) (29) (956) (29)
Revaluation increments less decrements  1,852 10,387 1,852 10,387
Depreciation expense  (7,209) (2,932) (7,209) (2,932)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  63,440 71,904 63,440 71,904

Other property, plant and equipment 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  156,951 96,578 156,283 96,174
Transfer of assets between categories  4,987 23 5,004 23
Acquisitions through business combinations  98 - - -
Additions   65,000 38,753 64,205 38,213
Disposals   (3,737) (2,438) (3,735) (2,434)
Revaluation increments less decrements  4,578 48,495 4,578 48,495
Depreciation expense  (45,493) (24,460) (45,119) (24,188)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  182,384 156,951 181,216 156,283

Work in progress 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  260,988 132,386 258,259 124,879
Transfer to property, plant and equipment, intangible  
assets and current assets  (523,327) (360,046) (518,115) (341,481)
Acquisitions through business combinations  59 - - -
Additions   649,334 488,648 637,618 474,861

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  387,054 260,988 377,762 258,259

Total property, plant & equipment  5,146,191 4,539,496 5,121,471 4,522,131
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 12: Intangible assets

Computer software - at cost  87,314 65,441 75,676 57,829
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment  (57,755) (26,053) (53,963) (24,438)

Net carrying value  29,559 39,388 21,713 33,391
Goodwill - at cost  79,833 - - -

Net carrying value  79,833 - - -
Other intangible assets - at cost  19,240 1,197 - -
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment  (1,191) (1,002) - -

Net carrying value  18,049 195 - -

Total intangible assets  127,441 39,583 21,713 33,391

Reconciliations 
Computer software 
Cost at the beginning of the financial year  65,441 70,907 57,829 70,286
Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the  
beginning of the financial year  (26,053) (28,980) (24,438) (28,497)

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  39,388 41,927 33,391 41,789
Transfer to assets between categories  (440) (23) (440) (24)
Acquisitions through business combinations  437 - - -
Additions   16,556 17,335 13,307 10,345
Impairment charge  - (8,067) - (8,067)
Amortisation charge  (26,382) (11,784) (24,545) (10,652)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year   29,559 39,388 21,713 33,391

Goodwill 
Costs at the beginning of the financial year  - - - -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the  
beginning of the financial year  - - - -

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  - - - -
Acquisitions through business combinations  79,833 - - -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  79,833 - - -

Other intangible assets 
Cost at the beginning of the financial year  214 1,196 - -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the beginning  
of the financial year  (19) (455) - -

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  195 741 - -
Acquisitions through business combinations  18,200 - - -
Additions   825 - - -
Amortisation expense  (1,171) (546) - -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year   18,049 195 - -

Total intangible assets  127,441 39,583 21,713 33,391
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 13: Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities

(a) Deferred tax equivalent assets  

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:  

Provisions   76,120 58,244 52,727 45,698

Tax losses    195,067 185,098 217,924 190,675

Derivatives   63,721 27,594 - -

Accrued expenses   9,507 9,451 1,155 1,898 

Other     57 2,151 36 247

      344,472 282,538 271,842 238,518

Tax losses transferred to wholly owned entities   - -  (55,139) (35,359)

Tax losses transferred from wholly owned entities   - -  31,860 29,782

     344,472 282,538 248,563 232,941

Amounts recognised directly in equity: 

Recognition of defined benefit - (surplus)/deficit    - 2,929  - 2,929

Other    (639) - (637) -

     (639) 2,929 (637) 2,929

Acquisition through business combinations  2,504 - - -

Net deferred tax equivalent assets   346,337 285,467 247,926 235,870

(b) Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:    

Fixed assets    529,573 449,798 528,545 449,788

Derivatives   129,723 80,889 - -

Accrued income   6,942 4,977  1,518 1,239 

Other     207 - - -

     666,445 535,664 530,063 451,027

Amounts recognised directly in equity:  

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment   355,296 315,265 355,296 315,265

Recognition of defined benefit - (surplus)/deficit   23,924 - 23,924 -

     379,220 315,265 379,220 315,265

Acquisition through business combinations  6,010 - - -

Net deferred tax equivalent liabilities  1,051,675 850,929  909,283 766,292
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    2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 14: Trade and other payables
Current 
Trade payables  138,286 101,946 56,692 48,692
Accrued interest and charges  30,597 24,990 30,597 24,990
Power purchase agreements payable  - 36,698 - -
Dividends payable  87,482 82,111 87,482 82,111
Other payables and accruals  49,376 48,965 22,030 29,478
Amounts payable to controlled entities  - - 344 2,950
Amounts payable to jointly controlled entities  7,333 5,970 7,333 5,970

Total current payables  313,074 300,680 204,478 194,191

Non-current 
Power purchase agreements payable  - 54,549 - -
Other payables  281 132 - -
Payable to controlled entities – tax related  - - 31,860 29,781

Total non-current payables  281 54,681 31,860 29,781

NOTE 15: Interest bearing liabilities
Current 
Unsecured liabilities 
Customer and other repayable deposits  525 725 439 658
Lease incentives  571 571 - -
Other    500 - - -

Total current interest bearing liabilities  1,596 1,296 439 658

Non-current 
Unsecured liabilities 
Queensland Treasury Corporation loans  2,129,631 1,742,631 2,129,631 1,742,631
Customer and other repayable deposits  22,052 24,437 741 996
Lease incentives  3,043 3,613 - -

Total non-current interest bearing liabilities  2,154,726 1,770,681 2,130,372 1,743,627

The market value of Queensland Treasury Corporation loans at 30 June 2006 was $2,143,440,483 (2005: $1,774,028,675). The market value 
of the Queensland Treasury Corporation loan is the price that the bonds could be bought for at balance date as advised by Queensland 
Treasury Corporation. 

Customer and other repayable deposits
Customer and other repayable deposits represent the security deposits received by the Economic Entity in relation to electricity supply to 
certain customers. Interest is charged on the deposits and credited to the customer’s account annually. 

Lease incentives
The lease incentive is not required to be secured whilst the lessee is an entity owned by Ergon Energy Corporation Limited. 

Financing arrangements
The consolidated entity has access to the following lines of credit: 
Working capital facility 
 - Facility utilised at the end of the financial year  - 24,127 - 24,127
 - Facility not utilised at the end of the financial year  150,000 125,873 150,000 125,873

Total facility available  150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
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     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 16: Employee benefits

Non-current assets 

Retirement benefit asset (a) 72,380 - 72,380 -

Total non-current employee benefits  72,380 - 72,380 -

Current liabilities 

Employee benefits  37,646 43,859 34,038 42,691

Total current employee benefits  37,646 43,859 34,038 42,691

Non-current liabilities 

Employee benefits  85,243 79,669 83,620 77,983

Defined benefit obligation liability (a) - 9,765 - 9,765

Total non-current employee benefits  85,243 89,434 83,620 87,748

Employees receiving performance payments

Aggregate at-risk performance remuneration  4,259 4,092 3,250 3,206

Total fixed salaries and wages payments  33,808 40,341 27,143 32,217

Total payments to employees  38,067 44,433 30,393 35,423

     2006 2005 2006 2005

Number of employees  Number Number Number Number

Employees receiving performance payments  262 356 209 289

Employees at the end of the financial year  4,040 3,628 3,907 3,485

 

(a) Defined benefit obligation

Entities within the Economic Entity contribute to an industry, multiple employer superannuation fund, the Electricity Supply Industry 

Superannuation Fund (Qld). Members, after serving a qualifying period, are entitled to benefits from this fund on retirement, 

resignation, retrenchment, disability or death.

The Defined Benefit Account of this fund provides defined lump sum benefits based upon years of service and final average salary. 

Employee contributions to the fund are based on various percentages of their gross salaries.

The Economic Entity expects to contribute $5,512,000 to its defined benefit plans in 2007.

The movement in the defined benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Net deficit/(surplus) for defined benefit obligations at the  

beginning of the financial year  9,765 (56,865) 9,765 (56,865)

Contributions received  (4,252) (3,263) (4,252) (3,263)

Expense recognised in the income statement   11,604 1,467 11,604 1,467

Closing adjustment from actuarial assessment  (89,497) 68,426 (89,497) 68,426

Net deficit/(surplus) for defined benefit obligations at the  

end of the financial year   (72,380) 9,765 (72,380) 9,765
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 16: Employee benefits (continued)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s  

obligations in respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations  (405,490) (419,224) (405,490) (419,224)

Fair value of plan assets  477,870 409,459 477,870 409,459

Net asset/(liability) arising from defined benefit obligations  72,380 (9,765) 72,380 (9,765)

The Economic Entity and the Company have used the AASB 1.20A exemption  

and disclosed amounts under AASB 119.120A(p) above for each annual  

reporting period prospectively from the transition date.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation  419,224 303,506 419,224 303,506

Service cost   22,298 11,821 22,298 11,821

Interest cost   17,473 16,699 17,473 16,699

Member contributions  6,858 5,262 6,858 5,262

Actuarial losses and (gains)  (47,964) 91,726 (47,964) 91,726

Benefits payments, expenses and tax  (12,399) (9,790) (12,399) (9,790)

Closing defined benefit obligation  405,490 419,224 405,490 419,224

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets  409,459 360,371 409,459 360,371

Expected return on assets  28,167 27,053 28,167 27,053

Actuarial gains and (losses)  41,533 23,300 41,533 23,300

Contributions by employer  4,252 3,263 4,252 3,263

Contributions by members  6,858 5,262 6,858 5,262

Benefits payments, expenses and tax  (12,399) (9,790) (12,399) (9,790)

Closing fair value of plan assets  477,870 409,459 477,870 409,459

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

Cash    5% 8% 5% 8%

Fixed interest   23% 17% 23% 17%

Australian shares  29% 30% 29% 30%

Alternatives   3% 3% 3% 3%

International equities  29% 31% 29% 31%

Unlisted property  11% 11% 11% 11%

Total    100% 100% 100% 100%
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 16: Employee benefits (continued)

Expenses recognised in the Income Statement

The following amounts are included in employee expenses:

Current service costs  22,298 11,821 22,298 11,821

Interest on obligation  17,473 16,699 17,473 16,699

Expected return on plan assets  (28,167) (27,053) (28,167) (27,053)

     11,604 1,467 11,604 1,467

Actual return on plan assets  69,700 50,353 69,700 50,353

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages) are:

Discount rate at 30 June  4.9% 4.3% 4.9% 4.3%

Expected return on plan assets at 30 June  6.5% 7.0% 6.5% 7.0%

Future salary increases  4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%

The overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is 7.0% per annum. The expected long-term rate of return is based on 

the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. The return is based exclusively on 

historical returns, without adjustments.

(b) Surplus/(deficit) of defined benefit superannuation fund

Surplus/(deficit)

The following is a summary of the most recent financial position of the Electricity Supply Industry Superannuation Fund  

calculated in accordance with AAS 25 Financial Reporting by Superannuation Plans:

       Last  

       reporting date $’000

Accrued benefits    1/07/2005 (431,326)

Net market value of plan assets    1/07/2005 493,677

Net surplus/(deficit)    1/07/2005 62,351

Contribution recommendation

For the financial year ended 30 June 2006, the Company paid 3.1% of defined benefit members salaries. The Company contribution 

rate for defined benefit members will increase to 5.0% effective 1 July 2006.

Funding method

The method used to determine the employer contribution recommendations at the last actuarial review was the Aggregate 

method. The method adopted affects the timing of the cost to the employer.

Under the Aggregate method, the future contribution rates are determined, and are expected to be sufficient to fund the  

difference between the value of future benefits for existing defined benefit members and the value of plan assets attributable  

to defined benefit members, over the future working lifetime of the existing defined benefit members.
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Contribution recommendation assumptions

Contribution recommendations are based on a funding method. Under this method future contributions are determined so that 

their present value is expected to be sufficient to fund the difference between:

 the value of all future benefits for existing defined benefit members; and

 the value of fund assets attributable to defined benefit members.

The principal economic assumptions used in making these recommendations include:

Expected return on plan assets in year 1  14.0%

Expected return on plan assets  7.0%

Future salary increases  5.0%

Nature of asset/liability

The Electricity Supply Industry Superannuation Fund does not impose a legal liability on the Company to cover any deficit that 

exists in the Fund. If the Fund were wound up, there would be no legal obligation on the Company to make good any shortfall.  

The trust deed of the Fund states that if the Fund winds up, after the payment of all costs and member benefits, any remaining 

assets are to be distributed to participating employers.

(c) Defined contribution plans

The Economic Entity makes contributions to defined contribution schemes in various superannuation funds. The amount recognised 

as expense was $13,918,944 for the year ended 30 June 2006 (2005: $11,191,486).

    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 17: Provisions

Current 

Restructure   438 7,014 438 7,014

Environmental certificate acquittal  - 27,036 - -

System usage charge over recovery  23,500 41,052 23,500 41,052

Competitive neutrality  2,536 1,785 2,536 1,785

Other    13,983 2,098 13,121 784

Total current provisions  40,457 78,985 39,595 50,635

Non-current 

Environmental certificate acquittal  - 6,435 - -

System usage charge over recovery  31,436 - 31,436 -

Other    323 594 323 595

Total non-current provisions  31,759 7,029 31,759 595
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 17: Provisions (continued)
Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of provision, except for employee entitlements, are set out below:
Restructure 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  7,014 18,364 7,014 18,364
Provisions made during the financial year  - - - -
Provisions used during the financial year  (6,576) (11,350) (6,576) (11,350)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  438 7,014 438 7,014

System usage charge over recovery 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  41,052 16,758 41,052 16,758
Provisions made during the financial year  13,884 24,294 13,884 24,294
Provisions used during the financial year  - - - -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  54,936 41,052 54,936 41,052

 
Competitive neutrality 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  1,785 1,780 1,785 1,780
Provisions made during the financial year  9,508 6,755 9,508 6,755
Provisions used during the financial year  (8,757) (6,750) (8,757) (6,750)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  2,536 1,785 2,536 1,785

 
Other 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  2,694 5,889 1,380 4,538
Provisions made during the financial year  13,223 215 12,370 134
Provisions used during the financial year  (1,564) (3,412) (632) (3,293)
Provisions reversed during the financial year  (47) - - -
Net transfer   - - 326 -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  14,306 2,692 13,444 1,379

NOTE 18: Financial liabilities
Current 
At fair value 
Market trading liabilities  28,509 - - -
Power purchase agreement payable  190,107 - - -
Long-term Energy Procurement  11,020 - - -
Environmental certificate acquittal  71,833 - - -

Total current financial liabilities  301,469 - - -

Non-current 
Hedges 
Cash flow hedge payable  4 - 4 -

Total non-current financial liabilities  4 - 4 -
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 19: Other liabilities

Current 

Market trading liabilities  - 13,964 - -

Unearned capital contributions  40,198 26,145 40,198 26,145 

GST     2,091 1,463 740 1,463

Other    1,395 1,016 943 1,016

Total current other liabilities  43,684 42,588 41,881 28,624

Non-current 

Market trading liabilities  - 3,105 - -

Other    2,700 6,682 - -

Total non-current other liabilities  2,700 9,787 - -

NOTE 20: Contributed equity

Share capital

26 fully paid ordinary A class shares  - - - -

1,341,581,738 fully paid ordinary B class shares  1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405

Total share capital  1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405

Movement in share capital

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405 1,242,405

NOTE 21: Reserves and retained profits

(a) Reserves

Asset revaluation reserve  1,145,213 1,051,809 1,145,213 1,051,809

Cash flow hedging reserve  (4) - (4) -

Total reserves  1,145,209 1,051,809 1,145,209 1,051,809

Movements: 

Asset revaluation reserve 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  1,051,809 328,330 1,051,809 328,330

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment, net of tax  93,404 723,479 93,404 723,479

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  1,145,213 1,051,809 1,145,213 1,051,809

Cash flow hedging reserve 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  - - - -

Revaluation of cash flow hedges, net of tax  (4) - (4) -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  (4) - (4) -
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 21: Reserves and retained profits (continued)

(b) Retained profits 

Retained profits  199,733 81,245 136,001 53,043

Movements: 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  81,245 113,066 53,043 87,288

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans recognised  

directly in equity, net of tax  62,659 (48,551) 62,659 (48,551)

Discount of financial instruments  (203) - - -

Losses    (638) - (638) -

Net profit for the financial year  144,152 98,841 108,419 96,417

Net movement in provision for dividends  (87,482) (82,111) (87,482) (82,111)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  199,733 81,245 136,001 53,043

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve relates to property, plant and equipment measured at fair value in accordance with applicable 

Australian Accounting Standards.

Cash flow hedging reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are recognised directly 

in equity, as described in note 1(y)(i).

NOTE 22: Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, interest rate, price and currency risks arises in the normal course of the consolidated entity’s business. 

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

(a) Financial risk management

Credit	risk

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties to meet their obligations under the respective contracts at 

maturity.

The Economic Entity manages its credit risks by having established and maintained an appropriate credit review process. 

Furthermore, the Economic Entity minimises concentration of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of 

retail customers and limiting credit to any individual customer.

Credit settlement risk associated with electricity market trading is controlled by establishing approved credit limits with only 

those counterparties that have an appropriate credit rating, as determined by a recognised credit rating agency. The relevant 

counterparties are principally large banks and other electricity corporations.

At balance date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk other than that disclosed at note 22(c). The maximum  

exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including derivative financial instruments,  

in the Balance Sheet.
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NOTE 22: Financial instruments (continued)

Interest	rate	risk

As the Economic Entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 

independent of changes in market interest rates.

Long term borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation include both a fixed and floating interest rate. Floating interest 

rate borrowings expose the Economic Entity to cash flow interest rate risk while fixed interest borrowings expose the Economic 

Entity to fair value interest rate risk.

Other liabilities exposing the Economic Entity to interest rate risk include the repayable deposits (both fixed and floating interest 

exposure) and the lease incentives (fixed interest rate).

The Economic Entity’s exposure to interest rate risk is detailed in the table at note 22(b) below.

Price	risk

Electricity

Electricity price risk is the risk of an adverse financial outcome resulting from a change in the price of electricity in the National 

Electricity Market. This can be a change in the electricity pool price or a change in the forward price of electricity. Exposures 

mainly arise from positions in Wholesale Contracts, Contestable Customer Contracts, Franchise load or Power Purchase 

Agreement Contracts.

The Economic Entity uses derivative financial instruments to manage its Electricity price risk, consumer variable volume risk and  

cash flow risk as well as hedge exposure to pool price fluctuations and against the committed and anticipated electricity purchases. 

The hedge contracts are designated against a portfolio of customer electricity sale contracts. The hedge contracts are valued at 

fair value and therefore hedge accounting is not employed.

Diesel

Diesel price risk is the risk of an adverse financial outcome resulting from a change in the price of diesel fuel oil. This can arise 

from a change in the spot or forward price of diesel and foreign exchange rates.

Ergon Energy has a diesel price exposure from its purchase of fuel for its remote generation and through the supply of risk 

management services to contestable customers who use diesel in their operations.

The instruments that Ergon Energy used in these transactions are Diesel swaps, Diesel options and Foreign exchange hedge 

instruments (where there is exposure to foreign currency on diesel options/swaps).

Foreign	currency	risk

The Economic Entity purchases certain component parts with the purchase price denominated in a foreign currency. In order to 

protect against exchange rate movements, the Economic Entity enters into forward exchange contracts to purchase the relevant 

foreign currency.

The Economic Entity’s foreign currency exposure is detailed in note 22(d) below.

Liquidity	risk

Liquidity risk associated with electricity market trading is controlled by National Electricity Market Management Company Limited 

whereby all market participants are required to deliver irrevocable bank guarantees as security for timely settlement. These 

guarantees are held for and on behalf of all participants thereby limiting exposure to liquidity risk.
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NOTE 22: Financial instruments (continued)

Where entities within the Economic Entity enter into contracts external to the regulated market, such contracts are limited in 

terms of exposure and value. The contracts are entered into with only those counterparties that have an appropriate credit rating 

as determined by a recognised credit rating agency. All contracts contain credit limit clauses.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding 

through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close-out market positions. Due to the dynamic 

nature of the underlying businesses, the Economic Entity aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines 

available. Available lines of funding are disclosed in note 15.

(b) Interest rate risk

The following table indicates the effective interest rates on the Economic Entity’s financial assets and liabilities at the balance 

date and the periods in which they reprice or mature.

         Weighted 

    Note Floating     average 

     Interest Rate 1 year or less 1 to 5 years Over 5 years  interest rate

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 %

2006

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 222,830 - - - 6.02

     222,830 - - -

Financial Liabilities

Repayable deposits 15 21,484 108 532 79 4.21

Loans   14,15 175,406 500 1,984,823 - 5.71

Lease incentives 15 - 571 2,282 761 5.00

     196,890 1,179 1,987,637 840

2005

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 259,682 - - - 5.72

     259,682 - - -

Financial liabilities

Repayable deposits 15 23,968 151 515 215 4.26

Loans   14,15 130,872 - 1,444,882 191,867 5.58

Lease incentives 15 - 571 2,282 1,331 5.00

     154,840 722 1,447,679 193,413
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NOTE 22: Financial instruments (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis

At 30 June 2006, it is estimated that an increase of the variable interest rate of one percentage point would result in an increase 

in the Economic Entity’s profit before tax of $259,000 (2005:$1,048,000).

(c) Credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk that arise from derivative instruments exist for groups of counterparties when they have similar 

economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes 

in economic or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk on electricity derivatives are indicated in the following table by 

percentage of the total balance receivable from counterparties in the specified categories:

Counterparty Classification       2006

          %

Queensland Government-owned electricity entities     26

New South Wales Government-owned electricity entities     17

Other entities      57

The above credit risk exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral or security. Receivables due from major 

counterparties are regularly monitored.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Economic Entity purchases certain component parts with the purchase price denominated in a foreign currency. In order  

to protect against exchange rate movements, the Economic Entity has entered into forward exchange contracts to purchase  

Great Britain Pounds.

The terms of these contracts are as follows:

Forward contracts to hedge expected future purchases

Maturity Sell Australian Dollars Average Exchange Rate Net Fair Value

    2006 2005  2006 2005 2006 2005

    $’000 $’000   $’000 $’000

Buy Great Britain Pounds 

0-6 months  715 2,176 0.4030 0.3972 - (136)

6-12 months  - 750 - 0.3842 - (70)

(e) Fair value

The net fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount at which the asset could be exchanged, or liability 

settled in a current transaction between willing parties after allowing for transaction costs.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are not materially different from their estimated net fair values 

at the end of the financial year, unless otherwise stated.

Financial assets and liabilities not marked to market and classified as non-current are discounted to determine the fair value 

using a risk free interest rate where the impact of discounting is considered to be material.
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 23: Commitments
Capital and other expenditure commitments
Estimated capital and other expenditure contracted for at the  
end of the financial year is payable as follows:
- Not later than one year  131,302 126,219 126,010 121,794
- Later than one year but not later than five years  93,875 68,037 84,890 57,514
- Later than five years  6,212 7,578 - -

     231,389 201,834 210,900 179,308

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the  
financial year but not recognised as liabilities payable:
- Not later than one year  6,882 3,910 3,095 956
- Later than one year but not later than five years  19,533 13,308 7,328 1,923
- Later than five years  5,692 7,666 1,271 101

     32,107 24,884 11,694 2,980

NOTE 24: Contingencies

(a) Legal Claims
A number of common law claims are pending against entities within the Economic Entity. In each case, a writ has been served 
and the entity is at various stages of defending the actions. Liability is not admitted and all claims will be defended. The total 
amount of these claims net of insurance recoveries is $2,280,000 (2005: $1,231,177).

(b) Guarantees
Bank guarantees amounting to $603,821 (2005: $211,565) have been issued to various parties in connection with the Company’s 
non-regulated contracting services operations. These guarantees are supported by counter indemnities to the Queensland 
Treasury Corporation from the Company totalling $2,500,000 (2005: $2,400,000).

In order to participate in the electricity market, entities within the Economic Entity were required to deliver acceptable security as 
collateral for their obligations arising as a consequence of normal trading. Security, in the form of payment guarantees totalling 
$169,300,000 (2005: $124,600,000) have been issued by Queensland Treasury Corporation to the National Electricity Market 
Management Company Limited. A further $2,000,000 has been issued by ANZ bank to the National Electricity Market Management 
Company Limited relating to a subsidiary. These guarantees are supported by counter indemnities to the Queensland Treasury 
Corporation from the Company totalling $295,000,000 (2005: $295,000,000).

A subsidiary has provided bank guarantees of $46,939 in favour of the owners of premises rented by subsidiaries and $5,003,945 
in bank guarantees as credit support facilities for suppliers.

(c) EA North Queensland Pty Ltd
EA North Queensland Pty Ltd has guaranteed to pay rent due by JMC Logistics Pty Ltd (JMC) if JMC defaults on those amounts 
due. The maximum rental payable is $170,989 (2005: $407,994).

(d) Environmental
The consolidated entity provides for all known environmental liabilities. While the directors believe that, based upon current 
information, its current provisions for environmental rehabilitation are adequate, there can be no assurance that material 
new provisions will not be required as a result of new information or regulatory requirements with respect to known sites or 
identification of new remedial obligations at other sites. 
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NOTE 25: Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2006 include the following controlled entities:

All of the following entities are incorporated / formed in Australia.   Percentage Interest Held  

      by the Economic Entity

The Company:

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited

Controlled Entities:

EA North Queensland Pty Ltd    100%

Ergon Energy Gas Pty Ltd    100%

Vantage + Utilities Trust    100%

Ergon Energy Utility Services Pty Ltd    100%

Ergon Energy Telecommunications Pty Ltd    100%

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd, and its controlled entities:    100%

 Ergon Energy (Victoria) Pty Ltd    100%

 Northern Electricity Retail Corporation Pty Ltd    100%

 Australian Energy Ltd, and its controlled entities:    100%

  Powerdirect Pty Ltd    100%

  Australian Energy Services Pty Ltd    100%

The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

 

NOTE 26: Business combinations

(a) Summary of acquisition

On 24 April 2006 Ergon Energy Pty Ltd acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Australian Energy Ltd. The consolidated 

group of Australian Energy Ltd contains Powerdirect Pty Ltd and Australian Energy Services Pty Ltd. Australian Energy Ltd was 

involved in the retail sale of electricity to small to medium sized business markets.

The acquired business contributed revenues of $37,862,656 and net profit of $3,452,516 to the Economic Entity for the period 

from 24 April 2006 to 30 June 2006. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2005, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit 

for the year ended 30 June 2006 would have been $2,376,963,752 and $141,974,675 respectively. 

Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill are as follows:

     Consolidated

      2006 2005

       $'000 $'000

Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below):

 Cash paid    100,976 -

 Direct costs relating to the acquisition    1,339 -

Total purchase consideration     102,315 -

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer to (c) below)    22,482 -

Goodwill (refer to note 12)    79,833 -
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 26: Business combinations (continued)

(b) Purchase consideration
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration  102,315 - - -
Less: Balances-acquired
Cash    4,695 - - -

Bank overdraft  - - - -

     4,695 - - -

Outflow of cash  97,620 - - -

(c) Assets and liabilities acquired
The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:
     Acquiree’s Fair
     carrying Value Fair
     amount Adjustments Value
     $’000 $’000 $’000

Current assets
Cash     4,696 - 4,696
Receivables    27,034 - 27,034
Financial assets   7,347 - 7,347
Other assets    1,713 (1,378) 335

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment   98 - 98
Intangible assets   496 18,200 18,696
Deferred tax equivalents asset   2,504 - 2,504
Current liabilities
Payables     (24,145) - (24,145)
Financial liabilities    (5,293) - (5,293)
Interest-bearing liabilities   (2,000) - (2,000)
Provisions    (779) - (779)
Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax equivalents liability   (6,011) - (6,011)

Net assets    5,660 16,822 22,482

Minority interests     -

Net identifiable assets acquired     22,482

Customer contracts and customer relationships were identified as intangible assets arising on acquisition and have been detailed 

in the above table.

Goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired business and synergies expected to arise after the Company’s acquisition 

of Australian Energy Ltd. The fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired are based on the purchase price allocation method 

using discounted cash flows. No acquisition provisions were created.
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 27: Investments accounted for using the equity method

Shares in associates 27(a) 10 2 - -

Shares in jointly controlled entities 27(b) 1 1 - -

     11 3 - -

Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using  

the equity method of accounting and are carried at cost by the Company (refer note 9). Information relating to the associates and 

jointly controlled entities is set out below: -

     Country of Reporting Ownership

     incorporation Date  Interest

       2006 2005

Name of Company Principal activities   % %

Associates

Service Essentials Pty Ltd Billing, meter reading and  

    payment management services Australia 30 June 10 10

Jointly controlled entities

SPARQ Solutions Pty Ltd Information technology services Australia 30 June 50 45

Quest Asset Holdings Pty Ltd Asset owner information technology Australia 30 June 50 50

Significant influence over Service Essentials Pty Ltd is maintained, despite holding only 10%, due to the Economic Entity’s  

ability to appoint two Board members to the five person Board of Directors.
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NOTE 27: Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)

    Revenues Profit/ Share of net Total Total Net Share of net 

     (loss) profit/ (loss) Assets Liabilities assets assets equity 

    100% 100% recognised 100% 100% 100% accounted 

    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2006

Associates

Service Essentials Pty Ltd 56,061 78 8 14,248 14,152 96 10

Jointly controlled entities

SPARQ Solutions Pty Ltd 81,092 (7) - 44,953 44,496 457 -

Quest Asset Holdings Pty Ltd - - - 1 - 1 1

    137,153 71 8 59,202 58,648 554 11

2005

Associates

Service Essentials Pty Ltd 52,136 19 2 11,063 11,045 18 2

Jointly controlled entities

SPARQ Solutions Pty Ltd 54,191 (46) - 16,473 16,518 (45) -

Quest Asset Holdings Pty Ltd - - - 1 - 1 1

    106,327 (27) 2 27,537 27,563 (26) 3

 

    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a) Associates

Movements in carrying amount of investments

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  2 - - -

Share of associates net profit  8 2 - -

Balance at the end of the financial year  10 2 - -

Results of associates

Share of profit before income tax equivalent expense  11 - - -

Share of income tax equivalent expense  (3) 2 - -

Share of associates net profit accounted for using the equity method   8 2 - -

Share of associate’s expenditure commitments

Lease commitments  74 134 - -

Capital commitments  14 36 - -

Other expenditure commitments  6,481 7,220 - -

     6,569 7,390 - -
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    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 27: Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)

(b) Jointly controlled entities

Movements in carrying amount of investments

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  1 - - -

Investments acquired during the financial year  - 1 - -

Share of jointly controlled entities net profit  - - - -

Balance at the end of the financial year  1 1 - -

Results of jointly controlled entities

Share of profit before income tax equivalent expense  4 (14) - -

Share of income tax equivalent expense  (7) (7) - -

Adjustments:

Unrecognised losses  3 21 - -

Share of jointly controlled entities net profit accounted  

for using the equity method  - - - -

The Economic Entity has not recognised losses relating to SPARQ Solutions Pty Ltd totalling $2,763 (2005: $20,892). 

Share of jointly controlled entities expenditure commitments

Capital commitments  3,123 146 - -

Lease commitments  1,875 2,160 - -

     4,998 2,306 - -

NOTE 28: Economic dependency

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited’s principal revenue depends, to a significant extent, on the operations of the national electricity 

market in Queensland and the operations of the National Electricity Market Management Company Limited. The principal operator 

transporting high voltage electricity for distribution is Queensland Electricity Transmission Corporation Limited (trading as 

Powerlink). Low voltage electricity is then distributed primarily to Ergon Energy Pty Ltd.
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 29: Notes to cash flow statements 

Reconciliation of the operating profit after income tax equivalent  

to the net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

Operating profit after income tax equivalent expense  144,152 98,841 108,419 96,417

Non-cash flows in profit from ordinary activities:

Depreciation and amortisation  238,672 196,488 234,803 194,279

Asset write-off  169 137 169 103

Net gain/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (645) (1,293) (643) (1,293)

Changes in employee benefit and other provisions  24,491 56,335 30,916 32,497

Other non-cash flow items  (58,357) (15,698) - 3,842

Changes in assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables  23,989 (36,677) (55,608) (94,335)

Inventory    (12,011) (8,504) (12,031) (8,510)

Other assets   28,826 (43,564) (906) (12,646)

Trade and other creditors  15,993 34,526 4,916 66,999

Other liabilities  (3,822) 32,917 16,586 9,166

Deferred income tax equivalent liability  130,355 704,166 76,107 704,166

Deferred income tax equivalent asset  (61,507) (659,471) (30,395) (661,978)

Payment from provision  - (1) - (1)

Net cash flow provided by operating activities  470,305 358,202 372,333 328,706

NOTE 30: Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Names, positions and terms held of directors

The directors of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited during the financial period ended 30 June 2006 were:

Keith Hilless  Chairman - Non-Executive Director

Barry Taylor   Deputy Chairman - Non-Executive Director

Helen Stanton Non-Executive Director

Andrew Robertson Non-Executive Director

Terri Hamilton Non-Executive Director

Wayne Myers  Non-Executive Director

Keith Hilless, Barry Taylor, Andrew Robertson and Wayne Myers were reappointed as directors on 1 July 2005 for a period of three years and 

three months until 30 September 2008. Helen Stanton and Terri Hamilton were appointed as directors on 1 July 2005 for a period of three 

years and three months until 30 September 2008. 



52 ERGON ENERGY CORPORATE REPORTS 2005/06

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

NOTE 30: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(b) Compensation - Directors

Directors’ emoluments are set by State Government regulation, with other fees and allowances determined on the basis of 

meetings attended and expenditure incurred in performing their roles as directors of the Company. 

The non-executive directors of the Company do not participate in any variable reward or ‘at risk’ plan. 

In accordance with Ministerial Guidelines, details of compensation provided to directors in office at 30 June 2006, and for 

comparative purposes details of those directors whose terms finished on 30 June 2005, are as follows:

DIRECTOR Short term benefits Post Employment benefits TOTAL

Directors’ Fees Committee & Other Fees(1) Superannuation

The 

Company

Controlled 

Entities

The 

Company

Controlled 

Entities

The 

Company

Controlled 

Entities

The 

Company

Controlled 

Entities

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Keith Hilless Chairman

2006 64,701 46,968 7,463 - 6,192 4,272 78,356 51,240

2005 62,640 45,472 3,480 - 5,596 4,137 71,716 49,609

Barry Taylor Deputy Chairman

2006 25,161 - 12,356 - 3,377 - 40,894 -

2005 24,360 - 6,960 - 2,841 - 34,161 -

Paul Bell Director

2006 - - - - - - - -

2005 24,360 - 4,640 - 2,644 - 31,644 -

Andrew Robertson Director

2006 25,161 - 8,762 - 3,053 - 36,976 -

2005 24,360 - 8,120 - 2,957 - 35,437 -

Fay Donovan Director 

2006 - - - - - - - -

2005 24,360 - 3,480 - 2,528 - 30,368 -

Wayne Myers Director

2006 25,161 19,257 10,205 - 3,299 1,897 38,665 21,154

2005 24,360 18,644 8,120 - 2,957 1,701 35,437 20,345

Helen Stanton Director

2006 25,161 - 4,216 - 2,610 - 31,987 -

2005 - - - - - - - -

Terri Hamilton Director

2006 25,161 - 3,844 - 2,610 - 31,615 -

2005 - - - - - - - -

Total Compensation Directors

2006 190,506 66,225 46,846 - 21,141 6,169 258,493 72,394

2005 184,440 64,116 34,800 - 19,523 5,838 238,763 69,954
No further fees were paid to directors, other than the amounts disclosed in the table. 
(1) The Board Committees are joint committees between Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and Ergon Energy Pty Ltd.  
Where directors hold positions on both Boards, Ergon Energy Corporation Limited reports the committee fees paid.
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NOTE 30: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Aggregate Income of Directors

The number of directors of the Company who were paid, or were due to be paid, directly or indirectly by the Company or any related party, 

as shown in the following bands, were:

       2006 2005

$30,001  - $40,000     3 4
$40,001  - $50,000     1 -
$50,001  - $60,000     1 1
$120,001 - $130,000     1 1

The aggregate income of the directors referred to above was:    $330,887 $308,717

The remuneration bands disclosed in the Aggregate Income of Directors above equates to the remuneration paid in the directors’ 
remuneration table by totalling all income received by the directors from the parent entity and its controlled entities.

The total of all amounts paid or payable, directly or indirectly, from the respective entities of which they are a director, or from 
any related party, to all the directors of each entity in the Economic Entity was $416,616 (2005: $386,199). The above amounts 
exclude the value of insurance premiums made for the directors’ indemnity.

(c) Compensation - Executives
The Safety and People Committee recommends executive remuneration to the Board as part of an annual review. Input is sought 
from several industry and market surveys (in addition to that from the shareholding Ministers)  when determining the level of 
remuneration for these positions. Final approval is then required from shareholding Ministers, ensuring that remuneration 
arrangements for the executives are appropriate.

A Total Employment Cost (TEC) concept for the structure of executive remuneration is utilised. While the total cost of an executive’s 
remuneration package is capped, the executive then has the flexibility to decide the composition of the total employment cost, 
which could include cash salary, motor vehicle, car park, additional superannuation and laptop.

Executive staff are eligible for an ‘at risk’ or variable component that is directly linked to both the overall performance of the 
corporation and their individual efforts against a range of key indicators, for example financial, operational and customer 
excellence, people development, risk management and growth. The initial ‘target’ goals are set by the Board, from the annual 
Statement of Corporate Intent. Any ‘at risk’ payment is totally contingent upon the Board’s assessment of the Company’s overall 
performance.

Executives are all employed on a similar, tenured contract, except for the Chief Executive who is employed on a five year fixed 
term contract. The employment contract of each executive allows for them to be eligible to participate in the Company’s ‘at risk’ 
performance remuneration plan which has a maximum allocation of up to 15% of the individual’s TEC figure.

Apart from the provision of a car park, no other non-cash benefits are provided to executives, as the TEC concept captures various 
benefits structured within a total cost rather than a base salary plus benefits.

Early termination entitlements for executives are subject to the normal terms and conditions of their contracts with Ergon Energy. 
The Chief Executive is entitled to a termination payment comprising all entitlements accrued under the contract, a proportion 
of the total remuneration package, excluding bonus, that would have been payable for the balance of the term after termination 
date had the employment continued for the balance of the term (and, for these purposes, the proportion is 50% of the amount 
payable as if the balance of the term was 3 years), and the balance of any bonus declared by the Chairman that remains unpaid. 
Other executives are entitled to a termination payment comprising a payment equivalent to 26 weeks of TEC, pro-rata long service 
leave and pro-rata bonus. Where termination is due to redundancy, other executives are entitled to an additional payment of two 
weeks TEC for every completed year of employment in excess of two years to a maximum of 26 weeks. This entitlement lapses if 
an offer of alternative employment is received from a Queensland Government department, agency or Queensland Government-

Owned Corporation prior to termination of the executive’s employment with the Company.
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NOTE 30: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

In accordance with Ministerial Guidelines, details of remuneration provided to the senior executives with the greatest authority of the 

Consolidated Entity are as follows:

 
EXECUTIVE Short term benefits(1) Post employment benefits Long term 

benefits

Total

Salary and Fees 

$

Non Monetary

$

Superannuation

$

Retirement 

benefits 

$

 

$

 

$

Chief Executive
2006 398,533 3,873 37,938 - 11,778 452,122
2005 353,693 3,311 36,394 - 19,480 412,878

Chief Operating Officer - Distribution(6)

2006 272,160 3,873 25,774 - 13,754 315,561
2005 215,949 3,311 24,727 - 34,702 278,689

Acting Executive General Manager - Distribution(2)

2006 155,334 - 11,045 - 7,670 174,049
2005 41,877 - 2,793 - 2,461 47,131

Chief Financial Officer(3)

2006 164,874 3,205 14,736 45,025 - 227,840
2005 255,866 3,311 23,122 - 13,202 295,501

Acting Chief Financial Officer(4)

2006 70,971 1,157 4,304 - 2,028 78,460
2005 - - - - - -

Chief Operating Officer - Retail
2006 240,743 3,873 22,189 - 16,085 282,890
2005 239,492 3,311 20,756 - 13,584 277,143

Executive General Manager - Employee and Organisational Services
2006 215,405 3,873 19,396 - 13,603 252,277
2005 202,813 3,859 14,016 - 13,100 233,788

Company Secretary and Corporate Counsel
2006 181,571 3,873 16,045 - 7,444 208,933
2005 182,302 3,311 15,720 - 10,636 211,969

Executive General Manager - Customer Service 
2006 173,295 4,106 16,698 - 5,173 199,272
2005 171,392 3,311 13,283 - 5,150 193,136

Executive General Manager - Corporate and Business Development (5)

2006 213,150 3,873 19,451 - 24,081 260,555
2005 134,404 2,486 12,958 - 3,429 153,277

Executive General Manager - Stakeholder Relations
2006 178,215 3,873 16,925 - 9,104 208,117
2005 161,417 3,311 16,239 - 14,376 195,343

Total Compensation - Executives
2006 2,264,251 35,579 204,501 45,025 110,720 2,660,076
2005 1,959,205 29,522 180,008 - 130,120 2,298,855

(1) Officers may also earn performance based, risk incentive bonuses which are disclosed in aggregate in note 16 and are not shown in this table. 
(2) Officer held the position from 15 April 2005 until 6 February 2006.
(3) Officer held the position until 27 January 2006. 
(4) Officer held the position from 13 March 2006.
(5) Officer held the position from 4 October 2004.
(6) Officer was seconded to the United States from 15 April 2005 to 24 October 2005 as part of an Executive Development Program that the Company participated in. While 
overseas, the Officer continued to be remunerated by the Company and the figures in the table above reflect this. 
Amounts disclosed for remuneration of key management personnel exclude insurance premiums paid by the Company in respect of directors’ and officers’  
liability insurance contracts.
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NOTE 30: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(d) Compensation disclosures by category for key management personnel 

    Consolidated The Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005 

     $ $ $ $

Short term benefits  2,603,407 2,272,083 2,115,165 1,790,461

Post employment benefits  276,836 205,369 231,780 165,492

Long term benefits  110,720 130,120 89,462 111,386

Total    2,990,963 2,607,572 2,436,407 2,067,339

(e) Transactions with related parties of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Economic Entity and of its related parties, or their related parties, conduct transactions with 

entities within the Economic Entity on terms and conditions no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably 

be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-related entities on an arm’s length basis. 

All transactions with key management personnel, or related parties, that occurred during the financial year are trivial or domestic 

in nature, apart from those noted below. The related party disclosures are those in connection with Ergon Energy Corporation 

Limited and its controlled entities.

Keith Hilless was the Chairman and director of the Australian Institute of Management - Qld/NT Division until May 2006. During 

this time, Ergon Energy provided sponsorship to and purchased training from this organisation to the value of $773,765 (2005: 

$35,018).

Barry Taylor was a partner of a law firm which merged with MacDonnells (lawyers) on 1 May 2006, at which time he became a 

partner of MacDonnells. MacDonnells has billed Ergon Energy Corporation Limited $45,545 since the time of this merger.

Anthony Bellas, James Mitchell (resigned 27 January 2006) and Mal Leech were Executives of the parent entity during the year 

and directors of SPARQ Solutions Pty Ltd, a jointly controlled entity. James Mitchell resigned his position of director of SPARQ 

Solutions Pty Ltd on 10 January 2006 and Mal Leech was appointed director on 21 April 2006. They did not receive any remuneration 

for their positions as directors of this entity. During the year SPARQ Solutions Pty Ltd provided services and recoveries to the 

wholly owned group to the value of $57,716,444 (2005:$40,324,774) and received services and recoveries from the wholly owned 

group of $96,023,267 (2005:$49,717,445).

Further, James Mitchell and Darren Busine were Executives of the parent entity during the year and directors of Service Essentials 

Pty Ltd, an associate company. James Mitchell resigned his position of Chairman effective 10 January 2006 and Darren Busine 

was appointed a director on 18 May 2006. They did not receive any remuneration for their positions from this entity. During 

the financial year, Service Essentials Pty Ltd provided services to the wholly owned group to the value of $17,898,500 (2005: 

$19,317,623) and received services from the wholly owned group to the value of $5,831,097 (2005: $6,609,395). Refer Note 31 

for a description of the transactions.

Justin Fitzgerald, an executive of the parent entity is a director of Electricity Credit Union Limited. During the financial year the 

Electricity Credit Union Limited provided services to the wholly owned group to the value of $133,164 (2005:$114,220).

A number of directors are the directors of organisations that are franchise customers of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd.

(f) Loans to key management personnel 

The Economic Entity has not made any loans to key management personnel in either the current or prior years.
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NOTE 31: Related party transactions

In addition to those transactions disclosed in Note 3 and 4, the Company entered into the following transactions during the  

period with related parties within the wholly owned group:

 The Company provided business management, financial and corporate services and customer care administration 

services, (including retail products and services administration) to controlled entities. All services were undertaken 

on normal commercial terms and conditions.
 The Company also constructed embedded generation facilities for a controlled entity and transferred embedded 

generation assets to the controlled entity for a combination of equity and debt.

Amounts due and receivable from related parties in the wholly owned group are as set out in the respective notes to the financial 

statements.

Entities subject to common control

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited is a Queensland Government Owned Corporation, with all shares held by shareholding  

Ministers on behalf of the State of Queensland. All State of Queensland controlled entities meet the definition of other related 

parties of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited.

Transactions with State of Queensland controlled entities
The Economic Entity transacts with other State of Queensland controlled entities. All transactions are negotiated on terms equivalent to 
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
Details of material related party transactions and balances, as reported in the income statements and balance sheets, are disclosed below:
   Terms and Consolidated The Company
   Conditions 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue
Community Service Obligations revenue Refer note 1 337,719 176,872 - -
DUOS revenue from ENERGEX Limited Refer note 1 27,216 20,590 27,216 20,590
Pensioner rebate revenue from Department  
of Communities Refer note 1 17,719 16,936 - -
Maintenance revenue received from Powerlink Refer note 1 18,637 22,997 18,637 22,997
Transmission charges received from CS Energy Ltd Refer note 1 7,396 7,405 7,396 7,405
Interest received on deposits with Queensland  
Treasury Corporation  Refer note 1 11,427 8,315 2,940 1,445
Expenses
Transmission costs paid to Powerlink Refer note 1 151,558 146,116 151,558 146,116
DUOS costs paid to ENERGEX Refer note 1 31,876 29,464 - -
Electricity trading with State of Queensland  
controlled entities Refer note 22 54,352 37,415 - -
ESI Super defined benefit and accumulation 
plan expenses Refer note 16 25,657 12,658 24,420 11,632
Interest on Queensland Treasury Corporation  
borrowings. Includes administration fees. Refer note 22 111,134 92,689 110,983 92,565
Competitive neutrality fee paid to Queensland Treasury Refer note 1 9,508 6,755 9,508 6,755
Derivative transactions with State of Queensland  

controlled entity counterparties Refer note 1 75,341 - - -
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   Terms and Consolidated The Company

   Conditions 2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 31: Related party transactions (continued)

Assets

Deposits held with Queensland Treasury Corporation Refer note 1 199,537 247,623 61,930 87,010

Community Service Obligations amounts receivable Refer note 1 38,097 26,522 - -

Trade receivable from Powerlink Refer note 1 4,984 3,322 4,984 3,322

Trade receivable from ENERGEX Limited Refer note 1 3,110 4,362 3,110 4,362

Liabilities

Accrued interest and fees payable to Queensland  

Treasury Corporation Refer note 1 30,597 24,990 30,597 24,990

Transmissions costs payable to Powerlink Refer note 1 14,347 13,479 14,347 13,479

Community Ambulance Cover Levy payable to  

Office of State Revenue  Refer note 1 2,587 2,344 - -

Dividends payable to Treasury Refer note 1 87,482 82,111 87,482 82,111

Long term borrowings from Queensland Treasury  

Corporation  Refer note 1 2,129,631 1,742,631 2,129,631 1,742,631

Transactions with jointly controlled entities and associates 

Aggregate amounts brought to account in relation to transactions with jointly controlled entities and associates:

 Purchase of billing, meter reading and payment  

 management services from an associate  17,899 19,318 - -

 Purchase of IT&T solutions and services from a jointly controlled entity 57,716 40,325 57,716 40,325

 Recovery of employee expenses and other service costs from a jointly  

 controlled entity and an associate  101,854 56,327 96,068 49,718

Unsecured loans have been advanced by the wholly owned group to jointly controlled entities and associates. The loans are in 

the form of interest-bearing loans with rates between 6.71% and 7.89% (2005:6.71% and 7.81%). The amounts outstanding at 

balance date were $8,368,990 (2005: $4,518,463).

Amounts due and receivable from jointly controlled entities and associates are as set out in the respective Notes to the financial 

statements.

Controlling entities

The ultimate parent entity within the group is Ergon Energy Corporation Limited. 

Ownership interests in related parties

Interests in the following classes of related parties are set out in the following notes:

 Consolidated entities - Note 25

 Associates and jointly controlled entities - Note 27
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 32: Auditors’ remuneration

Remuneration for audit and review of the financial reports of the Company or any entity in the Economic Entity:

Auditor-General of Queensland

Audit services

 Audit and review of financial reports  507 393 270 253

Other services

 Other regulatory audit services  62 62 55 55

     569 455 325 308

NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS

As stated in significant accounting policies Note 1, these are the Economic Entity’s first consolidated financial statements prepared 

in accordance with AIFRS.

The policies set out in the significant accounting policies within Note 1 of this report have been applied in preparing the financial 

statements for the year ended 30 June 2006, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year 

ended 30 June 2005 and in the preparation of an opening AIFRS balance sheet at 1 July 2004 (the Economic Entity’s date of 

transition).

In preparing its opening balance sheet, the Economic Entity has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared 

in accordance with the accounting standards at that time (previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (AGAAP)). An 

explanation of the impacts of transition from previous AGAAP to AIFRS has impacted the Economic Entity’s financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows as set out in the following tables and notes. 
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NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of equity
 Consolidated

      1-Jul-04   30-Jun-05

     Previous Effect of AIFRS Previous  Effect of  AIFRS
       AGAAP transition   AGAAP transition  
      to AIFRS   to AIFRS
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets
Cash assets   225,599 - 225,599 260,032 - 260,032
Receivables   233,721 3,165 236,886 312,547 4,126 316,673
Inventories   39,779 - 39,779 48,284 - 48,284
Other    48,829 (20,165) 28,664 90,575 (29,126) 61,449

Total current assets  547,928 (17,000) 530,928 711,438 (25,000) 686,438

Receivables   39,544 451 39,995 72,056 - 72,056
Intangible assets  741 41,940 42,681 195 39,388 39,583
Property, plant and equipment  3,200,933 (25,539) 3,175,394 4,560,612 (21,116) 4,539,496
Deferred tax equivalent assets  216,094 156,819 372,913 294,867 (9,400) 285,467
Investments accounted for using the  
equity method  - - - 3 - 3
Other financial assets  100 - 100 100 - 100
Employee benefits  - 56,865 56,865 - - -
Other    5,279 (451) 4,828 2,265 - 2,265

Total non-current assets  3,462,691 230,085 3,692,776 4,930,098 8,872 4,938,970

Total assets  4,010,619 213,085 4,223,704 5,641,536 (16,128) 5,625,408

Liabilities      
Payables   180,200 76,512 256,712 241,840 58,840 300,680
Interest-bearing liabilities  1,157 - 1,157 1,296 - 1,296
Employee benefits  - 26,429 26,429 - 43,859 43,859
Provisions   151,708 (102,941) 48,767 181,684 (102,699) 78,985
Other    19,458 - 19,458 42,588 - 42,588

Total current liabilities  352,523 - 352,523 467,408 - 467,408

Payables   32,059 - 32,059 54,681 - 54,681
Interest-bearing liabilities  1,488,728 - 1,488,728 1,770,681 - 1,770,681
Employee benefits  - 61,685 61,685 - 89,434 89,434
Provisions   67,394 (63,355) 4,039 88,454 (81,425) 7,029
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  319,678 281,191 600,869 865,235 (14,306) 850,929
Other    - - - 9,787 - 9,787

Total non-current liabilities  1,907,859 279,521 2,187,380 2,788,838 (6,297) 2,782,541

Total liabilities  2,260,382 279,521 2,539,903 3,256,246 (6,297) 3,249,949

Net assets   1,750,237 (66,436) 1,683,801 2,385,290 (9,831) 2,375,459

Equity      
Contributed equity  1,242,405 - 1,242,405 1,242,405 - 1,242,405
Reserves   477,614 (149,284) 328,330 1,050,318 1,491 1,051,809
Retained profits  30,218 82,848 113,066 92,567 (11,322) 81,245

Total equity  1,750,237 (66,436) 1,683,801 2,385,290 (9,831) 2,375,459

The reconciliation of equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes in 33(d).
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The reconciliation of equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes in 33(d).

NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of equity (continued)
 The Company

      1-Jul-04   30-Jun-05

     Previous Effect of AIFRS Previous  Effect of  AIFRS
       AGAAP transition   AGAAP transition  
      to AIFRS   to AIFRS
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets
Cash assets   76,069 - 76,069 88,513 - 88,513
Receivables   124,674 2,839 127,513 182,405 3,893 186,298
Inventories   39,754 - 39,754 48,264 - 48,264
Other    19,905 (19,839) 66 28,816 (28,816) -

Total current assets  260,402 (17,000) 243,402 347,998 (24,923) 323,075

Receivables   57,752 (7,577) 50,175 98,847 (59,890) 38,957
Intangible assets  - 41,801 41,801 - 33,391 33,391
Property, plant and equipment  3,189,846 (25,362) 3,164,484 4,537,212 (15,081) 4,522,131
Deferred tax equivalent assets  211,530 156,983 368,513 294,886 (59,016) 235,870
Other financial assets  132,941 - 132,941 138,675 - 138,675
Employee benefits  - 56,865 56,865 - - -
Other    992 (451) 541 - - -

Total non-current assets  3,593,061 222,259 3,815,320 5,069,620 (100,596) 4,969,024

Total assets  3,853,463 205,259 4,058,722 5,417,618 (125,519) 5,292,099

Liabilities
Payables   95,090 76,749 171,839 134,996 59,195 194,191
Interest-bearing liabilities  686 - 686 658 - 658
Employee benefits  - 25,135 25,135 - 42,691 42,691
Provisions   142,057 (101,884) 40,173 152,444 (101,809) 50,635
Other    19,458 - 19,458 28,624 - 28,624

Total current liabilities  257,291 - 257,291 316,722 77 316,799

Payables   27,900 (5,900) 22,000 54,992 (25,211) 29,781
Interest-bearing liabilities  1,463,104 - 1,463,104 1,743,627 - 1,743,627
Employee benefits  - 60,587 60,587 - 87,748 87,748
Provisions   63,454 (62,189) 1,265 80,262 (79,667) 595
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  315,114 281,338 596,452 865,235 (98,943) 766,292
Other    - - - - - -

Total non-current liabilities  1,869,572 273,836 2,143,408 2,744,116 (116,073) 2,628,043

Total liabilities  2,126,863 273,836 2,400,699 3,060,838 (115,996) 2,944,842

Net assets   1,726,600 (68,577) 1,658,023 2,356,780 (9,523) 2,347,257

Equity
Contributed equity  1,242,405 - 1,242,405 1,242,405 - 1,242,405
Reserves   477,614 (149,284) 328,330 1,050,318 1,491 1,051,809
Retained profits  6,581 80,707 87,288 64,057 (11,014) 53,043

Total equity  1,726,600 (68,577) 1,658,023 2,356,780 (9,523) 2,347,257
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NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit

         Consolidated  

        Previous  Effect of  AIFRS

          AGAAP transition  

         to AIFRS 

         2005

        $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue       2,086,848 (1,986) 2,084,862

Network charges/electricity purchases     (1,254,092) - (1,254,092)

Employee expenses     (140,447) 2,622 (137,825)

Materials and services     (128,097) - (128,097)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments    (196,488) (9,746) (206,234)

Borrowing costs     (101,229) - (101,229)

Other expenses      (119,162) 3,665 (115,497)

Share of net profits of associates accounted for using the equity method  2 - 2

Profit before income tax equivalent expense   147,335 (5,445) 141,890

Income tax equivalent expense     (44,696) 1,647 (43,049)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense    102,639 (3,798) 98,841

         The Company  

        Previous  Effect of  AIFRS

          AGAAP transition  

         to AIFRS 

         2005

        $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue       858,445 (1,986) 856,459

Network charges/electricity purchases     (147,037) - (147,037)

Employee expenses     (114,408) 2,541 (111,867)

Materials and services     (135,615) - (135,615)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments    (194,279) (8,264) (202,543)

Borrowing costs     (100,842) - (100,842)

Other expenses     (37,228) 2,260 (34,968)

Share of net profits of associates accounted for using the equity method  - - -

Profit before income tax equivalent expense    129,036 (5,449) 123,587

Income tax equivalent expense     (28,782) 1,612 (27,170)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense    100,254 (3,837) 96,417

 The reconciliation of profit is to be read in conjunction with the notes in 33(d).
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NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(c) Explanation of material adjustments to the cash flow statement 

There are no material differences between the cash flow statement presented under AIFRS and the cash flow presented under 

previous AGAAP. However, the note reconciliation of the operating profit after income tax equivalent to the net cash flows provided 

by / (used in) operating activities has been impacted from the transition to AIFRS. 

(d) Notes to the reconciliations of equity and profit

The following notes support the adjustments contained within the reconciliation.

(i)	 Business	combinations	

The Economic Entity has elected to apply the exemption from retrospective application of AASB 3 Business Combinations. On the 

basis that the consolidated entity adopted the standard from 1 July 2004, no adjustment at transition was required. Business 

combinations occurring after 1 July 2004 will be accounted for in accordance with the requirements of AASB 3. 

(ii)	 Defined	benefit	superannuation	plans

Under AASB 119 Employee Benefits, the Economic Entity is required to recognise the defined benefit superannuation surplus/ 

deficit on its Electricity Supply Industry Superannuation Fund as an asset / liability in the balance sheet. The directors have elected 

to recognise all actuarial gains and losses arising from movements in the surplus through retained profits.

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited is ultimately liable for the funding of the defined benefit entitlements of all employees within 

the Economic Entity.

The balance of the defined benefit superannuation surplus at transition to AIFRS (1 July 2004) was $56,865,000. This amount has 

been recognised as an increase in retained profits at the date of transition to AIFRS.

At the financial year ended 30 June 2005, the balance of the defined benefit superannuation deficit was $9,765,000. This resulted 

in a decrease in retained profits of $69,358,483 and an increase in profit of $2,651,000 in the 30 June 2005 comparative year.

(iii)	 Intangible	assets-software

In accordance with AASB 138 Intangible assets, software is classified as an intangible asset rather than as property, plant and 

equipment. At 1 July 2004, the cost and accumulated amortisation to be reclassified to intangible assets, was $70,907,489 and 

$28,980,241 respectively.

Further, software assets that were subject to revaluation under previous AGAAP cannot be revalued under AIFRS. Therefore, the 

impact of this revaluation during the 30 June 2005 financial year was reversed against the revaluation reserve and the specific 

assets totalling $5,937,319. On the basis that the revaluation reserve was reversed, assets written off against this reserve under 

AGAAP have been recognised in the Income statement totalling $8,067,127.

(iv)	 Employee	benefits	

Employee benefit liabilities including annual leave and on-cost balances, comprising superannuation, have been measured at 

present value in accordance with the standard. The impact of bringing the above employee liabilities to present value had a 

cumulative impact at transition date of $1,610,770 increase in retained profits. 

(v)	 Other	provisions	

Associated employee on-costs, including workers’ compensation and payroll tax, have been measured at present value in accordance 

with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The impact of bringing these provisions to present value 

had a cumulative impact at transition date of $59,399 increase in retained profits. The impact of restatement of these provisions 

on the Economic Entity at 30 June 2005 was an increase in profit of $11,618.
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NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(vi)	 Property	plant	and	equipment

Property plant and equipment that is highly probable of being sold and is in a condition that would allow its immediate sale is classified as 

held for sale non-current assets. Current property plant and equipment expected to be sold within the following twelve months does not fit 

this criteria and has been returned to the non-current asset category. 

(vii)	Gain	and	losses	in	relation	to	the	sale	of	non-current	assets	

Under AIFRS, the profit or loss from the sale of a non-current asset has been recognised as a net gain or loss on sale. Under 

previous AGAAP, the gross proceeds from the sale were recognised as revenue and the carrying amount was recognised as an 

expense. The transition to AIFRS relating to gains and losses on sale has impacted disclosure within the financial statements 

but has not impacted reported profit. 

If the policy had been applied in the 30 June 2005 financial report, the gain on sale would have been $1,796,710 and the loss on 

sale/disposal would have been $504,441.

(viii)	Capitalised	costs	

At transition, expenditure that no longer qualifies for recognition as capital expenditure in accordance with AASB 116 Property, 

Plant and Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible Assets has been adjusted accordingly. The impact to retained profits at transition 

date was $599,199. The expenditure during the 30 June 2005 year that was capitalised under previous AGAAP expensed under 

AIFRS amounted to $191,853.

(ix)	 Income	tax

The Economic Entity early adopted the revised AASB 1020 Income Taxes under AGAAP, as at 1 July 2004. Therefore, the tax 

balances for the financial year ended 30 June 2005 under AGAAP were in accordance with the balance sheet approach. The 

impact of transition from AASB 1020 Income Taxes to AASB 112 Income Taxes at 1 July 2004 and from retrospective application 

of the AIFRS policies to the 30 June 2005 comparative period are summarised in the following table:

   Notes 1 July 2004 30 June 2005

     Consolidated The Company Consolidated The Company

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Adjustments arising from adoption of AASB 112:

Retained profits  42,293 40,173 485 817

Asset revaluation reserve  (149,284) (149,284) (639) (639)

     (106,991) (109,111) (154) 178

Application of AASB 112 to adjustments arising from adoption of AIFRS 

 Property, plant and equipment  180 169 237 225

 Other provisions  (18) (17) - -

 Employee benefits  (483) (464) (527) (505)

 Superannuation   (17,060) (17,060) 2,930 2,930

 Intangible write down  - - 2,420 2,420

Net increase / (decrease) in deferred taxes   (124,372) (126,483) 4,906 5,248

Comprising of movements in:

Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax assets   156,819 148,955 (9,400) (118,906)

(Increase) / decrease in deferred tax liabilities   (281,191) (275,438) 14,306 124,154



64 ERGON ENERGY CORPORATE REPORTS 2005/06

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(x)	 Reclassification	of	other	income

Under AIFRS, foreign currency gains and government grants will be recognised as other income. Under AGAAP, such items are 

classified as revenue. This change will impact disclosure but will not impact reported profit. 

(xi)	 Reconciliation	of	retained	profits:	1	July	2004	and	30	June	2005	

The effects of the above adjustments on retained profits are contained in the following table:

   Notes 1 July 2004 30 June 2005

     Consolidated The Company Consolidated The Company

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Deferred tax   42,293 40,173 485 817

Employee benefits  1,128 1,082 1,227 1,178

Property, plant and equipment  (420) (394) (554) (526)

Other provisions   41 40 2 -

Intangible assets  - - (5,647) (5,647)

Superannuation   39,806 39,806 (6,835) (6,836)

Net increase / (decrease) in retained profits  82,848 80,707 (11,322) (11,014)

(xii)	Financial	instruments

From 1 July 2004 to 30 June 2005
As outlined in Note 1, the Economic Entity has elected to apply the exemption available under AASB 1 First time Adoption of 
Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and defer the date of transition of AASB 132 and AASB 139 
until 1 July 2005. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the financial report for the period ended 30 June 2005 in respect 
of AASB 132 and AASB 139. Therefore, comparative information relating to financial instruments is in accordance with previous 
policies applied by the Economic Entity. 

Adjustments on transition date, 1 July 2005
As required by AASB 139, financial assets of the Economic Entity have been classified as either fair value through the profit 
and loss, held to maturity, available for sale or loans and receivables. Classifications and associated treatments of financial 
instruments of the Economic Entity have been outlined in Note 1. 

The adoption of AASB 139 has had the following impacts on the financial instruments of the Economic Entity:

1) Derivative financial instruments 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
 Consistent with the policy previously adopted by the Economic Entity for the retail business under AGAAP, derivative financial 

instruments classified as at fair value continue to be recognised at fair value with movements in the fair value recognised 
directly in the Income Statement. 

 To align the measurement of financial instruments at fair value with the detailed valuation requirements of AASB 139, an adjustment 
of $203,467 was recognised in retained profits on transition to AIFRS. This adjustment related to the recognition of discounting 
on financial instruments and the application of the bid and asking price to net open positions as appropriate. The discount rate 
used by the retail business to value financial instruments at fair value is the Commonwealth Zero Coupon Bond rate.

 In addition to the above adjustment, all financial instruments classified as at fair value have been reclassified to current in 

accordance with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. 
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NOTE 33: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

 Hedge accounting 

 As outlined in Note 1, the Economic Entity’s forward rate agreements relating to interest rates are recognised and accounted 

for as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair value of the hedge are recognised in equity until the hedged transaction occurs, 

in which case the amounts recognised in equity will be transferred to the Income Statement. 

 Foreign exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency exposure have also been accounted for as a cash flow 

hedge. When the hedged transaction occurs, the amounts recognised in equity will be included in the initial cost of the asset 

acquired. 

 The effect on transition at 1 July 2005 in the Economic Entity in relation to the above cash flow hedge transactions is to 

increase cash flow hedge liabilities by $10,941,610 and increase hedging reserve by $10,941,610. 

2) Loans and receivables 

 Loans and receivables will be recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective 

interest rate method. No material adjustment was required to align valuation of loans and receivables with the amortised 

cost method. 

 

NOTE 34: Subsequent events

The Queensland Government announced a decision in April 2006 to sell, before the end of 2006, Ergon Energy Retail’s competitive 

operations.  

Ergon Energy’s non-competitive (or non-contestable) customers will remain within the Ergon Energy group and a separate retail 

customer service operation will continue to service these customers in regional Queensland. There will be no change to the 

functions performed by the distribution business. 

The sale will involve Ergon Energy’s existing contestable retail business, made up of mainly commercial and industrial customers 

together with the recently acquired Australian Energy Ltd (Powerdirect) business. In addition, approximately 400,000 of Sun Retail 

(formerly Energex Retail) customers will be included in this sale.

In response to this government initiative, Ergon Energy is currently preparing the contestable retail business for sale and 

establishing the ongoing operations to support the remaining non-contestable customer business. 
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the directors of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”):

 (a)  the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 6 to 65, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,  

 including:

   (i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the consolidated entity as at  

  30 June 2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows,  

  for the year ended on that date; and

   (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

 (b)  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become  

 due and payable.

Made in accordance with a resolution, made in Brisbane, by the directors.

Mr K Hilless 

Chairman

13 September 2006
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Independent Audit Report  
To the Members of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited

Matters relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report
The audit report relates to the financial report of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2006 included 
on Ergon Energy’s web site.  The Directors are responsible for the integrity of Ergon Energy’s web site.  I have not been engaged to report 
on the integrity of Ergon Energy’s web site.  The audit report refers only to the statements named below.  It does not provide an opinion 
on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements.  If users of the financial report are concerned with 
the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report, 
available from Ergon Energy to confirm the information included in the audited financial report presented on this website.

These matters may also relate to the presentation of the audited financial report in other electronic media including CD Rom.

Scope

The Financial Report
The financial report of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited consists of the Income Statements, Balance Sheets, Statements of Recognised 
Income and Expense, Cash Flow Statements, Notes to the financial statements, and the Directors’ Declaration for both Ergon Energy 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and the consolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises 
both the Company and the entities it controlled during that year. 

Directors’ Responsibility
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report, the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and 
accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit Approach
As required by law, an independent audit was conducted in accordance with QAO Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian 
Auditing Standards, to enable me to provide an independent opinion whether in all material respects the financial report is presented 
fairly, in accordance with the prescribed requirements.

Audit procedures included –
 examining information on a test/sample basis to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report;
 assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by the Directors;
 obtaining written confirmation regarding the material representations made in conjunction with the audit; and
 reviewing the overall presentation of information in the financial report.

Independence
The Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and QAO authorised auditors.

The Auditor-General is the auditor of all government owned corporations and their controlled entities and can only be removed by 
Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not subject to direction by any person about the 
way in which audit powers are to be exercised.

The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and property and can report to Parliament 
matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are significant. 

No events have occurred that would require any changes to the Audit Independence Declaration previously provided to the Directors on 
7 September 2006. 

Audit Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited is in accordance with –

(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including –
(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their 

performance for the year ended on that date; and
(ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.
 

G G POOLE FCPA  Queensland Audit Office 
Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane
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Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

To the Directors of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities

This Audit Independence Declaration has been provided pursuant to s. 307C of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and its Controlled Entities for the year ended 30 June 2006,  

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been –

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

G G POOLE, FCPA Queensland Audit Office 

Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane
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Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Name, 

qualifications and 

independence 

status

Age Experience, special responsibilities and other directorships

Keith Hilless  

BE FIEAust  

FAIM MAICD 

(Chairman)

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

68 Keith Hilless joined the Company as Chairman in 2002. He brings to his role experience gained 

from a career in the electricity supply industry spanning almost 50 years. Prior to taking up 

the role as Chairman, Mr Hilless held the position of Managing Director with international 

energy corporation NRG Asia Pacific Ltd for five years. He served as the Queensland Electricity 

Commissioner with oversight of electricity generation, transmission, distribution and regulation 

in Queensland from 1991 to 1994.

Throughout his career Mr Hilless also held a number of engineering and executive roles with the 

Queensland Transmission and Supply Corporation and Ergon Energy’s predecessor organisations, 

SWQEB and NORQEB. He was also the Chairman of the Australian Institute of Management -  

Queensland and Northern Territory up to May 2006. He is currently a member of the Council of 

Queensland University of Technology, a director of the Australian Institute of Management and 

took up the role of the National President of the Australian Institute of Management from May 

2006. Mr Hilless is a member of all Ergon Energy Board Committees.

John Bird 

FCPA FAICD FTIA 

(Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

60 John Bird joined the Company as director in 1999. As a Registered Company Auditor, Mr Bird 

provides considerable experience and direction to Ergon Energy through his chairmanship of the 

Audit and Legal Compliance Committee. He was formerly a Managing Partner in Brown and Bird 

Certified Practising Accountants in Mackay. 

Mr Bird is Chairman of the Queensland Labor Group of Companies. He is also Chairman of  

ESI Financial Services Pty Ltd. His other directorships include UNiTAB Limited and Electricity 

Supply Industry Superannuation (QLD) Ltd. Mr Bird is also a member of Ergon Energy’s Financial 

Risk Management Committee.

Wayne Myers 

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

52 Wayne Myers joined the Company as director in 2001. He is Managing Director of Sirocco 

Technologies Group Limited, a technology integration, services and investment company.  

Mr Myers has worked in the Information Technology and Telecommunications industry for over  

30 years. Mr Myers is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

He is Chairman of the Queensland Government’s Major Sports Facilities Authority and also holds 

directorships with UNiTAB Limited and John Paul College, Brisbane. Mr Myers chairs Ergon Energy’s 

Business Development Committee and is a member of the Safety and People Committee.

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd (“the Company”), and of the 

consolidated entity, being the Company and its controlled entities (the “Economic Entity”), for the year ended 30 June 2006 and 

the auditor’s report thereon.

Directors

The names and details of the directors of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd (the “Parent Entity” or “Company”) in office during the financial 

year and up to the date of this report are as follows:
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Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report (continued)
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Name, 

qualifications and 

independence 

status

Age Experience, special responsibilities and other directorships

Vanessa Brewis  

BCom LLB 

CA GAICD 

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

Appointed  

1 July 2005

38 Ms Brewis is currently Executive Director (Commercial) of Taurus Software Solutions, a role which 

involves managing all commercial aspects of the business including strategic planning, contract 

negotiations, and project and risk management. She was previously a consultant for Highlands 

Pacific Limited and a commercial advisor to Santos Asia Pacific Pty Ltd. Ms Brewis is a Graduate  

of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, member of Women in Technology, and the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants. Ms Brewis is a member of the Financial Risk Management 

and Business Development Committees.

Elizabeth 

Jameson  

BA LLB(Hons)  

FAICD FAIM 

Independent Non- 

Executive Director

Appointed  

1 July 2005

40 Ms Jameson is currently Principal of Board Matters Pty Ltd and in this role consults to boards 

on governance issues. She also tutors in corporate governance for the Australian Institute of 

Company Directors’ Corporate Directors’ Course and is Course Director for Corporate Governance 

for the Chartered Secretaries Australia (Queensland). She has extensive experience in the legal 

profession, focusing on corporate and commercial areas, and is now focusing on governance, 

risk management, compliance and corporate advice. She is the Chair of the Queensland Music 

Festival, Deputy Chair of Brisbane Girls’ Grammar School Board of Trustees, and board member 

and Chair Compliance Committee for MAP Funds Management Ltd. Ms Jameson is a member 

of the Audit and Legal Compliance Committee.

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Name and qualifications Experience and special responsibilities

David Pegg  

BCom LLB(Hons) MSc 

Company Secretary 

and General Counsel

David Pegg joined the Company as Corporate Counsel in 2000, becoming Company Secretary 

of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd in 2003. He now combines the role of General Counsel and Company 

Secretary. Prior to holding this position he held the role of Solicitor and Senior Associate at Blake 

Dawson Waldron for 10 years.

Company Secretary
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Principal Activity
The principal activity of the Economic Entity 
during the financial year was electricity 
wholesale and retail trading in Queensland, 
Victoria, Australian Capital Territory, New 
South Wales and South Australia.

There have been no significant changes 
in the nature of these activities during 
the year.

Dividends 
Dividends amounting to $Nil (2005: 
$33,248,718) have been paid or provided 
for during the financial year.

Operating and Financial Review
The Consolidated Income Statement shows 
a consolidated profit from ordinary activities 
after income tax equivalent expense of the 
Economic Entity for the financial year of 
$36,667,825 (2005: $41,586,241).

The financial results have been reported 
in accordance with Australian Equivalents 
to International Financial Reporting 
Standards and comparative results for 
the prior year have been restated.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs
Significant changes to the state of affairs of 
the Economic Entity that occurred during 
the year, and which are reported in the 
consolidated financial statements are:

On 24 April 2006 Ergon Energy Pty Ltd 
merged with Australian Energy Limited 
trading as Powerdirect by purchasing 
100% of the shares. The $103 million 
purchase of shares expanded our access 
to small and medium-sized customers in 
southern markets and gave us a systems 
capability to effectively service the rapid 
growth in customer numbers that it was 
anticipated the full retail competition in 
Queensland would bring. Powerdirect 
specialises in selling energy to small and 
medium-sized business in Victoria, New 
South Wales and South Australia. 

Significant Events after balance date
The Queensland Government announced 
a decision in April 2006 to sell, before 

the end of 2006, Ergon Energy Retail’s 
competitive operations.  

Ergon Energy’s non-competitive (or non-
contestable) customers will remain within 
the Ergon Energy group and a separate 
retail customer service operation will 
continue to service these customers in 
regional Queensland. There will be no 
change to the functions performed by 
the distribution business. 

The sale will involve Ergon Energy’s 
existing contestable retail business, 
made up of mainly commercial and 
industrial customers, together with the 
recently acquired Powerdirect business. 
In addition, approximately 400,000 of Sun 
Retail (formerly Energex Retail) customers 
will be included in this sale.

In response to this government initiative, 
Ergon Energy is currently preparing the 
contestable retail business for sale and 
establishing the ongoing operations to 
support the remaining non-contestable 
customer business. 

Likely Developments and  
Future Results
The Economic Entity will continue to pursue 
its policy of increasing the profitability 
and market share of its major business 
sectors during the next financial year up 
until the date of the sale. Following the 
sale, the Economic Entity will continue 
to service non-contestable customers in 
regional Queensland.

The recently announced proposed sale 
by the Queensland Government of the 
contestable retail customers is anticipated 
to occur before the end of 2006. 

The directors have excluded from this 
report any further information as to the 
likely developments in the operations of the 
Economic Entity and the expected results of 
those operations in future financial years, 
as the directors believe that it would result 
in unreasonable prejudice to one or more 
entities in the Economic Entity.

Environmental Regulation 
and Performance
The Economic Entity’s environmental 
obligations are regulated under State 
and Federal laws.

All environmental performance obligations 
are reported to the Audit and Legal 
Compliance Committee and are from time 
to time, subject to government agency, 
internal and external professional agency 
audits, as well as ongoing review to ensure 
compliance. The Economic Entity has a 
policy of meeting all its environmental 
obligations. The certification to International 
Standard ISO 14001 of the Economic Entity 
has been recommended for upgrade to the 
revised AS/ISO14001:2004 standard.

No environmental breaches have been 
notified by any government agency during 
the financial year. There have been no major 
non-conformances/incidents (defined in 
internal policy guidelines as Class 1 or 2) 
reported in the financial year. For further 
environmental performance information, 
refer to the Sustainability Report which is 
available separately and on the website 
www.ergon.com.au.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors 

and Officers

During the year, a policy was held to insure 

all directors and officers of the Economic 

Entity against liabilities incurred in their 

capacity as director or officer. The provisions 

of this policy prohibit the disclosure of the 

nature of the liabilities and the amount 

of the premium paid. The Cororations Act 

2001 does not require disclosure of this 

information in these circumstances.

Directors’ Shareholding

No directors held any beneficial interest 

in the shares of the Company. All 

issued shares are held by the ultimate 

parent entity, Ergon Energy Corporation 

Limited.

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report (continued)
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

Directors’ Report (continued)
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Directors’ Meetings

The Economic Entity’s Board Committees are combined with those of the ultimate parent entity, Ergon Energy Corporation Limited. 

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the financial year ended 30 June 

2006 and the number of meetings attended by each director of the Company was as follows: 

 

 

Director

 

 

Board Meetings

Audit and Legal 

Compliance 

Committee 

Meetings

Business 

Development 

Committee 

Meetings

 

Safety and People 

Committee 

Meetings

Financial Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Meetings

A B A B A B A B A B

K Hilless 17 17 5 5 2 2 4 4 5 5

J Bird 17 17 5 5 - - - - 5 5

W Myers 14 17 - - 1 2 4 4 - -

V Brewis 17 17 - - - - - - 5 5

E Jameson 14 17 4 5 - - - - - -

A – Number of meetings attended

B – Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year

Non-Audit Services

The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services, during the year by the auditor (or by another person or  

firm on the auditor’s behalf) is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations 

Act 2001.

Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor are outlined in 

Note 31 of the Financial Statements.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The Auditor’s Independence Declaration is set out on page 116 and forms part of the directors’ report for the year ended 30 

June 2006.

Rounding

In accordance with Australian Securities and Investment Commission Class Order 98/0100, unless otherwise indicated, amounts 

contained in this report and the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Mr K Hilless

Chairman

Dated at Brisbane, this 13th day of September 2006.
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Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

Income Statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue   3 2,046,436 2,009,910 2,009,167 1,863,379

Other income  3 43,085 - 43,082 -

Network charges / electricity purchases  (1,919,789) (1,828,476) (1,890,005) (1,683,464) 

Employee expenses  (21,976) (25,941) (20,767) (25,941)

Materials and services  (16,665) (9,079) (16,617) (9,079)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 4 (4,510) (3,413) (3,192) (3,413)

Finance costs 4 (2,125) (1,324) (2,901) (2,185)

Other expenses  (65,459) (81,997) (64,118) (81,997)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense  58,997 59,680 54,649 57,300

Income tax equivalent expense 5 (22,329) (18,094) (20,497) (16,740)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense  36,668 41,586 34,152 40,560

The Income Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 148,685 168,914 144,105 164,176
Trade and other receivables 7 284,909 267,395 258,369 270,084
Inventories  8 - 20 - 20
Financial assets 9 372,315 - 362,171 -
Other assets  10 1,084 65,755 - 65,755

Total current assets  806,993 502,084 764,645 500,035

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 7 30,496 99,768 22,783 94,243
Financial assets 9 - - 110,811 8,495
Property, plant and equipment 11 10,461 3,396 10,155 3,396
Intangible assets 12 104,811 5,997 7,457 5,997
Deferred tax equivalent assets 13(a) 107,509 56,948 105,666 56,948
Other assets  10 - 31,087 - 31,087

Total non-current assets  253,277 197,196 256,872 200,166

TOTAL ASSETS  1,060,270 699,280 1,021,517 700,201

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 14 210,604 231,144 192,892 250,249
Interest bearing liabilities 15 5,841 638 5,341 638
Employee benefits 16 3,608 1,167 3,077 1,167
Provisions  17 852 28,300 852 28,300
Financial liabilities 18 333,217 - 327,836 -
Other liabilities 19 1,803 13,964 451 13,964

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  555,925 275,213 530,449 294,318

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 14 54,057 110,455 67,863 107,814
Interest bearing liabilities 15 81,887 27,054 81,887 27,054
Employee benefits 16 1,622 1,684 1,622 1,684
Provisions  17 - 6,435 - 6,435
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 13(b) 154,312 94,376 145,288 94,376
Other liabilities 19 10,696 17,783 2,700 9,787

Total non-current liabilities  302,574 257,787 299,360 247,150

TOTAL LIABILITIES  858,499 533,000 829,809 541,468

NET ASSETS  201,771 166,280 191,708 158,733

EQUITY
Contributed equity 20 123,172 123,172 123,172 123,172
Reserves  21(a) 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Retained Profits 21(b) 74,599 39,108 64,536 31,561

TOTAL EQUITY  201,771 166,280 191,708 158,733

 

Balance Sheets
 As at 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

The Balance Sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net income recognised directly in equity  - - - -

Profit for the period  36,668 41,586 34,152 40,560

Total recognised income and expense for the period  36,668 41,586 34,152 40,560

 

Statements of Recognised Income and Expense
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

The Statements of Recognised Income and Expense are to be read in conjunction with notes to the financial statements.



76 ERGON ENERGY CORPORATE REPORTS 2005/06

   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers  2,190,305 1,759,408 2,155,312 1,740,468

Payments to suppliers and employees  (2,134,354) (1,726,344) (2,095,920) (1,707,153)

Interest received  9,310 8,038 9,033 7,778

Interest paid   (2,125) (1,324) (2,901) (2,185)

Dividends received  - - 809 617

Net cash flows from operating activities 28 63,136 39,778 66,333 39,525

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  - - - -

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (7,342) (2,703) (7,126) (2,703)

Payments for intangible assets  (3,190) (45) (3,248) (45)

Payment for acquisition of Australian Energy Limited  (97,620) - (102,315) -

Net cash flows from investing activities  (108,152) (2,748) (112,689) (2,748)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings  65,003 266 65,003 266

Repayment of borrowings  (6,967) - (5,469) -

Dividends paid  (33,249) (16,919) (33,249) (16,919)

Net cash flows from financing activities  24,787 (16,653) 26,285 (16,653)

Net increased/decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (20,229) 20,377 (20,071) 20,124

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year  168,914 148,537 164,176 144,052

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 6 148,685 168,914 144,105 164,176

Cash Flow Statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

The Cash Flow Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Ergon Energy Pty Ltd (the “Company”) 
is a company domiciled in Australia. 
The consolidated financial report of the 
Company for the year end 30 June 2006 
comprises the Company and its controlled 
entities (collectively referred to as the 
‘’Economic Entity”) and the Economic 
Entity’s interest in associates and jointly 
controlled entities. 

The financial statements were 
authorised for issue by the directors on  
13 September 2006. 

(a) Statement of compliance 
The financial statements are a general 
purpose financial report that have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues 
Group (UIG) Interpretations, requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001, provisions of 
the Government Owned Corporations Act 
1993 and other relevant legislation issued 
pursuant to that Act. 

Compliance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards
Australian Accounting Standards include 
Australian equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). 
Compliance with the AIFRS ensures that 
the consolidated financial statements 
and notes of the Economic Entity 
comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The 
Company financial statements and 
notes also comply with IFRS except 
for the disclosure requirements in IAS 
32 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
and Presentation’ as the Australian 
equivalent Accounting Standard, AASB 
132 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
and Presentation’ does not require 
such disclosure to be presented by 
the Company where separate financial 
statements are presented together with 
the consolidated financial statements 
of the consolidated entity. 

First time adoption of AIFRS 
The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with AASB 1 ‘First-
time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards’. 
The financial report relating to 30 June 
2005 was prepared in accordance with 
Australian Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (AGAAP). The accounting 
principles applicable to AGAAP differ in 
certain areas to those relating to AIFRS. 
In preparing the financial statements of 
the Economic Entity for the 30 June 2006 
financial year, management has amended 
certain accounting and valuation methods 
previously applied to AGAAP financial 
statements to comply with AIFRS. With 
the exception of financial instruments, the 
comparative figures were restated to reflect 
these adjustments to the accounting and 
valuation methods. The Economic Entity 
has taken the exemption available under 
AASB 1 to only apply AASB 132 and AASB 
139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement’ from 1 July 2005.

(b) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements are presented 
in Australian dollars.

Historical cost convention 
The financial statements are prepared 
on the historical cost basis, except for 
the valuation of certain financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss and certain classes of property, 
plant and equipment. 

Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with AIFRS requires the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates. It 
also requires management to exercise its 
judgment in the process of applying the 
Economic Entity’s accounting policies. 
The areas involving a higher degree of 
judgment or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant 

to the consolidated financial statements 
are disclosed in the relevant notes to the 
financial statements.

Consistent accounting policies
The accounting policies have been applied 
consistently to the Economic Entity when 
preparing the information contained within 
the financial statements and in preparing 
the opening AIFRS balance sheet at 1 July 
2004, the transition date to AIFRS for the 
Economic Entity. 

Early adoption of standards
The Economic Entity has elected to apply the 
following standard to the annual reporting 
period beginning 1 July 2005:

 AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits’ 
(issued in June 2005)

This includes applying the standard to 
the comparatives in accordance with 
AASB 1 ‘First Time Adoption of Australian 
Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards’.

(c) Basis of consolidation 

(i)	 Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the 
Economic Entity has the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies. 
This power generally accompanies a 
shareholding of more than one half of 
the voting rights. The existence and 
effect of potential voting rights that are 
currently exercisable or convertible are 
considered when assessing whether 
the Economic Entity controls another 
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 
from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Economic Entity. They  
are de-consolidated from the date that 
control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is 
used to account for the acquisition of 
subsidiaries by the Economic Entity. 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

NOTE1: Significant accounting policies
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The cost of an acquisition is measured 
as the fair value of the assets given, 
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity 
instruments issued at the date of exchange, 
plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are 
measured initially at their fair values at 
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost 
of acquisition over the fair value of the 
Economic Entity’s share of identifiable net 
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. 
If the cost of the acquisition is less than 
the fair value of the net assets of the 
subsidiary acquired, the difference is 
recognised immediately in the income 
statement.

(ii)	 Transactions	eliminated	
on	consolidation

Inter-company transactions, balances 
and unrealised gains on transactions 
between Economic Entity companies are 
eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. Unrealised losses are 
eliminated in the same way as unrealised 
gains unless the transaction provides 
evidence of the impairment of an asset 
transferred.

(d) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are 
translated into the functional currency 
using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the date of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions, and 
from the translation at year-end exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies, are 
recognised in the income statement, except 
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash 
flow hedges. 

(e) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable and is 
net of returns, trade allowances and duties 
and taxes paid. Revenue is recognised for the 
major business activities as follows:

(i)	 Electricity	sales	revenue	to	
contestable	customers

Where contracts are held for trading 
purposes, revenue is recognised when the 
entity within the Economic Entity becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the 
contestable customer sales contracts.

All other sales contracts with contestable 
customers recognise revenue upon delivery 
of the service to the customers.

(ii)	 Electricity	sales	revenue	
to	customers	other	than	
contestable	customers

Revenue recognised is the aggregate 
of invoices raised, together with the 
movement in estimated metered but not 
invoiced energy consumption.

(iii)	 Estimated	revenue	from		
unbilled	services	

Unread Meters represents the estimated 
value of unbilled electricity provided to retail 
customers and is included in electricity 
sales revenue.

(iv)	 Community	service	obligations
As part of the Queensland electricity market 
reforms introduced in the late 1990’s, the 
Government made a commitment that 
state-wide uniform retail tariffs would 
apply to franchise customers and that no 
franchise customer would be adversely 
affected by ongoing electricity market 
reforms. From the 2001/2002 year, the 
Queensland Government determined 
that a fixed gross margin, adjusted for 
allowed energy costs, would apply to 
sales of electricity to franchise customers. 
Payments received primarily represent 

the shortfall in the margin received by  
Ergon Energy Pty Ltd. 

(v)	 Dividend	revenue	
Dividend revenue is recognised in the 
Income Statement on the date the entity’s 
right to receive payment is established. 

(vi)	 Other	non-regulated	revenue
Non-regulated revenue comprises revenue 
(net of discounts and allowances) mainly 
from the provision of electricity-related 
services. Revenue for the provision of 
services is recognised when the service 
is provided. Revenue for the sale of goods 
is recognised on delivery of the goods to 
the customer. 

Interest income is recognised in the 
Income Statement as it accrues, using 
the effective interest rate method.

(f) Expenses

(i)	 Cost	of	sales
Cost of sales is the accumulation of costs 
associated with network charges, electricity 
purchases and any other costs associated 
with the sale of electricity.

(ii)	 Operating	lease	payments
Payments made under operating leases 
are recognised in the Income Statement 
on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in the Income Statement as an 
integral part of the total lease expense.

(iii)	 Finance	and	related	costs	
Borrowings are initially recognised 
at fair value net of transaction costs 
incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are 
subsequently measured on an amortised 
cost basis with any difference between cost 
and redemption value being recognised 
in the Income Statement over the  
period of the borrowings on an effective 
interest basis. 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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79ERGON ENERGY CORPORATE REPORTS 2005/06

Finance costs are recognised as expenses 
in the period in which they are incurred. 

(g) Income tax

(i)	 Tax	equivalents
The entities within the Economic Entity 
make tax equivalent payments on their 
taxable income to the Queensland 
Government. These taxation payments 
are made pursuant to Section 155(4) of 
the Government Owned Corporations Act 
1993. These payments are administered 
by the Australian Taxation Office under the 
National Tax Equivalent Regime (NTER). 
The NTER broadly utilises the provisions of 
the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (ITAA 
1936), the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 
(ITAA 1997) and associated legislation, as 
well as Rulings and other pronouncements 
by the ATO, in order to determine the tax 
payable by the entities (refer Note 5).

The entities are not required to maintain 
a franking account.

(ii)	 Current	tax	payable	
Current tax is the expected tax payable on 
the taxable income for the year using tax 
rates enacted at the end of the financial 
year and any adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of previous years.

Current tax payable is recognised as 
current tax expense except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly 
in equity, in which case that portion is 
recognised directly in equity.

(iii)	 Deferred	tax	equivalent	
assets	and	liabilities

Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities 
are deductible or assessable temporary 
differences and unused tax losses recognised 
using tax rates enacted at the reporting 
date. Temporary differences are differences 
between the carrying amount of an asset 
and liability for financial reporting purposes 
and their tax bases. 

Tax bases are determined based on 
the expected manner of realisation or 
settlement of the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax equivalent assets are 
recognised only to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable amounts 
will be available against which the asset 
can be utilised.

Movements in deferred tax equivalent 
assets and liabilities balances are 
recognised as deferred tax equivalent 
expenses, except to the extent they  
relate to:

 Items recognised directly in equity, 
in which case that portion is 
recognised in equity;

 Acquisitions of entities or 
operations, in which case that 
portion is recognised in goodwill; 
and 

 Temporary differences that are not 
recognised.

(iv)	 Income	tax	equivalent	expense
Income tax equivalent expense for the 
reporting period consists of current tax 
expense and deferred tax expense.

(v)	 Tax	consolidation	
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary 
in a tax-consolidated group with Ergon 
Energy Corporation Limited as the head 
entity. The implementation date of the 
tax consolidation system for the tax-
consolidated group was 1 July 2002.

Current tax expense/income, deferred tax 
liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from 
temporary differences of the members of 
the tax-consolidated group are recognised 
in the separate financial statements of the 
members of the tax-consolidated group using 
the group allocation method by reference to 
the carrying amounts in the separate financial 
statements of each entity and the tax values 
applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax liabilities (or assets) and 
deferred tax assets arising from unused 
tax losses of the Company are assumed 
by the head entity of the tax-consolidated 
group and are recognised as amounts 
payable (receivable) to other entities in 
the tax-consolidated group in conjunction 
with any tax funding arrangement amounts 
(refer below). Any difference between these 
amounts is recognised by the Company as 
an equity contribution or distribution.

The Company recognises deferred tax 
assets arising from unused tax losses to 
the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profits of the tax-consolidated 
group will be available against which 
the asset can be utilised. The Company 
assesses the recovery of its unused tax 
losses and tax credits only in the period in 
which they arise, and before assumption 
by the head entity, in accordance with 
AASB 112 applied in the context of the 
tax-consolidated group. 

Any subsequent period adjustments to 
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax 
losses as a result of revised assessments 
of the probability of recoverability is 
recognised by the head entity only.

(vi)	 Nature	of	tax	funding	arrangement	
and	tax	sharing	agreements

The Company, in conjunction with other 
members of the tax-consolidated group, 
has entered into a tax funding arrangement 
which sets out the funding obligations of 
members of the tax-consolidated group in 
respect of tax amounts. The tax funding 
arrangements require payments to/from 
the head entity equal to the current tax 
liability (asset) assumed by the head 
entity and any tax-loss deferred tax asset 
assumed by the head entity, resulting in 
the Company recognising an inter-entity 
payable (receivable) equal in amount to 
the tax liability (asset) assumed. The inter-
entity payable (receivable) is at call.

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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Contributions to fund the current tax 
liabilities are payable as per the tax 
funding arrangement and reflect the 
timing of the head entity’s obligation to 
make payments for tax liabilities to the 
relevant tax authorities.

The Company, in conjunction with other 
members of the tax-consolidated group, has 
also entered into a tax sharing agreement. 
The tax sharing agreement provides for 
the determination of the allocation of 
income tax liabilities between the entities 
should the head entity default on its tax 
payment obligations. No amounts have 
been recognised in the financial statements 
in respect of this agreement as payment 
of any amounts under the tax sharing 
agreement is considered remote.

(h) Cash
Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
cash balances and investments in money 
market instruments. Bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand are included 
as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose of the Cash 
Flow Statement. 

(i) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at 
amortised cost less provision for doubtful 
receivables. 

A provision for doubtful receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence 
that the Economic Entity will not be able 
to collect all amounts due according to 
the original terms of receivables, and 
hence the receivables are impaired. The 
amount of the provision is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future 
cash flows, discounted at the effective 
interest rate. The amount of the provision 
is recognised in the income statement.

Prepaid commissions
A subsidiary of the Economic Entity 
pays variable commissions to internal 
and external salespersons which are 
capitalised and expensed over the life of 
the contract (3 years). 45% of the prepaid 
commissions are amortised in year one, 
35% in year two and 20% in year three. 
All other costs of sales are expensed as 
they are incurred.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. Cost is 
determined using the weighted average 
cost method. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less applicable variable 
selling expenses.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight 
line basis by reference to the useful 
life of each item of property, plant and 
equipment. The expected useful lives of 
plant and equipment vary from 3 to 10 
years. An assessment of useful lives is 
performed annually.

Recoverable	amount	of	

non-current	assets
The recoverable amount of an asset is 
the net amount expected to be recovered 
through the cash inflows and outflows 
arising from its continued use and 
subsequent disposal. 

Where the carrying amount of a non-
current asset is greater than its recoverable 
amount, the asset is written down to its 
recoverable amount. The decrement in 
the carrying amount is recognised as 
an expense in net profit or loss in the 
reporting period in which the recoverable 
amount write-down occurs.

Revaluation of non-current assets
Items of property, plant and equipment are 
recognised at fair value, being the amount 
for which assets could be exchanged 
between knowledgeable willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. Revaluations 
are made with sufficient regularity to 
ensure that the carrying amount of each 
asset does not differ materially from its 
fair value at the reporting date. 

Revaluation increments are credited directly 
to the asset revaluation reserve, except that, 
to the extent that an increment reverses a 
revaluation decrement in respect of that 
class of asset previously recognised as an 
expense in net profit or loss, the increment 
is recognised immediately as revenue in 
net profit or loss. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised 
immediately as expenses in net profit or 
loss, except that, to the extent that a credit 
balance exists in the asset revaluation 
reserve in respect of the same class of 
assets, they are debited directly to the 
asset revaluation reserve.

Acquisition of assets
The purchase method of accounting is 
used for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is 
measured as the fair value of the assets 
given up or liabilities undertaken at the 
date of the acquisition plus incidental costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition.

(l) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the 
cost of an acquisition over the fair value 
of the Economic Entity’s share of the net 
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/ 
associate at the date of acquisition.  
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is 
included in intangible assets. 

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment 
and carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Notes to the financial statements
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Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating 
units for the purpose of impairment 
testing.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an 
entity include the carrying amount of 
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill 
is recognised in the income statement as 
an expense when incurred. 

(ii)	 Research	and	development	
Expenditure on research activities, 
undertaken with the prospect of gaining 
new technical knowledge or understanding 
is recognised in the income statement 
when incurred. 

Expenditure on development activities, 
whereby research findings are applied 
to a plan or design for the production of 
a new or substantially improved product 
and process is capitalised if the product 
or process is technically or commercially 
feasible and the consolidated entity 
has sufficient resources to complete 
development. 

(iii) Licences
Licences are carried at historical cost. 
Licences that have a finite useful life 
are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation on a consumed basis. Licences 
that have an infinite useful life are carried 
at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses and are subject to impairment 
review on an annual basis.

(iv) Software
Software is carried at historical cost.

(v)	 Other	internally	generated		
intangible	assets

Internally generated intangible assets 
are carried at historical cost. All costs 
directly attributable to the creation of the 
asset from the point when it first meets 
the recognition criteria are capitalised 
into the value of the asset. 

(vi)	 Amortisation	
The cost of an intangible asset is amortised 
on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful life of the asset unless such 
assets are indefinite. Major amortisation  
periods are: 

(m) Investment Property

Investment property comprises residential 
premises that are held for rental yields 
at balance date, are not occupied by 
employees of the Economic Entity and are 
not retained by the Economic Entity for 
future use as employee accommodation.
Investment property is measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Where the Economic Entity has undertaken 
to dispose of residential premises at 
balance date, the items of investment 
property are classified and accounted for 
as held for sale assets.

Rental revenue from the leasing of investment 
properties is recognised on a straight-line 
basis in the income statement.

(n) Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life 
are not subject to amortisation and are 
tested annually for impairment.

All assets which are amortised are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets 
are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows 
(cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is recognised for the 
amount by which the carrying amount 
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s (or cash-generating unit’s) 
fair value less costs to sell and value 
in use. An impairment loss in respect 
of goodwill is not reversed. 

The expected net cash flows included 
in determining the value in use of an 
asset (or cash-generating unit) are 
discounted to their present values using 
a market-determined, risk-adjusted 
pre-tax discount rate.

(o) Non-current assets held for sale 
and discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as assets 
held for sale if their carrying amounts 
will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through 
continuing use. 

Non-current assets held for sale are 
stated at the lower of carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the 
write-down of an asset to fair value less 
costs to sell.

An operation is classified as a discontinued 
operation when it meets the criteria to 
be classified as held for sale.

(p) Trade and other creditors
Trade and other creditors are recognised 
when the Economic Entity has a legal 
or constructive obligation to pay cash. 
Trade and other creditors are recognised 
at cost. 

Measurement 

basis

Amortisation 

period

Software Cost 3 to 10 years

Licences Cost 3 to 10 years

Customer 

contracts 

and 

relationships

Cost 3 to 10 years
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(q) Employee benefits

(i)	 Wages	and	salaries,	annual	
leave	and	sick	leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including 
non-monetary benefits, annual leave and 
accumulating sick leave expected to be 
settled within 12 months of the reporting 
date are recognised in respect of employees’ 
services up to the reporting date and are 
measured at the amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled. 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including 
non-monetary benefits, annual leave 
and accumulating sick leave expected 
to be settled more than 12 months after 
the reporting date are measured at the 
present value of expected future payments 
to be made in respect of services provided 
by employees up to the reporting date. 
Expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the reporting date on 
government bonds with terms to maturity 
and currency that match, as closely  
as possible, to the estimated future  
cash outflows.

Liabilities for non-accumulating sick 
leave are recognised when the leave is 
taken and measured at the rates paid 
or payable.

(ii)	 Long	service	leave
The liability for long service leave expected 
to be settled within 12 months of the 
reporting date is recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the reporting 
date and is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid when the liability  
is settled.

The liability for long service leave expected 
to be settled more than 12 months from 
the reporting date is recognised in respect 
of employee services up to the reporting 
date and is measured as the present value 
of expected future payments to be made in 
respect of services provided by employees 

up to the reporting date. Consideration is 
given to expected future wage and salary 
levels, experience of employee departures 
and periods of service. Expected future 
payments are discounted using market 
yields at the reporting date on government 
bonds with terms to maturity and currency 
that match, as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash outflows. 

(iii)	 On-costs	and	superannuation	
contributions	on	leave	balances

On-costs, including payroll tax and workers’ 
compensation insurance, are recognised 
and included in liabilities and costs when 
the employee benefits to which they relate 
are recognised as liabilities. 

On-costs are measured at their nominal 
amounts unless the effect of the time 
value of money is material. If the effect of 
the time value of money is material, the 
amount of the liability made is determined 
by discounting the best estimate of the 
amount required to settle the obligation 
to present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability.

On-costs are not employee benefits and, 
therefore, are excluded from employee 
benefits expense. Provisions for on-costs 
are disclosed in the financial statements 
as other provisions.

Superannuation contributions accrued as a 
result of the liability of employee benefits are 
measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the 
reporting date. Superannuation contributions 
are disclosed as employee benefit expense 
and as employee benefit liabilities. 

(iv)	 Superannuation
Entities within the Economic Entity 
contribute to both defined contribution and 
defined benefit superannuation plans. 

A defined benefit plan is a superannuation 
plan that defines the amount of the 
benefit that an employee will receive on 
retirement, usually dependent on one or 
more factors such as age, years of service 
and final salary. 

The asset or liability recognised in the 
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit 
superannuation plans is the difference 
between the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the reporting date and 
the fair value of the plan assets, together 
with adjustments for past service costs. 
The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually by independent actuaries using 
the projected unit credit method. The 
present value of the defined benefit 
obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future cash outflows using 
interest rates on government bonds that 
are denominated in the currency in which 
the benefits will be paid, being Australian 
dollars, and that have terms to maturity 
that approximate the terms of the related 
superannuation liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions are recognised 
in equity under the direct to equity 
approach.

A defined contribution plan is a 
superannuation plan under which entities in 
the Economic Entity pay fixed contributions. 
Entities in the Economic Entity have 
no legal or constructive obligations to 
pay further contributions if the fund 
does not hold sufficient assets to pay 
all employees the benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior 
periods. The contributions are recognised 
as an employee benefit expense when 
they are due. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent that 
a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available.
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(r) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of past events, it is more than likely 
that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Where the effect of the time value of 
money would be material, the amount of 
a provision is determined by discounting 
the best estimate of the amount required 
to settle the obligation to present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. No provisions are 
raised for future operating losses.

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is 
recognised when the expected benefits 
to be derived from a contract are lower 
than the unavoidable costs of meeting its 
obligations under the contract. 

(s) Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

(t) Lease commitments

(i)	 Operating	leases
Leases in which substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
by the lessor are classified as operating 
leases. Payments under operating leases 
are charged to the income statement on 
a straight-line basis over the period of 
the lease unless an alternative basis is 
more representative of the time pattern 
of benefits to be obtained from the leased 
property.

(ii)	 Finance	leases
Leases in which substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred to the lessee are classified 
as finance leases. A finance lease asset 
and a finance lease liability are recorded 

on the balance sheet. The lease asset and 
the lease liability are established at the 
fair value of the asset or, if lower, at the 
present value of minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are allocated between 
the finance charge and the reduction of 
the outstanding liability over the life of 
the lease. 

(iii)	 Lease	incentives
Where an entity in the Economic Entity 
is a lessee under an operating lease, the 
aggregate benefit of any incentive provided 
by the lessor for a new or renewed lease is 
recognised as a reduction of rental expense 
over the lease term on a straight-line basis 
unless another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern of benefit 
from the use of the leased asset.

(u) Contingent assets and liabilities 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the 
financial statements. Other than as required 
on acquisition of a business, contingent 
liabilities are not recognised in the financial 
statements, however they are included in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

(v) Segment reporting
A segment is a group of assets and 
operations engaged either in providing 
products or services (business segment), 
or providing products and services within 
a particular economic environment 
(geographical segment) which is subject 
to risks and returns that are different to 
those of other segments.

(w) Construction contracts
When the outcome of a construction 
contract can be estimated reliably, contract 
revenue and expense are recognised in the 
income statement in proportion to the stage 
of completion of the contract. The stage 
of completion is measured by reference 
to the work performed. An expected loss 
on a contract is recognised immediately 
in the Income Statement. 

(x) Government grants
Government grants are recognised at 
their fair value when there is reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received 
and the Economic Entity will comply with 
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are 
deferred and recognised in the Income 
Statement over the period necessary to 
match the grants with the costs that they 
are intended to compensate. 

Government grants relating to the purchase 
of property, plant and equipment are 
included in non-current liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to the 
Income Statement on a straight-line basis 
over the expected lives of the related 
assets.

(y) Accounting for financial 
instruments

(i)	 Hedge	accounting	
The economic entity used derivative 
instruments to hedge foreign exchange 
and interest rate exposures arising from 
its activities. In accordance with treasury 
policy, hedge accounting is applied where 
a designated hedge relationship exists. 

Where the derivative financial instrument 
is designated as a hedge of the variability 
in cash flows of a recognised asset or 
liability, or a highly probable forecast 
transaction, the effective part of any 
gain or loss on a derivative financial 
instrument is recognised direct in equity 
as a reserve. 

When the forecast transaction subsequently 
results in the recognition of a non-financial 
asset or liability, or the forecast transaction 
of a non-financial asset or liability, the 
associated cumulative gain or loss is 
removed from equity and included in 
the initial cost of the associated asset 
or liability. 
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If a hedge of a forecasted transaction 
subsequently results in the recognition 
of a financial asset or liability, such as 
a debt instrument, the associated gains 
or losses that were recognised directly 
in equity are reclassified into the income 
statement in the same period during which 
the asset acquired or assumed affects the 
Income Statement.

For cash flow hedges other than those 
noted above, associated cumulative gains 
or losses are removed from equity and 
recognised in the Income Statement in 
the same period during which the hedged 
forecast transaction affects the income 
statement. The ineffective part of any gain 
or loss is recognised immediately in the 
Income Statement. 

Where the hedging instrument expires or 
is sold, terminated or exercised, or the 
Economic Entity revokes designation of 
the hedge relationship, but the hedged 
forecast transaction is still expected to 
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that 
point remains in equity and is recognised 
in accordance with the above policy when 
the transaction occurs. If the hedge 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, 
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is 
transferred from equity immediately to 
the Income Statement. 

(ii)	 Fair	value	accounting	through	
the	Income	Statement	

Derivatives measured at fair value are 
recognised at fair value at the date that 
a derivative contract is entered into and 
is subsequently measured at fair value at 
each reporting date. The Economic Entity 
does not apply netting of financial assets 
and liabilities on settlement. A positive 
revaluation amount is reported as an 
asset and a negative revaluation amount 
is reported as a liability. The resulting 
gain or loss is recognised in the Income 
Statement immediately. Derivative contracts 
acquired principally for the purpose of 

selling in the short term are measured at 
fair value through the Income Statement. 
The following transactions are classified 
as derivative financial instruments and 
measured at fair value through the income 
statement. 

1) Contestable sales and 
purchase contracts 

 Contestable sales contracts are 
contracts with contestable customers 
for the sale, but not the supply, of 
electricity.

 Contestable sales contracts are 
recorded at their net fair value. The 
contracts have been valued using 
a combination of data sources 
including current Ergon Energy trades, 
the Australian Financial Markets 
Association, the 5MW brokers market 
and other market intelligence. Ergon 
Energy trades frequently in these 
instruments and has sufficient market 
information to reliably measure the 
value of these contracts in accordance 
with the requirements of AIFRS. 
Volume of Sales is an estimation of 
future demand determined using 
historical averages.

2) Derivative financial instruments held 
or issued for hedging contestable, 
franchise sales contracts or trading

 Derivative financial instruments held 
or issued for hedging contestable and 
franchise sales contracts or trading 
purposes are recorded at their net 
fair value. The contracts have been 
valued using a valuation technique 
incorporating a half hourly forward 
price curve derived from a combination 
of data sources including current Ergon 
Energy trades, the Australian Financial 
Markets Association, the 5MW brokers 
market and other market intelligence.  
Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its controlled 
entities trade frequently in these 

instruments and has sufficient market 
information to reliably measure the 
value of these contracts in accordance 
with the requirements of Australian 
Accounting Standards.

3) Power Purchase Agreements
 Power Purchase Agreements are 

recorded at fair value and adjusted 
for any changes in market conditions 
for up to, but not exceeding, the 
independently available forward price 
curve (currently five years). Power 
Purchase Agreements are agreements 
for the sale and purchase of the energy 
exported from a generator, and of 
Renewable Energy Certificates and 
Green Certificates associated with 
the generation of energy.

 The Power Purchase Agreements 
are valued using a combination of 
data sources including current Ergon 
Energy trades, the Australian Financial 
Markets Association and other 
market intelligence. Ergon Energy 
has sufficient market information to 
reliably measure the value of these 
agreements in accordance with the 
requirements of Australian Accounting 
Standards.

4) Long term Energy Procurement 
Agreement (LEP)

 The LEP Agreement represents a 
derivative financial instrument that 
is measured at fair value through the 
Income Statements.

 Fair value is determined by using a 
combination of data sources including 
the LEP Deed, current Ergon Energy 
trades, the Australian Financial 
Markets Association and other market 
intelligence.

5) Energy Certificates
 Renewable Energy Certificates, Gas 

Electricity Certificates and New South 
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Wales (NSW) Greenhouse Abatement 
Certificates on hand and to be received 
in the future for trading are measured 
at fair value at the end of the financial 
year, adjusted for known market 
forces. 

 These energy certificates are valued 
using a combination of data sources 
including current Ergon Energy 
trades, the Australian Financial 
Markets Association and other 
market intelligence. Ergon Energy 
has sufficient market information to 
reliably measure the value of these 
agreements in accordance with the 
requirements of Australian Accounting 
Standards.

 In the comparative year, the acquittal 
obligations of subsidiaries of the 
Economic Entity were recognised 
as liabilities in the balance sheet of 
Ergon Energy Pty Ltd. The subsidiary 
reimburses Ergon Energy Pty Ltd for 
any costs incurred in meeting the 
subsidiary’s obligations under the 
respective schemes including the 
Commonwealth Mandatory Renewable 
Energy Target, the Queensland 13% 
Gas Scheme and the NSW Greenhouse 
Gas Abatement Scheme.

6) Embedded derivatives 
 D e r i va t i ve s  e m b e d d e d  i n  

non-financial host contracts are 
measured at fair value with movements 
in fair value recognised in the income 
statement. Where the embedded 
derivative cannot be measured 
separately from the host contract, 
the entire contract is measured at 
fair value. 

(z) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are 
recognised net of the amount of Goods 
and Services Tax (GST), except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In 
these circumstances, the GST is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the 
asset or the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the 
amount of GST included. The net amount 
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 
the ATO is included as a current asset or 
liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Statements 
of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST 
components of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows.

(aa) Dividends payable
A liability for dividends payable is 
recognised in the reporting period in 
which the dividends are declared for the 
entire undistributed amount. 

(ab) New accounting standards 
and UIG Interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and 
UIG interpretations have been published 
that are not mandatory for 30 June 
2006 reporting periods. The Economic 
Entity’s assessment of the impact of 
these standards and interpretations is set  
out below.

(i)	 UIG 4	‘Determining	whether	an	
Arrangement	contains	a	Lease’	
and AASB 2005-5	‘Amendments	to	
Australian	Accounting	Standards	
[AASB 1 & AASB 139]’

UIG 4 is applicable to reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2006. 
The Economic Entity has not elected to 
adopt UIG 4 early. It will apply UIG 4 in its 
2007 financial statements. The Economic 
Entity will apply UIG 4 on the basis of 
facts and circumstances that exist as 
of 1 July 2006. Implementation of UIG 4 

(and associated amendments to AASB 1) 
is not expected to change the accounting 
for any of the Economic Entity’s current 
arrangements.

(ii)	 UIG 5	‘Rights	to	Interests	
Arising	from	Decommissioning,	
Restoration	and	Environmental	
Rehabilitation	Funds’	and 
AASB 2005-5	‘Amendments	
to	Australian	Accounting	
Standards	[AASB 1 & 139]’

The Economic Entity does not have any 
interests in decommissioning, restoration 
or environmental rehabilitation funds. 
As a result, this interpretation (and 
associated amendments to AASB 139)  
will not affect the Economic Entity’s 
financial statements.

(iii)	 UIG 6	Liabilities	Arising	from	
Participating	in	a	Specified	
Market	–	Waste	Electrical	
and	Electronic	Equipment

UIG 6 is applicable to annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 December 
2006. The Economic Entity has not sold 
electronic or electrical equipment on the 
European market and has not incurred any 
associated liabilities. This interpretation 
will not affect the Economic Entity’s 
financial statements.

(iv)	 UIG 7	‘Applying	the	Restatement	
Approach	under	AASB	129		
Financial	Reporting	in	
Hyperinflationary	Economies’

The Economic Entity conducts its 
business in Australia, a country whose 
economic environment does not display 
the characteristics of hyperinflation and 
accordingly it has not applied AASB 129.  
As a result, this interpretation will not 
affect the Economic Entity’s financial 
statements.
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(v)	 UIG 8	‘Scope	of	AASB	2’
The Economic Entity is a Government 
Owned Corporation and as such does 
not trade its shares. As a result, this 
interpretation will not affect the Economic 
Entity’s financial statements.

(vi)	 UIG 9	‘Reassessment	of		
Embedded	Derivatives’

UIG 9 is applicable to annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 June 
2006. The interpretation prohibits the 
reassessment of embedded derivatives 
after the Economic Entity first becomes 
party to the contract, unless there is 
a change in the terms of the contract 
that significantly change the cash flows 
involved. Implementation of UIG 9 is not 
expected to change the accounting for 
any of the Economic Entity’s current 
arrangements.

(vii)	AASB 7	‘Financial	Instruments:	
Disclosures’	and AASB 2005-10 
‘Amendments	to	Australian	
Accounting	Standards	[AASB 132, 
AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, 
AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, 
AASB 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]’

AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 are applicable 
to annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2007. The Economic 
Entity has not adopted the standards 
early. Application of the standards will 
not affect any of the amounts in the 
financial statements but may impact 
the type of information disclosed in 
relation to the Economic Entity’s financial 
instruments.

(viii)	AASB 2005-1	‘Amendments	to	
Australian	Accounting	Standards’

The Economic Entity does not have material 
foreign currency risk relating to intragroup 
forecast transactions. As a result, this 

standard will not affect the Economic 
Entity’s financial statements.

(ix)	 AASB 2005-4	‘Amendments	to	
Australian	Accounting	Standards	
[AASB 139, AASB 132, AASB 1, 
AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]’

AASB 2005-4 is applicable to annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2006. The amendments to 
AASB 139 remove some of the flexibility 
surrounding designating financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through the profit 
and loss. The Economic Entity currently 
does not have any material financial assets 
or liabilities which are impacted by these 
amendments. 

(x)	 AASB	2005-6	‘Amendments	
to	Australian	Accounting	
Standards	[AASB 3]’

The Economic Entity does not have any 
interests in business combinations involving 
entities or businesses under common 
control. As a result, this standard will 
not affect the Economic Entity’s financial 
statements.

(xi)	 AASB 2005-9	‘Amendments	to	
Australian	Accounting	Standards	
[AASB 4, AASB 1023, AASB 139  
& AASB 132]’

AASB 2005-9 is applicable to annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2006. The amendments relate 
to the accounting for financial guarantee 
contracts. The Economic Entity has decided 
not to early adopt the standard and will 
instead apply the revised standards in the 
30 June 2007 financial statements. Given 
the Economic Entity’s low level of financial 
guarantee contracts, implementation of 
the standard is not expected to change 
the accounting for any of the Economic 
Entity’s current arrangements.

(xii)	AASB 2006-1 ‘Amendments	
to	Australian	Accounting	
Standards	[AASB 121]’

The Economic Entity does not have any 
interests in a foreign operation. As a result, 
this standard will not affect the Economic 
Entity’s financial statements.

(ac) Accounting estimates 
and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that may 
have a financial impact on the entity and 
that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances.

The Economic Entity makes estimates and 
assumptions concerning the future. The 
resulting accounting estimates will, by 
definition, seldom equal the related actual 
results. The estimates and assumptions 
that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year are discussed below.

Electricity financial instruments 
measured at fair value
The Economic Entity enters into electricity 
financial instruments that are not traded 
in active markets. The fair value of these 
financial instruments, which includes 
contestable contracts, swaps, caps, and 
renewable energy certificates, is determined 
using market based valuation methods. 
The Economic Entity has estimated fair 
value using these methods. It has taken 
into account the conditions existing at 
balance date and has used its judgment 
in the following areas:

 future price and volume 
estimation using in-house and off-
the-shelf valuation models;

 credit margin estimation; and
 discounting for time value of money.

NOTE1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
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    Consolidated The Company
    2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

NOTE 3: Revenue
Revenue      
Sales revenue   1,691,426 1,791,403 1,653,636 1,643,000 
Other revenue       
Community service obligations  326,717 176,872 326,717 176,872 
 Commissions received  1,590 1,559 1,590 1,559 
 Interest received  9,080 7,099 8,803 6,839
 Interest received – related parties  230 939 230 939 
 Dividend income  - - 809 2,699 
 Other operating revenue  17,393 32,038 17,382 31,471

Total revenue   2,046,436 2,009,910 2,009,167 1,863,379

Other income       
 Fair value gains on financial instruments at fair value  43,082 - 43,082 -
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  3 - - -

Total other income  43,085 - 43,082 - 

NOTE 4: Expenses
Profit before income tax equivalent expense includes the following  
specific expenses
Cost of sales   1,936,454 1,837,554 1,906,621 1,691,886

Finance Costs 
 Interest paid or payable  1,479 1,324 1,316 1,318 
 Interest paid or payable – related parties  646 - 1,585 867

Total finance costs  2,125 1,324 2,901 2,185 

Depreciation      
 Other property, plant and equipment  374 271 366 271

Total depreciation   374 271 366 271
Amortisation     
 Intangible assets  2,905 1,659 1,788 1,659

Total amortisation  2,905 1,659 1,788 1,659
Impairment     
 Trade receivables  1,231 1,483 1,038 1,483

Total impairment  1,231 1,483 1,038 1,483

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairments  4,510 3,413 3,192 3,413 

Increase in provisions  846 924 846 924 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets  1 - 1 - 
Rental expense on operating leases minimum lease payments  454 756 396 756 
Defined contribution superannuation expense  1,237 1,026 1,146 1,026

NOTE 2: Segment reporting
The Economic Entity operates primarily in the State of Queensland and has additional operations in New South Wales, Victoria, 
South Australia and the Australian Capital Territory as part of its electricity retailing operations.
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   Note Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

NOTE 5: Taxation

(a) Income tax equivalent expense      

Current tax expense  16,461 12,943 18,303 10,698

Deferred tax expense   5,868 5,151 2,194 6,042

Income tax equivalent expense   22,329 18,094 20,497 16,740 

Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:      

Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets  13(a) (48,057) (32,416) (48,718) (32,565)

(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities  13(b) 53,925 37,567 50,912 38,607

Income tax expense attributable to profit from continuing operations  5,868 5,151 2,194 6,042 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense/(benefit)  

to prima facie tax payable     

Net profit from ordinary activities before income tax equivalent expense 58,997 59,680 54,649 57,300 

Prima facie income tax equivalent expense on  

operating profit at 30% (2005 - 30%)  17,699 17,904 16,395 17,190 

Decrease in income tax equivalent expense      

Dividends receivable   - - (242) (639) 

Increase in income tax equivalent expense      

Non-deductible expenses  4,355 32 4,344 31

Other    275 158 - 158 

     22,329 18,094 20,497 16,740

Under / (over) provision in prior years  - - - -

Income tax equivalent expense  22,329 18,094 20,497 16,740 

Net acquisition through business combinations - debited directly to equity  3,507 - - - 

NOTE 6: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand  11,078 8,301 9,361 8,301

Short term deposits  137,607 160,613 134,744 155,875

Total cash and cash equivalents  148,685 168,914 144,105 164,176

Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement  148,685 168,914 144,105 164,176 

     148,685 168,914 144,105 164,176 

Notes to the financial statements
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 7: Trade and other receivables
Current      

Trade debtors - unrelated parties:     

Trade debtors and unread meters  247,460 202,960 217,903 202,959

Provision for doubtful receivables  (5,109) (4,386) (3,067) (4,386) 

     242,351 198,574 214,836 198,573

Community service obligations  38,097 26,522 38,097 26,522 

Receivables from related parties  - 780 1,256 3,470

Other receivables and prepayments  4,461 41,519 4,180 41,519

Total current trade and other receivables  284,909 267,395 258,369 270,084

Non-current     

Receivable from related parties - tax related  30,496 28,308 22,783 22,783

Electricity sales receivable - contestable customers  - 4,615 - 4,615

Power purchase agreement receivable  - 66,845 - 66,845

Total non-current trade and other receivables  30,496 99,768 22,783 94,243 

The fair value of all receivable amounts is consistent with the carrying value. 

NOTE 8: Inventories
Current      
At cost     

Inventory held for resale  - 20 - 20

Total inventories  - 20 - 20 

NOTE 9: Financial assets
Current      
Market trading assets  64,316 - 62,127 -

Energy certificates  32,307 - 32,082 -

Long-term energy procurement  2,931 - 2,931 -

Diesel related derivatives  2,921 - 2,921 -

Electricity Sales receivable - contestable customer  45,144 - 37,414 -

Power purchase agreement receivable  224,696 - 224,696 -

Total current financial assets  372,315 - 362,171 -

Non-current     

Investments in controlled entities – at recoverable amount  - - 121,706 19,390

Less: impairment provision  - - (10,895) (10,895)

Total non-current financial assets  - - 110,811 8,495 

The carrying values of investments in controlled entities have been assessed by the directors as at 30 June 2006, to ensure that the values 

are not in excess of their expected recoverable amount. 
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 10: Other assets
Current      
GST receivable  1,084 - - -
Market trading assets and environmental certificates  - 65,755 - 65,755

Total current other assets  1,084 65,755 - 65,755

Non-current      
Market trading assets and environmental certificates  - 31,087 - 31,087

Total non-current other assets  - 31,087 - 31,087

 
NOTE 11: Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment     
At directors’ valuation  4,010 2,964 3,676 2,964
Less accumulated depreciation  (2,841) (2,297) (2,616) (2,297) 

     1,169 667 1,060 667

Work in progress     
At cost    9,292 2,729 9,095 2,729

Total property, plant and equipment  10,461 3,396 10,155 3,396 

If property, plant and equipment were stated on a historical cost basis, the carrying amount at 30 June 2006 would have been $1,102,572. 

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:

Property, plant and equipment    
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  667 402 667 402
Acquisitions through business combinations  98 - - -
Transfer of assets between categories  (17) - (17) -
Additions   796 541 777 541
Disposals   (1) (5) (1) (5)

Depreciation expense  (374) (271) (366) (271)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  1,169 667 1,060 667

Work in progress    
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  2,729 7,507 2,729 7,507
Transfer to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  (3,608) (7,339) (3,608) (7,339)
Additions   10,171 2,561 9,974 2,561

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  9,292 2,729 9,095 2,729

Total property, plant & equipment  10,461 3,396 10,155 3,396 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 12: Intangible assets

Computer software - at cost  11,638 7,612 10,860 7,612

Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment  (3,792) (1,615) (3,403) (1,615)

Net carrying value  7,846 5,997 7,457 5,997 

Goodwill - at cost  79,833 - - - 

Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment  - - - -

Net carrying value  79,833 - - -

Other intangible assets - at cost  18,200 - - -

Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment  (1,068) - - -

Net carrying value  17,132 - - -

Total intangible assets  104,811 5,997 7,457 5,997 

Reconciliations     

Computer software     

Cost at the beginning of the financial year  7,612 622 7,612 622

Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the beginning  

of the financial year  (1,615) (483) (1,615) (483)

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  5,997 139 5,997 139

Acquisitions through business combinations  437 - - -

Additions   3,249 6,990 3,248 6,990

Amortisation charge  (1,837) (1,132) (1,788) (1,132)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year   7,846 5,997 7,457 5,997 

Goodwill     

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  - - - -

Acquisitions through business combinations  79,833 - - -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year   79,833 - - - 

Other intangible assets     

Cost at the beginning of the financial year  - 982 - 982

Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the beginning  

of the financial year  - (455) - (455)

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  - 527 - 527

Acquisitions through business combinations  18,200 - - -

Amortisation expense  (1,068) (527) - (527)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year   17,132 - - -

Total intangible assets  104,811 5,997 7,457 5,997 
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 13: Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities 

(a) Deferred tax equivalent assets     

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:      

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:     

Provisions   23,411 12,530 23,264 12,530

Tax losses    30,496 28,308 22,783 22,783

Derivatives   73,224 34,963 73,388 34,963

Accrued expenses   8,352 7,550 8,996 7,550

Other    18 1,905 18 1,905

Tax losses transferred to ultimate parent entity  (30,496) (28,308) (22,783) (22,783) 

Acquisition through business combination  2,504 - - - 

Net deferred tax equivalent assets  107,509 56,948 105,666 56,948 

(b) Deferred tax equivalent liabilities      

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:      

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:     

Fixed assets   485 (157) 107 (157)

Derivatives   141,904 90,827 141,953 90,827

Accrued Income  5,424 3,738 3,214 3,738

Other    488 (32) 14 (32) 

Acquisition through business combination  6,011 - - - 

Net deferred tax equivalent liabilities  154,312 94,376 145,288 94,376 

NOTE 14: Trade and other payables 

Current      

Trade payables  81,483 52,421 78,644 52,421

Trade payables to related parties  102,206 87,137 105,459 106,242

Power purchase agreements payable  - 36,698 - 36,698

Dividends payable  - 33,249 - 33,249

Other payables and accruals  26,915 21,639 8,789 21,639

Total current payables  210,604 231,144 192,892 250,249

Non-current     

Power purchase agreements payable  - 75,196 - 75,196 

Payable to related entities – tax related  53,776 35,125 50,790 32,486

Other payables  281 134 17,073 132

Total non-current payables  54,057 110,455 67,863 107,814 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

    Consolidated The Company
    2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 15: Interest bearing liabilities
Current      
Unsecured liabilities      
Customer and other repayable deposits  86 67 86 67
Lease incentives  571 571 571 571
Loans payable to related parties  4,684 - 4,684 -
Other    500 - - -

Total current interest bearing liabilities  5,841 638 5,341 638

Non-current     
Unsecured liabilities     
Customer and other repayable deposits  21,311 23,441 21,311 23,441
Lease incentives  3,043 3,613 3,043 3,613
Loans payable to related parties  57,533 - 57,533 -

Total non-current interest bearing liabilities  81,887 27,054 81,887 27,054 

Customer and other repayable deposits
Customer and other repayable deposits represent the security deposits received by the Economic Entity in relation to electricity supply to 
certain customers. Interest is charged on the deposits and credited to the customers account annually. 

Lease incentives
The lease incentive is not required to be secured whilst the lessee is an entity owned by Ergon Energy Corporation Limited. 

NOTE 16: Employee benefits
Current      
Employee benefits  3,608 1,167 3,077 1,167

Total current employee benefits  3,608 1,167 3,077 1,167

Non-current     
Employee benefits  1,622 1,684 1,622 1,684

Total non-current employee benefits  1,622 1,684 1,622 1,684

Employees receiving performance payments
Aggregate at-risk performance remuneration  1,009 886 1,009 886
Total fixed salaries and wages payments  6,665 8,124 6,665 8,124

Total payments to employees  7,674 9,010 7,674 9,010 

     2006 2005 2006 2005 
Number of employees  Number Number Number Number

Employees receiving performance payments  53 67 53 67
Employees at the end of the financial year  133 143 133 143 

(a) Defined contribution plans
The Economic Entity makes contributions to defined contribution schemes in various superannuation funds. The amount recognised 
as expense was $1,237,412 for the year ended 30 June 2006 (2005: $1,026,286). 

(b) Defined benefit obligation
Ergon Energy Corporation Limited is ultimately liable for the funding of the defined benefit entitlements of all employees within 
Ergon Energy Pty Ltd. Whilst Ergon Energy Pty Ltd has recognised a cost equal to their contribution payable in relation to the defined 
benefit plan, any asset or liability arising from a surplus or deficit will be recorded by Ergon Energy Corporation Limited.
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 17: Provisions

Current      

Security deposits  852 938 852 938

Environmental certificate acquittal  - 27,036 - 27,036

Other    - 326 - 326

Total current provisions  852 28,300 852 28,300 

Non-current     

Environmental certificate acquittal  - 6,435 - 6,435

Total non-current provisions  - 6,435 - 6,435 

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of provision, except for employee entitlements, are set out below: 

Security deposits    

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  938 923 938 923

Provisions made during the financial year  846 898 846 898

Provisions used during the financial year  (932) (883) (932) (883)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  852 938 852 938 

Other    

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year  326 434 326 434

Provisions made during the financial year  - 26 - 26

Provisions used during the financial year  - (134) - (134)

Net transfer   (326) - (326) -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  - 326 - 326

NOTE 18: Financial liabilities

Current      

At fair value     

Market trading liabilities  72,153 - 67,432 -

Power purchase agreement payable  178,140 - 178,140 -

Long-term Energy Procurement  11,020 - 11,020 -

Environmental certificate acquittal  71,904 - 71,244 -

Total current financial liabilities  333,217 - 327,836 - 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 19: Other liabilities
Current      
Market trading liabilities  - 13,964 - 13,964
GST     1,352 - - -
Other    451 - 451 -

Total current other liabilities  1,803 13,964 451 13,964 

Non-current     
Market trading liabilities  - 3,105 - 3,105
Other - unrelated parties  2,700 6,682 2,700 6,682
Other - related parties  7,996 7,996 - -

Total non-current other liabilities  10,696 17,783 2,700 9,787 

NOTE 20: Contributed equity
Share capital
1,214 fully paid ordinary shares  123,172 123,172 123,172 123,172

Total share capital  123,172 123,172 123,172 123,172 

Movement in share capital
Balance at the beginning of the financial year  123,172 123,172 123,172 123,172

Balance at the end of the financial year  123,172 123,172 123,172 123,172 

NOTE 21: Reserves and retained profits

(a) Reserves     
General reserve  4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 

     4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Movements:      
Balance at the beginning of the financial year  4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Balance at the end of the financial year  4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 

The general reserve was used to establish operations in Northern Electricity Retail Corporation Pty Ltd. 

(b) Retained profits     

Retained profits  74,599 39,108 64,536 31,561

Movements:     
Balance at the beginning of the financial year  39,108 30,771 31,561 24,250
Discount of financial instruments  (1,177) - (1,177) -
Net profit for the financial year  36,668 41,586 34,152 40,560
Net movement in provision for dividends  - (33,249) - (33,249)

Balance at the end of the financial year  74,599 39,108 64,536 31,561

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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NOTE 22: Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, interest rate, price and currency risks arise in the normal course of the consolidated entity’s business. 

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

(a) Financial risk management

Credit	Risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if customers failed to perform as contracted. 

The Economic Entity manages its credit risks by having established and maintained an appropriate credit review process. 

Furthermore, the Economic Entity minimises concentration of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of 

retail customers and limiting credit to any individual customer.

Credit settlement risk associated with electricity market trading is controlled by establishing approved credit limits with only 

those counterparties that have an appropriate credit rating, as determined by a recognised credit rating agency. The relevant 

counterparties are principally large banks and other electricity corporations. 

At the balance date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 

by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet. 

Interest	rate	risk

As the Economic Entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 

independent of changes in market interest rates. 

Long term borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation include both a fixed and floating interest rate. Floating interest 

rate borrowings expose the Economic Entity to cash flow interest rate risk while fixed interest borrowings exposes the Economic 

Entity to fair value interest rate risk. 

Other liabilities exposing the Economic Entity to interest rate risk include the repayable deposits (both fixed and floating interest 

exposure) and the lease incentives (fixed interest rate). 

The Economic Entity’s exposure to interest rate risk is detailed in the table at Note 22(b) below. 

Price	risk

Electricity

Electricity price risk is the risk of an adverse financial outcome resulting from a change in the price of electricity in the National 

Electricity Market. This can be a change in the electricity pool price or a change in the forward price of electricity. Exposures 

mainly arise from positions in Wholesale Contracts, Contestable Customer Contracts, Franchise load or Power Purchase 

Agreement Contracts. 

The Economic Entity uses derivative financial instruments to manage its Electricity price risk, consumer variable volume risk 

and cash flow risk as well as hedge exposure to pool price fluctuations and against the committed and anticipated electricity 

purchases. The hedge contracts are designated against a portfolio of customer electricity sale contracts. The hedge contracts 

are valued at fair value and therefore hedge accounting is not employed. 

Diesel

Diesel price risk is the risk of an adverse financial outcome resulting from a change in the price of diesel fuel oil. This can arise 

from a change in the spot or forward price of diesel and foreign exchange rates.

Ergon Energy has a diesel price exposure from its purchase of fuel for its remote generation and through the supply of risk 

management services to contestable customers who use diesel in their operations. 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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NOTE 22: Financial instruments (continued) 

The instruments that Ergon Energy used in these transactions are Diesel swaps, Diesel options and Foreign exchange hedge 

instruments (where there is foreign currency exposure on diesel options/swaps). 

Foreign	currency	risk

The Economic Entity purchases certain goods with the purchase price denominated in a foreign currency. In order to protect 

against exchange rate movements, the Economic Entity enters into forward exchange contracts to purchase the relevant foreign 

currency. 

Liquidity	Risk

Liquidity risk associated with electricity market trading is controlled by National Electricity Market Management Company Limited 

whereby all market participants are required to deliver irrevocable bank guarantees as security for timely settlement. These 

guarantees are held for and on behalf of all participants thereby limiting exposure to liquidity risk. 

Where entities within the Economic Entity enter into contracts external to the regulated market, such contracts are limited in 

terms of exposure and value. The contracts are entered into with only those counterparties that have an appropriate credit rating 

as determined by a recognised credit rating agency. All contracts contain credit limit clauses. 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding 

through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close-out market positions. A working capital facility 

is in place with the ultimate parent entity, Ergon Energy Corporation Limited. 

(b) Fair Value

The net fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount at which the asset could be exchanged, or liability 

settled in a current transaction between willing parties after allowing for transaction costs.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are not materially different from their estimated net fair values 

at the end of the financial year, unless otherwise stated. 

Financial assets and liabilities not marked to market and classified as non-current are discounted to determine the fair value 

using a risk free interest rate where the impact of discounting is considered to be material.

(c) Credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk that arise from derivative instruments exist for groups of counterparties when they have similar 

economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes 

in economic or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk on electricity derivatives are indicated in the following table by 

percentage of the total balance receivable from counterparties in the specified categories: 

Counterparty Classification     2006 

        %

Queensland Government-owned electricity entities     26

New South Wales Government-owned electricity entities     17

Other entities      57

The above credit risk exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral or security. Receivables due from major 

counterparties are regularly monitored. 

Notes to the financial statements
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NOTE 22: Financial instruments (continued) 
(d) Interest rate risk
The following table indicates the effective interest rates on the Economic Entity’s financial assets and liabilities at the balance 
date and the periods in which they reprice or mature.
         Weighted 
    Note Floating     average 
     Interest Rate 1 year or less 1 to 5 years Over 5 years  interest rate
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 %

2006  
Financial assets  
 Cash and cash equivalents  6 148,685 - - - 6.00

      148,685 - - - 

Financial liabilities  
 Repayable deposits  15 21,311 - - - 4.00
 Lease incentives  15 - 571 2,282 761 5.00
 Loans   15 500 4,684 22,062 35,471 6.47

      21,811 5,255 24,344 36,232 

2005  
Financial assets  
 Cash and cash equivalents  6 168,662 - - - 5.71

      168,662 - - - 

Financial liabilities  
 Repayable deposits  15 23,441 - - - 4.00
 Lease incentives  15 - 571 2,282 1,331 5.00

      23,441 571 2,282 1,331  

Sensitivity Analysis
At 30 June 2006, it is estimated that an increase of the variable interest rate of one percentage point would result in an  
increase in the Economic Entity’s profit before tax of $1,269,000 (2005: $1,452,000).
 
NOTE 23: Commitments 
    Consolidated The Company
    2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Capital and other expenditure commitments  
Estimated capital and other expenditure contracted for at the end  
of the financial year is payable as follows:  
- Not later than one year  2,941 2,500 2,941 2,500
- Later than one year but not later than five years  1,220 3,406 1,220 3,406

       4,161 5,906 4,161 5,906

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments  
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the financial  
year but not recognised as liabilities payable:  
- Not later than one year  3,787 2,954 3,357 2,954
- Later than one year but not later than five years  12,205 11,384 11,959 11,384
- Later than five years  4,421 7,566 4,421 7,566

       20,413 21,904 19,737 21,904 

Notes to the financial statements
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NOTE 24: Contingencies

(a) Legal Claims

A number of common law claims are pending against entities within the Economic Entity. In each case, a writ has been served 

and the entity is at various stages of defending the actions. Liability is not admitted and all claims will be defended. The total 

amount of these claims net of insurance recoveries is $500,000 (2005: $500,000). 

(b) Guarantees

In order to participate in the electricity market, entities within the Economic Entity were required to deliver acceptable security as 

collateral for their obligations arising as a consequence of normal trading. Security, in the form of payment guarantees totalling 

$169,300,000 (2005: $124,600,000) have been issued by Queensland Treasury Corporation to the National Electricity Market 

Management Company Limited. A further $2,000,000 has been issued by ANZ bank to the National Electricity Market Management 

Company Limited relating to a subsidiary. These guarantees are supported by counter indemnities to the Queensland Treasury 

Corporation from the Company totalling $295,000,000 (2005: $295,000,000). 

A subsidiary has provided bank guarantees of $46,939 in favour of the owners of premises rented by subsidiaries and $5,003,945 

in bank guarantees as credit support facilities for suppliers. 

(c) Environmental

The consolidated entity provides for all known environmental liabilities. While the directors believe that, based upon current 

information, its current provisions for environmental rehabilitation are adequate, there can be no assurance that material 

new provisions will not be required as a result of new information or regulatory requirements with respect to known sites or 

identification of new remedial obligations at other sites.

NOTE 25: Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2006 include the following controlled entities:

All of the following entities are incorporated / formed in Australia.    Percentage Interest Held  

       by the Economic Entity

The Company: 

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd 

Controlled Entities: 

Ergon Energy (Victoria) Pty Ltd     100%

Northern Electricity Retail Corporation Pty Ltd     100%

Australian Energy Ltd, and its controlled entities:     100%

 Powerdirect Pty Ltd     100%

 Australian Energy Services Pty Ltd     100%

The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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NOTE 26: Business combinations

(a) Summary of acquisition

On 24 April 2006 Ergon Energy Pty Ltd acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Australian Energy Ltd. The consolidated group of 

Australian Energy Ltd contains Powerdirect Pty Ltd and Australian Energy Services Pty Ltd. Australian Energy Ltd was involved in the retail 

sale of electricity to small to medium sized business markets.

The acquired business contributed revenues of $37,862,626 and net profit of $3,452,516 to the Economic Entity for the period from 24 April 

2006 to 30 June 2006. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2005, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 30 

June 2006 would have been $2,176,634,695 and $34,490,535 respectively. 

Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill are as follows:

        $’000

Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below): 

 Cash paid     100,976

 Direct costs relating to the acquisition     1,339

Total purchase consideration      102,315

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer to (c) below)     22,482

Goodwill (refer to (c) below and Note 25)     79,833

(b) Purchase consideration

    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired 

Cash consideration  102,315 - 102,315 -

Less: Balances-acquired 

Cash    4,695 - - -

Bank overdraft  - - - -

     4,695 - - -

Outflow of cash  97,620 - 102,315 -

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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NOTE 26: Business combinations (continued)

(c) Assets and liabilities acquired

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:
      Acquiree’s Fair
      carrying Value Fair
      amount Adjustments Value

      $’000 $’000 $’000

Current Assets 

Cash     4,696 - 4,696

Receivables    27,034 - 27,034

Financial assets   7,347 - 7,347

Other assets    1,713 (1,378) 335

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment   98 - 98

Intangible assets   496 18,200 18,696

Deferred tax equivalents asset   2,504 - 2,504

Current Liabilities 

Payables     (24,145) - (24,145)

Financial liabilities   (5,293) - (5,293)

Interest-bearing liabilities    (2,000) - (2,000)

Provisions     (779) - (779)

Non-current Liabilities 

Deferred tax equivalents liability   (6,011) - (6,011)

Net assets    5,660 16,822 22,482

Minority Interests     -

Net identifiable assets acquired     22,482

Customer contracts and customer relationships were identified as intangible assets arising on acquisition and have been  

detailed in the above table.

Goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired business and synergies expected to arise after the company’s acquisition 

of Australian Energy Ltd. The fair value of the assets and liabilities are based on the purchase price allocation method using 

discounted cash flows. No acqisition provisions were created.

NOTE 27: Economic dependency

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd’s principal revenue depends, to a significant extent, on the operations of the electricity market in Queensland. 

The principal operator transporting high voltage electricity for distribution is Queensland Electricity Transmission Corporation 

Limited (trading as Powerlink). Low voltage electricity is then distributed primarily to Ergon Energy Pty Ltd by Ergon Energy 

Corporation Limited, the ultimate parent entity.
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    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

NOTE 28: Notes to Cash Flow Statements

Reconciliation of the operating profit after income tax equivalent to the  

net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities 

Operating profit after income tax equivalent expense  36,668 41,586 34,152 40,560

Non-cash flows in profit from ordinary activities: 

Depreciation and amortisation  3,279 1,930 2,154 1,930

Asset write-off  - 159 - 159

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  1 - 1 -

Changes in employee benefit and other provisions  (876) 23,797 (604) 23,797

Other non cash flow items  (58,921) (28,087) (55,113) (26,078)

Changes in assets and liabilities 

Trade and other receivables  29,118 (5,238) 35,357 (4,310)

Inventory    20 5 20 4

Other assets   17,999 (63,799) 25,697 (63,799)

Trade and other payables  21,536 55,461 23,455 43,512

Other liabilities  8,446 13,965 (978) 23,751

Deferred income tax equivalent liability  53,924 - 50,911 -

Deferred income tax equivalent asset  (48,058) - (48,719) -

Payment from provision  - (1) - (1)

Net cash flow provided by operating activities  63,136 39,778 66,333 39,525

 

NOTE 29: Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Names, positions and terms held of directors

The directors of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd during the financial period ended 30 June 2006 were:

Keith Hilless  Chairman - Non-Executive Director

John Bird  Deputy Chairman - Non-Executive Director

Wayne Myers  Non-Executive Director

Vanessa Brewis Non-Executive Director

Elizabeth Jameson Non-Executive Director

Keith Hilless, John Bird and Wayne Myers were reappointed as directors on 1 July 2005 for a period of three years and three 

months until 30 September 2008. Elizabeth Jameson and Vanessa Brewis were appointed on 1 July 2005 for a period of three 

years and three months until 30 September 2008.
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NOTE 29: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(b) Compensation - Directors

Directors’ emoluments are set by State Government regulation, with other fees and allowances determined on the basis of meetings 

attended and expenditure incurred in performing their roles as directors of the Company.

The non-executive directors of the Company do not participate in any variable reward or ‘at risk’ plan. 

In accordance with Ministerial Guidelines, details of compensation provided to directors in office at 30 June 2006,  

and for comparative purposes details of those directors whose terms finished on 30 June 2005, are as follows:

DIRECTOR Short term benefits Post employment benefits TOTAL

Directors’ Fees Committee & Other Fees(1) Superannuation

$ $ $ $

Keith Hilless Chairman

2006 46,968 - 4,272 51,240

2005 45,472 - 4,137 49,609

John Bird Deputy Chairman

2006 19,257 10,325 2,522 32,104

2005 18,644 8,120 2,442 29,206

Wayne Myers Director

2006 19,257 - 1,897 21,154

2005 18,644 - 1,701 20,345

Vanessa Brewis Director

2006 19,257 6,839 2,349 28,445

2005 - - - -

Elizabeth Jameson Director

2006 19,257 3,844 2,079 25,180

2005 - - - -

Patricia Faircloth Director

2006 - - - -

2005 18,644 3,480 2,014 24,138

Belinda McNeven Director

2006 - - - -

2005 18,644 3,480 2,014 24,138

Total Compensation Directors

2006 123,996 21,008 13,119 158,123

2005 120,048 15,080 12,308 147,436
No further fees were paid to directors, other than the amounts disclosed in the table. 
(1) The Board Committees are joint committees between Ergon Energy Corporation Limited and Ergon Energy Pty Ltd.  
Where directors hold positions on both Boards, Ergon Energy Corporation Limited reports the committee fees paid.
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NOTE 29: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Aggregate Income of Directors   

The number of directors of the Parent Entity who were paid, or were due to be paid, directly or indirectly by the Company or any related 

party, as shown in the following bands, were: 

       2006 2005

$20,001  - $30,000     2 3

$30,001  - $40,000     1 -

$50,001  - $60,000     1 1

$120,001 - $130,000     1 1

The aggregate income of the directors referred to above was:    $275,144 $254,589

The remuneration bands are not consistent with the emoluments disclosed in the Compensation - Directors above as the basis 

of calculation differs due to the Aggregate Income of Directors including all income paid, or due to be paid to directors of the 

Company and controlled entities from the Company or any related party.

The total of all amounts paid or payable, directly or indirectly, from the respective entities of which they are a director, or from 

any related party, to all the directors of each entity in the Economic Entity was $275,144 (2005: $254,589). The above amounts 

exclude the value of insurance premiums made for the directors’ indemnity.

(c) Compensation - Executives

The Safety and People Committee recommends executive remuneration to the Board as part of an annual review. Input is sought 

from several industry and market surveys (in addition to that from the shareholding Ministers) when determining the level of 

remuneration for these positions. Final approval is then required from shareholding Ministers, ensuring that remuneration 

arrangements for the executives are appropriate.

A Total Employment Cost (TEC) concept for the structure of executive remuneration is utilised. While the total cost of an executive’s 

remuneration package is capped, the executive then has the flexibility to decide the composition of the total employment cost 

which may include cash salary, motor vehicle, car park, additional superannuation and laptop.

Executive staff are eligible for an ‘at risk’ or variable component that is directly linked to both the overall performance of the 

corporation and their individual efforts against a range of key indicators, for example financial, operational and customer 

excellence, people development, risk management and growth. The initial ‘target’ goals are set by the Board, from the annual 

Statement of Corporate Intent. Any ‘at risk’ payment is totally contingent upon the Board’s assessment of the Company’s overall 

performance.

Executives are all employed on a similar, tenured contract, except for the Chief Executive who is employed on a five year fixed 

term contract. The employment contract of each executive allows for them to be eligible to participate in the Company’s ‘at risk’ 

performance remuneration plan which has a maximum allocation of up to 15% of the individual’s TEC figure.

Apart from the provision of a car park, no other non-cash benefits are provided to executives, as the TEC concept captures various 

benefits structured within a total cost rather than a base salary plus benefits.

Executives are entitled to a termination payment comprising a payment equivalent to 26 weeks of TEC, pro-rata long service leave 

and pro-rata bonus. Where termination is due to redundancy, executives are entitled to an additional payment of two weeks TEC 

for every completed year of employment in excess of two years to a maximum of 26 weeks. This entitlement lapses if an offer 

of alternative employment is received from a Queensland Government department, agency or Queensland Government Owned 

Corporation prior to termination of the executive’s employment with the Company.
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NOTE 29: Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

In accordance with Ministerial Guidelines, details of remuneration provided to the senior executives with the greatest authority of the Parent 

Entity in office at 30 June 2006 are as follows:

EXECUTIVE Short term benefits (1) Post employment benefits Long term 

benefits

Total

Salary and 

Fees 

$

Non Monetary

$

Superannuation

$

Retirement 

benefits 

$

 

$

 

$

Chief Operating Officer – Retail
2006 240,743 3,873 22,189 - 16,085 282,890
2005 239,492 3,311 20,756 - 13,584 277,143
Executive General Manager – Customer Service
2006 173,295 4,106 16,698 - 5,173 199,272
2005 171,392 3,311 13,283 - 5,150 193,136
Total Compensation – Executives
2006 414,038 7,979 38,887 - 21,258 482,162
2005 410,884 6,622 34,039 - 18,734 470,279

(1) Officers may also earn performance based, risk incentive bonuses which are disclosed in aggregate in Note 16 and are not shown in this table.

Amounts disclosed for remuneration of key management personnel exclude insurance premiums paid by the Company in respect of directors’ and officers’ liability 
insurance contracts.

(d) Compensation disclosures by category for Key Management Personnel

    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Short term benefits  567,021 552,634 567,021 552,634

Post employment benefits  52,006 46,347 52,006 46,347

Long term benefits  21,258 18,734 21,258 18,734

Total    640,285 617,715 640,285 617,715

(e) Transactions with related parties of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Economic Entity and of its related parties, or their related parties, conduct transactions with 

entities within the Economic Entity on terms and conditions no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably 

be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-related entities on an arm’s length basis. 

All transactions with key management personnel or related parties that occurred during the financial year are trivial or domestic 

in nature, apart from those noted below. The related party disclosures include those in connection with Ergon Energy Corporation 

Limited and its controlled entities.

Keith Hilless was the Chairman and director of the Australian Institute of Management-Qld/NT Division until May 2006.  

During this time, Ergon Energy provided sponsorship to and purchased training from this organisation to the value of $773,765 

(2005: $35,018).

A number of directors are the directors of organisations that are franchise customers of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities
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NOTE 30: Related party transactions

(a) Transactions with the Ultimate Parent Entity and with the wholly owned group

In addition to those transactions disclosed in Note 3 and 4, the ultimate Parent Entity provided business management, financial 

and corporate services and customer care administration services (including retail products and services administration) to 

controlled entities. All services were undertaken on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Amounts due and receivable from related parties in the wholly owned group are as set out in the respective notes to the financial 

statements.

(b) Transactions with Associates

Aggregate amounts brought to account in relation to transactions with an associate:

    Consolidated The Company

    2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Purchase of billing, meter reading and payment management services  

from an associate of the ultimate parent entity  17,899 19,318 17,899 19,318 

Recovery of employee expenses and other service costs from an  

associate of the ultimate parent entity  5,831 6,609 5,831 6,609

Amounts due and receivable from associates are as set out in the respective notes to the financial statements.

(c) Controlling Entities

The Parent Entity in the wholly owned group is Ergon Energy Pty Ltd.

The ultimate Parent Entity and the ultimate Australian Parent Entity is Ergon Energy Corporation Limited.

(d) Ownership Interests in Related Parties

Interests in the following classes of related parties are set out in the following notes:

 Controlled entities - Note 25

(e) Transactions with State of Queensland controlled entities

The Economic Entity transacts with other State of Queensland controlled entities. All transactions are negotiated on terms equivalent to 

those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

Details of material related party transactions and balances, as reported in the income statements and balance sheets, are disclosed below:

   Terms and Consolidated The Company

   Conditions 2006 2005 2006 2005

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue 

Community Service Obligations revenue Refer Note 1 337,719 176,872 337,719 176,872

Pensioner rebate revenue from Department of  

Communities  Refer Note 1 17,719 16,936 17,719 16,936

Interest received on deposits with Queensland  

Treasury Corporation Refer Note 1 8,487 6,870 8,267 6,610

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities
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NOTE 30: Related party transactions (continued)

(e) Transactions with State of Queensland controlled entities (continued)
   Terms and Consolidated The Company
   Conditions 2006 2005 2006 2005
     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Expenses 
DUOS costs paid to ENERGEX Refer Note 1 31,876 29,464 31,876 29,464
Electricity trading with State of Queensland  
controlled entities Refer Note 22 54,352 37,415 54,352 37,415
ESI Super defined benefit and accumulation  
plan expenses Refer Note 16 1,237 1,026 1,146 1,026
Interest on Queensland Treasury Corporation  
borrowings. Includes administration fees. Refer Note 22 151 124 147 120
Derivative transactions with State of Queensland  
controlled entity counterparties Refer Note 1 75,341 - 75,341 -
Assets 
Deposits held with Queensland Treasury Corporation Refer Note 1 137,607 160,613 134,744 155,875
Community Service Obligations amounts receivable Refer Note 1 38,097 26,522 38,097 26,522
Liabilities
Community Ambulance Cover Levy payable to  
Office of State Revenue Refer Note 1 2,587 2,344 2,587 2,344
No security has been obtained or provided for the above assets and liabilities. Settlement is in Australian dollars. 

NOTE 31: Auditors’ remuneration
Remuneration for audit and review of the financial reports of the Parent Entity or any entity in the Economic Entity: 
Auditor-General of Queensland 
Audit services 
 Audit and review of financial statements  171,000 104,000 111,500 92,000
Other services 
 Other regulatory audit services  5,800 7,000 3,500 3,500

     176,800 111,000 115,000 95,500

NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS
As stated in significant accounting policies Note 1, these are the Economic Entity’s first consolidated financial statements  
prepared in accordance with AIFRS.

The policies set out in the significant accounting policies within Note 1 of this report have been applied in preparing the  
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006, the comparative information presented in these financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2005 and in the preparation of an opening AIFRS balance sheet at 1 July 2004 (the Economic Entity’s 
date of transition).

In preparing its opening balance sheet, the Economic Entity has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements 
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards at that time (previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(AGAAP)). An explanation of the impacts of transition from previous AGAAP to AIFRS has impacted the Economic Entity’s financial 

position, financial performance and cash flows as set out in the following tables and notes. 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006
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Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

The reconciliation of equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes in 32(d).

NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of equity
 Consolidated

      1-Jul-04   30-Jun-05

     Previous Effect of AIFRS Previous  Effect of  AIFRS
       AGAAP transition   AGAAP transition  
      to AIFRS   to AIFRS
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets 
Cash assets   148,537 - 148,537 168,914 - 168,914
Receivables   213,781 325 214,106 267,318 77 267,395
Inventories   24 - 24 20 - 20
Other    28,924 (325) 28,599 65,755 - 65,755

Total current assets  391,266 - 391,266 502,007 77 502,084

Receivables   70,690 3,118 73,808 122,592 (22,824) 99,768
Intangible assets  527 139 666 - 5,997 5,997
Property, plant and equipment  8,087 (177) 7,910 9,432 (6,036) 3,396
Deferred tax equivalent assets  - - - - 56,948 56,948
Other    4,286 - 4,286 31,087 - 31,087

Total non-current assets  83,590 3,080 86,670 163,111 34,085 197,196

Total assets  474,856 3,080 477,936 665,118 34,162 699,280

Liabilities       
Payables   160,341 16,672 177,013 198,096 33,048 231,144
Interest-bearing liabilities  471 - 471 638 - 638
Employee benefits  - 1,293 1,293 - 1,167 1,167
Provisions   26,559 (17,965) 8,594 62,438 (34,138) 28,300
Other    - - - 13,964 - 13,964

Total current liabilities  187,371 - 187,371 275,136 77 275,213

       
Payables   91,376 2,391 93,767 170,241 (59,786) 110,455
Interest-bearing liabilities  25,624 - 25,624 27,054 - 27,054
Employee benefits  - 1,098 1,098 - 1,684 1,684
Provisions   3,945 (1,166) 2,779 8,192 (1,757) 6,435
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  - - - - 94,376 94,376
Other    9,354 - 9,354 17,783 - 17,783

Total non-current liabilities  130,299 2,323 132,622 223,270 34,517 257,787

Total liabilities  317,670 2,323 319,993 498,406 34,594 533,000

Net assets   157,186 757 157,943 166,712 (432) 166,280

Equity       
Contributed Equity  123,172 - 123,172 123,172 - 123,172
Reserves   4,000 - 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Retained profits  30,014 757 30,771 39,540 (432) 39,108

Total equity  157,186 757 157,943 166,712 (432) 166,280
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Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

The reconciliation of equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes in 32(d).

NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of equity (continued)
 The Company

      1-Jul-04   30-Jun-05

     Previous Effect of AIFRS Previous  Effect of  AIFRS
       AGAAP transition   AGAAP transition  
      to AIFRS   to AIFRS
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets 
Cash assets   144,052 - 144,052 164,176 - 164,176
Receivables   212,110 325 212,435 270,007 77 270,084
Inventories   24 - 24 20 - 20
Other    28,924 (325) 28,599 65,755 - 65,755

Total current assets  385,110 - 385,110 499,958 77 500,035

Receivables   65,526 833 66,359 119,092 (24,849) 94,243
Intangible assets  527 139 666 - 5,997 5,997
Property, plant and equipment  8,087 (178) 7,909 9,432 (6,036) 3,396
Financial assets  8,495 - 8,495 8,495 - 8,495
Deferred tax equivalent assets  - - - - 56,948 56,948
Other    4,286 - 4,286 31,087 - 31,087

Total non-current assets  86,921 794 87,715 168,106 32,060 200,166

Total assets  472,031 794 472,825 668,064 32,137 700,201

Liabilities 
Payables   173,886 16,671 190,557 217,201 33,048 250,249
Interest-bearing liabilities  471 - 471 638 - 638
Employee benefits  - 1,293 1,293 - 1,167 1,167
Provisions   26,559 (17,965) 8,594 62,438 (34,138) 28,300
Other    - - - 13,964 - 13,964

Total current liabilities  200,916 (1) 200,915 294,241 77 294,318

 
Payables   90,333 654 90,987 169,980 (62,166) 107,814
Interest-bearing liabilities  25,624 - 25,624 27,054 - 27,054
Employee benefits  - 1,098 1,098 - 1,684 1,684
Provisions   3,945 (1,166) 2,779 8,192 (1,757) 6,435
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  - - - - 94,376 94,376
Other    - - - 9,787 - 9,787

Total non-current liabilities  119,902 586 120,488 215,013 32,137 247,150

Total liabilities  320,818 585 321,403 509,254 32,214 541,468

Net assets   151,213 209 151,422 158,810 (77) 158,733

Equity 
Contributed equity  123,172 - 123,172 123,172 - 123,172
Reserves   4,000 - 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Retained profits ` 24,041 209 24,250 31,638 (77) 31,561

Total equity  151,213 209 151,422 158,810 (77) 158,733



110 ERGON ENERGY CORPORATE REPORTS 2005/06

NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit

         Consolidated  

        Previous  Effect of  AIFRS

          AGAAP transition  

         to AIFRS 

         2005

        $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue     2,009,910 - 2,009,910

Network charges/electricity purchases   (1,828,476) - (1,828,476)

Employee expenses   (26,022) 81 (25,941)

Materials and services   (9,079) - (9,079)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments   (1,930) (1,483) (3,413)

Borrowing costs   (1,324) - (1,324)

Other expenses    (83,403) 1,406 (81,997)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense   59,676 4 59,680

Income tax equivalent expense   (18,115) 21 (18,094)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense   41,561 25 41,586

   

         The Company  

        Previous  Effect of  AIFRS

          AGAAP transition  

         to AIFRS 

         2005

        $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue     1,863,379 - 1,863,379

Network charges/electricity purchases   (1,683,464) - (1,683,464)

Employee expenses   (26,022) 81 (25,941)

Materials and services   (9,079) - (9,079)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments   (1,930) (1,483) (3,413)

Borrowing costs   (2,185) - (2,185)

Other expenses    (83,403) 1,406 (81,997)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense   57,296 4 57,300

Income tax equivalent expense   (16,591) (149) (16,740)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense   40,705 (145) 40,560

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

The reconciliation of profit is to be read in conjunction with the notes in 32(d).
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NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(c) Explanation of material adjustments to the Cash Flow Statement 

There are no material differences between the Cash Flow Statement presented under AIFRS and the cash flow presented under 

previous AGAAP. However, the note reconciliation of the operating profit after income tax equivalent to the net cash flows provided 

by / (used in) operating activities has been impacted from the transition to AIFRS. 

(d) Notes to the reconciliations of equity and profit

The following notes support the adjustments contained within the reconciliation.

(i)	 Business	combinations	

The Economic Entity has elected to apply the exemption from retrospective application of AASB 3 Business Combinations. On the 

basis that the consolidated entity adopted the standard from 1 July 2004, no adjustment at transition was required. Business 

combinations occurring after 1 July 2004 will be accounted for in accordance with the requirements of AASB 3. 

(ii)	 Defined	benefit	superannuation	plans

Under AASB 119 Employee Benefits, the Economic Entity is required to recognise the defined benefit superannuation surplus/ 

deficit on its Electricity Supply Industry Superannuation Fund as an asset / liability in the balance sheet. The directors have elected 

to recognise all actuarial gains and losses arising from movements in the surplus through retained profits.

Ergon Energy Corporation Limited is ultimately liable for the funding of the defined benefit entitlements of all employees within 

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd. Whilst Ergon Energy Pty Ltd has recognised a cost equal to their contribution payable in relation to the defined 

benefit plan, any asset or liability arising from a surplus or deficit will be recorded by Ergon Energy Corporation Limited. 

(iii)	 Intangible	assets-software

In accordance with AASB 138 Intangible Assets, software is classified as an intangible asset rather than as property, plant and 

equipment. At 1 July 2004, the cost and accumulated amortisation to be reclassified to intangible assets was $660,231 and 

$483,072 respectively. 

(iv)	 Employee	benefits	

Employee benefit liabilities including annual leave and on-cost balances, comprising superannuation, have been measured at 

present value in accordance with the standard. The impact of bringing the above employee liabilities to present value had a 

cumulative impact at transition date of $65,039 increase in retained profits. The net impact of measuring employee benefits at 

present value at 30 June 2005 is $1,931. 

(v)	 Other	provisions	

Associated employee on-costs, including workers’ compensation and payroll tax, have been measured at present value in accordance 

with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The impact of bringing these provisions to present value 

had a cumulative impact at transition date of $2,917 increase in retained profits. The impact of restatement of these provisions 

on the Economic Entity at 30 June 2005 was an increase in profit of $2,615.

(vi)	 Capitalised	costs	

At transition, expenditure that no longer qualifies for recognition as capital expenditure in accordance with AASB 116 Property,  

Plant and Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible Assets has been adjusted accordingly. The impact to retained profits at transition 

date was $38,341. The expenditure during the 30 June 2005 year that was capitalised under previous AGAAP expensed under 

AIFRS amounted to $133. 

Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities
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Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(vii)	 Income	tax

The Economic Entity early adopted the revised AASB 1020 Income Taxes under AGAAP, as at 1 July 2004. Therefore, the tax 

balances for the financial year ended 30 June 2005 under AGAAP were in accordance with the balance sheet approach. The 

impact of transition from AASB 1020 Income Taxes to AASB 112 Income Taxes at 1 July 2004 and from retrospective application 

of the AIFRS policies to the 30 June 2005 comparative period are summarised in the following table:

    1 July 2004 30 June 2005

     Consilidated The Company Consilidated The Company

     $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Adjustments arising from adoption of AASB 112:  736 188 (456) (101)

 

Application of AASB 112 to adjustments arising from adoption of AIFRS  

 Employee benefits  (20) (20) (20) (20)

 Property, plant and equipment  11 11 11 11

 Other provisions  - - (1) (1)

Net increase / (decrease) in deferred taxes  727 179 (466) (111)

Comprising of movements in: 

Increase in deferred tax assets   3,118 833 34,124 32,099

Increase in deferred tax liabilities   (2,391) (654) (34,590) (32,210)

(viii) Reclassification of other income

Under AIFRS, foreign currency gains and government grants will be recognised as other income.  

Under AGAAP, such items are classified as revenue. This change will impact disclosure but will not impact reported profit. 

(ix) Reconciliation of retained profits: 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005 

The effects of the above adjustments on retained profits are contained in the following table:

Deferred tax   736 188 (456) (101)

Employee benefits  46 46 49 49

Other provisions   2 2 2 2

Property, plant and equipment  (27) (27) (27) (27)

Total adjustment   757 209 (432) (77)
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Notes to the financial statements
 For the year ended 30 June 2006

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

NOTE 32: Explanation of transition to AIFRS (continued)

(x)	 Financial	instruments

From 1 July 2004 to 30 June 2005
As outlined in Note 1, the Economic Entity has elected to apply the exemption available under AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian 
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and defer the date of transition of AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
and Presentation and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement until 1 July 2005. Accordingly, no adjustments have 
been made to the Financial Report for the period ended 30 June 2005 in respect of AASB 132 and AASB 139. Therefore, comparative 
information relating to financial instruments is in accordance with previous policies applied by the Economic Entity. 

Adjustments on transition date, 1 July 2005
As required by AASB 139, financial assets of the Economic Entity have been classified as either fair value through the profit 
and loss, held to maturity, available for sale or loans and receivables. Classifications and associated treatments of financial 
instruments of the Economic Entity have been outlined in Note 1. 

The adoption of AASB 139 has had the following impacts on the financial instruments of the Economic Entity:

1) Derivative financial instruments 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

 Consistent with the policy previously adopted by the Economic Entity for the retail business under AGAAP, derivative financial 
instruments classified as at fair value continue to be recognised at fair value with movements in the fair value recognised 
directly in the Income Statement. 

 To align the measurement of financial instruments at fair value with the detailed valuation requirements of AASB 139, an 
adjustment of $1,176,688 was recognised in retained profits on transition to AIFRS. This adjustment related to the recognition 
of discounting on financial instruments and the application of the bid and asking price to net open positions as appropriate. 
The discount rate used by the retail business to value financial instruments at fair value is the Commonwealth Zero Coupon 
Bond rate.

 In addition to the above adjustment, all financial instruments classified as at fair value have been reclassified to current in 
accordance with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. 

2) Loans and receivables 
 Loans and receivables will be recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 

method. No material adjustment was required to align valuation of loans and receivables with the amortised cost method. 

NOTE 33: Subsequent events

The Queensland Government announced a decision in April 2006 to sell, before the end of 2006, Ergon Energy Retail’s competitive 
operations.  

Ergon Energy’s non-competitive (or non-contestable) customers will remain within the Ergon Energy group and a separate retail 
customer service operation will continue to service these customers in regional Queensland. There will be no change to the 
functions performed by the distribution business. 

The sale will involve Ergon Energy’s existing contestable retail business, made up of mainly commercial and industrial customers 
together with the recently acquired Australian Energy Ltd (Powerdirect) business. In addition, approximately 400,000 of Sun Retail 
(formerly Energex Retail) customers will be included in this sale.

In response to this government initiative, Ergon Energy is currently preparing the contestable retail business for sale and 

establishing the ongoing operations to support the remaining non-contestable customer business. 
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Directors’ Declaration
 

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

In the opinion of the directors of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd (“the Company”):

 (a)  the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 73 to 113, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,  

 including:

   (i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the consolidated entity as at 30 June 2006  

  and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for the year  

  ended on that date; and

   (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

 (b)  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due  

 and payable.

Made in accordance with a resolution, made in Brisbane, by the directors.

Mr K Hilless 

Chairman

13 September 2006
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Independent Audit Report  
To the Members of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd

Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

Matters relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

The audit report relates to the financial report of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd for the financial year ended 30 June 2006 included on Ergon 
Energy’s web site.  The Directors are responsible for the integrity of Ergon Energy’s web site.  I have not been engaged to report on 
the integrity of Ergon Energy’s web site.  The audit report refers only to the statements named below.  It does not provide an opinion 
on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements.  If users of the financial report are concerned 
with the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial 
report, available from Ergon Energy to confirm the information included in the audited financial report presented on this website.
These matters may also relate to the presentation of the audited financial report in other electronic media including CD Rom.

Scope

The Financial Report
The financial report of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd consists of the Income Statements, Balance Sheets, Statements of Recognised Income and 
Expense, Cash Flow Statements, Notes to the financial statements, and the Directors’ Declaration for both Ergon Energy Pty Ltd (“the 
Company”) and the consolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the Company and the 
entities it controlled during that year. 

Directors’ Responsibility
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report, the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and 
accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit Approach
As required by law, an independent audit was conducted in accordance with QAO Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian 
Auditing Standards, to enable me to provide an independent opinion whether in all material respects the financial report is presented 
fairly, in accordance with the prescribed requirements.

Audit procedures included –
 examining information on a test/sample basis to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report;
 assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by the Directors;
 obtaining written confirmation regarding the material representations made in conjunction with the audit; and
 reviewing - the overall presentation of information in the financial report.

Independence
The Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and QAO authorised auditors.

The Auditor-General is the auditor of all government owned corporations and their controlled entities and can only be removed by 
Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not subject to direction by any person about the 
way in which audit powers are to be exercised.

The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and property and can report to Parliament 
matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are significant. 

No events have occurred that would require any changes to the audit independence declaration previously provided to the Directors on 
7 September 2006. 

Audit Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd is in accordance with –

(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including –
 (i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of  

 their performance for the year ended on that date; and
 (ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia. 
 

G G POOLE FCPA  Queensland Audit Office 
Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

To the Directors of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities

This Audit Independence Declaration has been provided pursuant to s. 307C of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Ergon Energy Pty Ltd and its Controlled Entities for the year ended 30 June 2006,  

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been –

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

G G POOLE, FCPA Queensland Audit Office 

Auditor General of Queensland      Brisbane






